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Established in 1997, the “SCUDFRERR"” brand has now grown into
a mobile digital product accessories brand to provide comprehensive
power solutions for mobile technological products including mobile
communication, mobile digital, smart electronic and multimedia
products. The “SCUDIRZERE" brand has been focusing on the R&D
and application of lithium-ion battery, and on the back of its self-
developed and self-designed power management system as well as
advanced technology in battery module packaging, the brand stands
at the forefront of the industry, recognised as a highly reputable
brand in the safety and quality in its “SCUDRERR" lithium-ion
battery modules. The “SCUDRERER” brand was crowned as one of
the “China Top Brand” in 2004, selected as one of the “China’s 500
Most Valuable Brands” in 2005 and recognised as a “China Famous
Trademark” in 2006. In the same year, SCUD Group Limited (“SCUD",
the “Company” or, together with its subsidiaries, “SCUD Group” or
the “Group”) was listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), turning over a new leaf
for the “SCUDFRZERR" brand.

The “SCUDREER” brand and ODM are the two core business
segments of SCUD Group, supplying high quality lithium-ion
battery products to the domestic retail market and manufacturers
of well-known telecommunication brands respectively. The Group's
manufacturing industrial park located in Fuzhou with land area of
over 100,000 m? is well-equipped with extensive and advanced
facilities. Accumulated with years of production and management
experiences, the industrial park has built up a refined and modernized
manufacturing system and hence become one of the most important
R&D and production bases for lithium-ion battery module products,
mobile communication and digital product accessories nationwide.
Subsidiaries of the Company have been accredited with the ISO9000
International Quality Accreditation and ISO14000 Environmental
Management System Certification; their products have obtained well-
recognised certifications from UL, FCC, TUV, CE, CB, PSE and KC.

The “SCUDFREER"” brand has built up a comprehensive distribution
system across China via its extensive distribution channels and use of
e-commerce platforms, with an ambition of stepping up continuous
overseas expansion, further strengthening its foothold in China while
eyeing international markets at the same time, and dedicating itself to
provide quality “SCUDFRTERR" products for consumers worldwide. The
ODM business of the Group mainly supplies quality lithium-ion battery
modules for original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital and
smart electronic products by entering into the supply chain systems
of well-known mobile technology products domestically and abroad.
The rapid development of the Group’s ODM business in recent years
enables SCUD Group to become one of the leading enterprises in the
industry. ODM clients mainly include Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Lenovo,
ZTE, Xiaomi and TCL.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)

HZE2017F12A318ILEE
(BBEFERIN  UARBTTIIR)

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 % Change
ARBTRE AR®TI EZ3HEHL

(+/-)
Turnover S 5,801,566 6,061,477 -4.3
Profit/(loss) for the year REEREF,(EE) 19,881 (124,833) +115.9
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to VAN/NETE Y =N
owners of the Company FEMRARFEHF () 21,125 (118,951) +117.8
Earnings/(losses) per share BRERN,(EE)
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —HEAREEARED) 1.94 (10.91) +117.8
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
(name changed from Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
to Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
with effect from 30 March 2017)

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

SCUD Industrial Park

Fuzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone
No. 98 Jianbin Avenue East
Mawei District, Fuzhou
Fujian Province, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Fang Jin (Chairman)
Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Feng Ming Zhu

Non-Executive Directors

Zhang Li
Hou Li

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong

Wang Jian Zhang

Heng Ja Wei Victor

GRS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (E 78
i Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited %
¥ & Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited,
B201793 A30H B 4ER)

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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COMPANY SECRETARY NEME
Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA) 5 mZE(FCCA, CPA)
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES ERERR
Fang Jin Yok
Yeung Mun Tai NTER
LEGAL ADVISER EEERB
Reed Smith Richards Butler BEE R ARMTT
20th Floor, Alexandra House BEBPIREITE18%
18 Chater Road, Central ELKE2088
Hong Kong
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B R
BDO Limited BB EERETMEEMAERAR
25th Floor, Wing On Centre BATHET1115
111 Connaught Road, Central KZZH 2518
Hong Kong
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE
Loke Yu (Chairman) g (ERE)
Wang Jing Zhong TR
Wang Jian Zhang FiEE
Heng Ja Wei Victor TR 4
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND FMEEERIEEEES

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Loke Yu (Chairman) B g R(EFE)
Fang Jin ik
Wang Jing Zhong TR
Heng Ja Wei Victor TR 4
RESUMPTION COMMITTEE BEREES
Loke Yu (Chairman) B gR(EFE)
Wang Jing Zhong TR
Wang Jian Zhang TE=E
Heng Ja Wei Victor TR 4
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited (Note)
Royal Bank House - 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Note:

The name of the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in the
Cayman Islands has been changed from “Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited” to “SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited”
with effect from 12 May 2017.

The address of the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in
the Cayman Islands has also been changed from “4th Floor, Royal
Bank House, 24 Shedden Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1110, Cayman Islands” to “Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden
Road, P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman, KY1-1110, Cayman Islands”
with effect from 12 May 2017.

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22 Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Fujian Haixia Bank

China Merchants Bank
China Construction Bank
Xiamen International Bank
Bank of China

WEBSITE

http://www.scudgroup.com

RBF SRR

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited (Fff&E)
Royal Bank House - 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Kt -

ARANRFEHENRMNBPELHENBEE S
[Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited J# 5% &I SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited] -
B2017F5A12BBEK -

RRBRASHENRNBERL D LRI T
[4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1110, Cayman
Islands |%# & A&[Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor, 24
Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1110, Cayman Islands] - B2017§5H12H #&
HER o

ERERODBFETIRE

BEFEHFELAERAR
BB

BRRNER183%
AR L2218

FEERIRIT
B IRIT
7 R1T
R
EPIBIR RIT
L RAT

LN

http://www.scudgroup.com



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of SCUD Group
Limited (“SCUD", the “Company” or, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company for the full year from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017
(the “Review Period”).

Looking back to 2017, the Group focused on the R&D and
manufacturing of lithium-ion battery modules, which as the main
product of the Group have been used in smartphones, laptop and
tablets, wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy
storage and other fields. In addition, the Group’s products also
cover battery management system, lithium-ion battery cells, precision
structural parts and other fields. Of the two core business of the
Group, i.e. ODM business and own-brand business, the performance
of ODM business was outstanding during the Review Period, and
currently, the Scud ODM business mainly supplies smartphone lithium-
ion batteries to smartphone brands such as Huawei, OPPO, vivo,
Xiaomi, Lenovo, ZTE, Tian Power, Nubian, Samsung and TCL. With the
Group's diversified products into the customer supply chain system,
the Group further enhanced the breadth and depth of its cooperation
with its domestic customers, which further consolidated the Group’s
position as a major supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for
domestic mobile phones and digital products. At present, the battery
products of SCUD are mainly used in smartphones and power banks,
and the revenue of such products accounted for approximately 82%
and 4% of the Company’s total revenue during the Review Period,
respectively. During the review period, the shipment of the Group’s
ODM mobile phone battery modules was approximately 163 million
pieces, representing a decrease of approximately 13% as compared
with that in 2016.
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In 2017, apart from actively looking for more partners to cooperate
with, the Group devoted itself to improving the quality control system
to continuously improve the production efficiency and technological
level and to ensure that all manufactured batteries meet the high
safety standards. As for customers, the stable demand from existing
ODM customers and orders from new customers have become the key
factors for the Group’s ODM business to maintain steady growth. In
respect of supply, in order to provide customers with assured quality,
the Group, through its careful selection of supplier partners, ensured
that it can provide its customers with high quality and diversified
battery cell options and make greater efforts to become a corporate
that satisfied the customers. As for production, the Group continued
to upgrade its automated production line to further ease the pressure
of the consumer electronics manufacturing industry on the operating
costs in recent years. In 2017, the Group optimized its business
structure by adjusting its business layout and collected its resources
to consolidate the foundation of the Group’s ODM business, fully
preparing for its expansion plans in the future. In addition, apart
from product safety, work safety is also the Group’s primary task.
We have always ensured production and operation are conducted in
a way in which we shoulder social responsibilities to provide a safe
and comfortable work environment for our staff while providing high
quality products for customers.

Apart from implementation of measures to improve operation
efficiency and productivity in the year, the management engaged
a professional adviser to assist the Company to improve its internal
control system to enhance the Group’s corporate governance. The
management is of the view that good corporate governance is very
important for the maintenance and enhancement of the confidence
of the Company’s shareholders, and the key to the development
of the Group’s business and safeguarding of the interests of the
Company’s shareholders. The Group will enhance the corporate value,
transparency and sense of responsibility through the implementation
of rules and regulations, strict enforcement of internal control,
improvement of risk prevention and management and prompt
disclosure of data in a public and comprehensive manner, so as to
maintain good corporate governance.

R2017F  KEKREESKEZ A UNAFENEH
S BEHAINZERENMEENREER  HERA
EERERTEKE  BERABEHBHELTAS

ZEHEMNEZEE RPHHE - BEODMEFIETH
ERMEFEEFMEIE RS EODMET 4

FREERNBRAZR - BT E - /A TERENE
BEPRMOMNME  AEBBEBFARBHERSE
B BRUNATPIEHEERZ TEMHETE
B BRREREPMENEERMMHEERNE T -
AETH SEEBBEESRNABEIAL  JAE
— SR EEE T HER I FRAERLEKA LA
AR - EER2017FBBFAREBHHRE
L EBHERE  BEREPUNZRB SEODMERH A
o RARKNERFBUEGF T B - Uo7
EmRE REIEZ2T2EENEEEY -
Eﬂﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁuﬂ?\ BEENTALEER
2E REFPHEEGEMNERZAR  TRETR
ﬁi\ 2EFEM TIERE ©

EEERFARTHTREBRSEEREREE
N EBREREXERGE QRN ENEES R
g UMIRASEMERERKT - EEERERY
CEEREABTNRARRBARRNELTAE
2 WA RBERAEE XK LREARRBRF

ﬁﬁZFﬁfk $'§l@iﬁiﬁ§)ﬁ@%ﬁ$%‘”§ CBBERE
MEREEHE ~ 52 B EHEER AARREEH

BE Fﬂﬁfﬁ%éﬂ% CIRARNBEE BHEERE
Bl UERRTCBEER °



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRES

Looking ahead, the Group will adjust its development strategies in
response to market movements and invest more resources in R&D
and production of lithium-ion battery module products with high
quality, so as to further consolidate and raise the market status of the
Group and establish stronger presence of its brand. The Group will
proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-ion batteries
in new industries and new fields and grasp opportunities for access
to the market. In addition, the Group attaches great importance to
the safety of using batteries for electronic products. In the pursuit of
high efficiency and endurance of battery, it is required to conduct
more rigorous review of the safety of battery to ensure that all
manufactured batteries meet the high safety standards. Riding on
high quality customer resources, quality assurance and technology
development capacity, SCUD Group will be committed to the provision
of safe, portable and endurable green energy products for customers
and consumers.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Management team, |
would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to all staff, directors, customers, suppliers, all shareholders and
institutions providing professional services to the Company for all your
support to SCUD throughout these challenging times.
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the information published by the market research
firm IDC, smartphones recorded global shipments of approximately
1.46 billion units in 2017, slightly dropped by approximately 1% as
compared with 2016. The overall sales and new models of the mobile
phone industry in 2017 are getting steady under way. Smartphones
are now fully popularized in mature markets, which means that the
smartphone industry has begun to shift from the incremental era
to the stock era. According to IDC, Huawei, OPPO and Xiaomi, the
top three vendors in the Chinese smartphone market account for
approximately 24.3% global market share in 2017. Under multiple
pressures of supply chain, brand premium and traditional distribution
channel, the Chinese smartphone market was moving toward brand
concentration in 2017. Domestic smartphone brands gradually gained
a share in the domestic mobile phone market with fierce competition
by leveraging on their advantage in respect of understanding the user
habits and consumption psychology of mobile phone consumers in
the PRC. Domestic premium mobile phone brands, riding on their own
technical advantage and strong market base, have gradually enlarged
their shares in the domestic market and consolidated their market
positions. Given their higher brand awareness and popularity along
with the surging demand for mid- to high-end smartphones, domestic
smartphone manufacturers have proactively rolled out more mid-to
high-end models embedded with advanced hardware and functions.
Smartphones with high-end hardware and full screens require lithium-
ion batteries with better quality and longer endurance.

The demand growth in the global lithium-ion battery market is
mainly from consumer electronics, which are featured by fast update
and short use cycle, giving rise to larger demands of consumers for
replacement of similar electronics each year, which will drive the
growth of demands for mobile phones, laptops, tablets and other
consumer electronics and further promote the continuing growth of
demands for relevant lithium-ion battery. At present, the demands
in the mobile phone lithium-ion battery market have entered into
a mature period. However, with the increasing rise in demands
by consumers for mobile internet, mobile payment and mobile
games, the overall demand for mobile phone lithium-ion battery will
maintain a stable growth in the future, while tablets and laptops will
be additional drivers for the demands for lithium-ion batteries. In
recent years, smart wearable devices have become a new hot spot
in consumption of electronics thanks to their rapid development and
diversities. In the future, the quantity of wearable devices is expected
to a continue to grow and there will be a significant increase in the
demands for batteries with a smaller volume and longer endurance.
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With respect to the development of smartphones, with the
introduction of new chips, smartphones continue to improve in terms
of hardware specifications and performance, and more smartphone
manufacturers are making innovations in system optimization,
which makes improving endurance of mobile phone battery become
more necessary. Smartphone manufacturers have urgent demands
for batteries with better endurance. However, due to the technical
restriction of mobile phone battery’s life, the most direct way to
improve battery’s life is to increase the capacity of battery. However,
to improve mobile phone endurance through increasing battery
capacity is a key problem to be first considered. At the same time,
in order to meet the current light and thin design, in the hope of
reducing the volume of batteries and increasing the capacity of
batteries, enhancing energy density has become another important
technology trend. Many technology makers are actively involved
in developing new types of lithium-ion batteries and researching
solutions to improve endurance of batteries, and they are also planned
to be applied to various types of consumer electronics products.
However, until now, no major breakthroughs have been made. Most
of the solutions are still not practical because of cost, longevity and
safety which is most important.

In recent years, the public has been concerned about the quality
issues related to smartphone batteries, and the public’'s attention to
battery safety rose to a new height. Due to the inability to change
the fundamental relationship between battery capacity and volume,
there is a technical limit to the lithium-ion battery for mobile phones
in terms of battery endurance. The introduction of new material
batteries may fundamentally change the current characteristics of
mobile phone battery, which can’t be solved by the smart phone
industry in the short term. Fast charging technology is an effective
solution to address the problem of mobile phone battery endurance in
the foreseeable future, and addressing the battery endurance problem
of user with higher speed has become a new direction under the slow
evolution of lithium-ion batteries. Fast charging technology has been
a relatively good solution to the battery cycle life loss and heating and
stability issues, and it will be applied to more mainstream 3C products
with the fast charging technology.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

SCUD Group engages in the development, manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules for smartphones, tablets and other smart
electronic products as well as the provision of all-round power supply
solutions for various consumer electronic products. The Group is in
the industry leading position among domestic professional lithium-
ion battery module manufacturers in terms of technology, production
capacity and sales volume. After years of independent R&D, SCUD
Group has mastered the core technology for manufacturing lithium-ion
batteries and possessing industry leading capacities for R&D of battery
management system, and overall R&D and manufacturing of battery
modules. The Group ensures good quality and product safety through
automated production and enjoys high quality customer resources.
The sound partnership with various international renowned bare
battery cell producers and telecommunications product manufacturers
has become a major strength of the Group in developing its lithium-
ion battery business.

The current operations of SCUD Group comprise its ODM business and
own-brand business. The ODM business mainly supplies lithium-ion
battery modules to manufacturers of well-known telecommunication
brands at home and abroad, while the own-brand business mainly
engages in the sale of power banks and mobile phone accessories
under “SCUDFRERR” brand in the PRC. At present, approximately
84% of the Group’s revenue is derived from the ODM business with
major customers of renowned smartphone and tablet manufacturers
at home and abroad which enjoy stable shares in the end market. The
ODM business is expected to maintain a stable growth and continue
to drive our Group’s sales and profit growth in the future.

During the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the
"Review Period”), the Group’s consolidated turnover amounted
to approximately RMB5,801.6 million (2016: RMB6,061.5 million),
decreased by approximately 4.3% compared with 2016. The profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB21.1 million (2016: Loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company RMB119.0 million). Basic and diluted earnings per share
was approximately RMB1.94 cents (2016: Basic and diluted losses
per share RMB10.91 cents). The ODM business recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB4,883.1 million (2016: RMB4,788.4 million),
accounting for approximately 84.2% (2016: 79.0%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover. The own-brand business recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB161.7 million (2016: RMB680.4 million), accounting
for approximately 2.8% (2016: 11.2%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover. The bare battery cell business recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB248.2 million (2016: RMB286.1 million), accounting
for approximately 4.3% (2016: 4.7%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover.
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ODM Business

The Group's ODM business mainly focuses on providing all-round
power supply solutions to manufacturers of renowned smartphone
and tablet brands at home and abroad. Capitalising on its experience
in manufacturing lithium-ion batteries and R&D on application
technology, the Group’s experienced ODM product development team
is able to jointly develop, design and optimise battery solutions that
best align with customer needs. Backed by powerful manufacturing
capacity, reliable quality assurance system, premium bare battery
cells, state-of-the-art protection circuit design and precise production
process control, SCUD has secured a leading position in the industry.
The Group attaches great importance to the safety of batteries for
electronic products. In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance of
battery, it is required to conduct more rigorous review of the safety of
batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered meet the high safety
standards.

The Group is currently a supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for
well-known branded smartphone and tablet manufacturers including
Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Xiaomi, Lenovo, ZTE, Tian Power, Nubia,
Samsung and TCL. Fuelled by strong demands from the existing and
new customers, the ODM business maintained a stable increase in
2017. With a view to fulfilling the current orders and the demand for
continuous expansion in production and operating scale, the Group
has invested more resources in its business, such as the introduction
of additional automated and semi-automated equipment to enhance
productivity and further improve the quality management system.

The lithium-ion battery products supplied by the ODM business mainly
consist of original smartphone batteries customised for smartphone
of various brands (“ODM mobile phone batteries”) and original
power banks customised for clients (“ODM power banks”). The
Company also supplies various kind of motive battery. During the
Review Period, ODM mobile phone batteries recorded sales volume of
approximately 163.3 million pieces (2016: 187.1 million pieces) and
turnover of approximately RMB4,725.0 million (2016: RMB4,540.5
million), decreased by approximately 12.7% and increased by
approximately 4.1% year-on-year respectively. In 2017, ODM mobile
phone batteries contributed approximately 96.8% (2016: 94.8%) of
turnover of the ODM business. ODM power bank contributed turnover
of approximately RMB128.8 million (2016: RMB164.3 million) to the
ODM business segment. During the Review Period, the ODM business
segment recorded net profit of approximately RMB48.5 million (2016:
net loss RMB118.9 million).
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In 2017, the Group’s ODM business continued to benefit from the
growth in sales volume of smartphones due to their surging popularity
in the PRC, whereas mid-to high-end smartphones are in greater need
of premium batteries with better performance in safety, stability and
endurance. “SCUDFRZERE"” has been enjoying high reputation in the
lithium-ion battery module sector in terms of safety standard and high
quality. With thorough knowledge in lithium-ion battery performance
and extensive experience in battery module design, the Group is able
to supply high quality lithium-ion batteries customised for different
types of smartphones and tablets. Looking ahead, the ODM business
fuelled by strong demands from the existing and new customers
is well positioned to support the Group to sharpen its edge in the
smartphone and tablet battery market.

Own-brand Business

The own-brand business mainly consists of domestic sale of various
kind of lithium-ion battery products under our “SCUDR F K"
brand. During the Review Period, the own-brand business recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB161.7 million (2016:
RMB680.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately 76.2%
year-on-year. Own-brand power banks recorded sales volume
of approximately 1.3 million pieces (2016: 6.7 million pieces),
representing a decrease of approximately 80.2% year-on-year and
contributing turnover of approximately RMB80.2 million (2016:
RMB396.0 million). Own-brand mobile phone batteries recorded
sales volume of approximately 0.7 million pieces (2016: 1.7 million
pieces), representing a decrease of approximately 58.8% year-on-year
and contributing turnover of approximately RMB20.0 million (2016:
RMB31.5 million). During the Review Period, revenue of approximately
RMB41.7 million (2016: RMB181.4 million) was derived from sales
of power management module manufactured by the Group. During
the Review Period, the own-brand business recorded net profit
of approximately RMB3.2 million (2016: net loss of approximately
RMB63.1 million).
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The rapid growth and higher performance requirements of smart
electronic products promoted the development of power supply
technologies. In recent years, power banks have experienced rapid
development. “SCUDRZERE” brand is renowned in the industry for
its years of experience in manufacturing mobile phone batteries and
the safety and quality of its battery products. Product quality and
safety remain as the priorities for power banks under the “SCUDRE
BR" brand. The "SCUDMERR" branded power banks, which are well
received by customers, have secured a considerable market share in
China at present.

With the intelligent process, it is estimated that the market demand
for 3C lithium-ion batteries will continue to grow in 2018. SCUD
as a lithium-ion battery company will grasp the development trend
of the market, focusing on the development of emerging electronic
opportunities, fully tapping the emerging market demand for
electronic products, research and development of high-safety, high-
quality 3C lithium-ion battery. The Group will actively invest in R&D
of lithium-ion battery application technology, seeking to promote
application of various lithium-ion batteries in a wider range of
products. Extending the application of lithium-ion batteries from the
current focus of smart electronic products to other areas will not only
meet demands of different customer groups, but also lay a broader
market base for the Group’s future growth.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB5,801.6 million (2016: RMB6,061.5 million),
decreased by approximately 4.3% as compared to that in 2016. Gross
profit for the Group was approximately RMB409.3 million (2016:
RMB557.8 million), decreased by approximately 26.6% against 2016.
The profit for the year and profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company were approximately RMB19.9 million (2016: loss for
the year RMB124.8 million) and approximately RMB21.1 million (2016:
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company RMB119.0
million) respectively, increased by approximately 115.9% and 117.8%
respectively. The Group recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB68.3
million (2016: LBITDA RMB96.2 million) for the year, increased by
approximately 171.0% as compared to 2016. Basic and diluted
earnings per share was approximately RMB1.94 cents (2016: Basic and
diluted losses per share RMB10.91 cents).

Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB4,883.1
million (2016: RMB4,788.4 million) was generated from the ODM
business segment, which accounted for approximately 84.2%
(2016: 79.0%) of the Group's consolidated turnover. Turnover of
approximately RMB161.7 million (2016: RMB680.4 million) was
generated from the own-brand business segment, which accounted
for approximately 2.8% (2016: 11.2%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover. Turnover of approximately RMB248.2 million (2016:
RMB286.1 million) was contributed by the bare battery cell business
segment, which accounted for approximately 4.3% (2016: 4.7%) of
the Group's consolidated turnover.

Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB4,745.0 million
(2016: RMB4,572.0 million) came from mobile phone batteries
which accounted for approximately 81.8% (2016: 75.4%) of the
Group’s consolidated turnover. Sales of power banks and power
management module amounted to approximately RMB209.0 million
(2016: RMB560.2 million) and RMB41.7 million (2016: RMB181.4
million) respectively, which accounted for approximately 3.6%
(2016: 9.2%) and 0.7% (2016: 3.0%) of the Group's consolidated
turnover respectively. Sales of approximately RMB248.2 million (2016:
RMB286.1 million) came from bare battery cells, which accounted
for approximately 4.3% (2016: 4.7%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover.
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Segment Results

For the ODM business segment, total revenue contributed to the
Group during the Review Period increased by approximately 2.0% to
approximately RMB4,883.1 million (2016: RMB4,788.4 million). During
the Review Period, the sales volume of ODM mobile phone batteries
decreased by approximately 12.7% to approximately 163.3 million
pieces (2016: 187.1 million pieces) and the turnover of ODM mobile
phone batteries increased by approximately 3.9% to approximately
RMB4,725.1 million (2016: RMB4,540.5 million), which accounted for
approximately 96.8% (2016: 94.8%) of the Group’s ODM sales. Sales
volume of ODM power banks was approximately 1.8 million pieces
(2016: 2.5 million pieces). Sales of ODM power banks amounted to
approximately RMB128.8 million (2016: RMB164.3 million). Sales of
ODM motive batteries contributed approximately RMB14.6 million
(2016: RMB59.9 million) to the Group’s consolidated revenue. Sales
of ODM power banks and ODM motive batteries accounted for
approximately 2.6% (2016: 3.4%) and 0.3% (2016: 1.3%) of the
Group’s ODM sales respectively.

For the own-brand business segment, the total revenue contributing
to the Group during the Review Period decreased by approximately
76.2% to approximately RMB161.7 million (2016: RMB680.4 million).
During the Review Period, sales volume of own-brand power banks
decreased by approximately 80.2% to approximately 1.3 million
pieces (2016: 6.7 million pieces). Sales of own-brand power banks
amounted to approximately RMB80.2 million (2016: RMB396.0
million), accounted for approximately 49.6% (2016: 58.2%) of the
Group’s own brand sales. The sales volume of own-brand mobile
phone batteries dropped by approximately 58.8% to approximately
0.7 million pieces (2016: 1.7 million pieces) and the turnover of own-
brand mobile phone batteries decreased by approximately 36.5% to
approximately RMB20.0 million (2016: RMB31.5 million), accounted
for approximately 12.4% (2016: 4.6%) of the Group’s own-brand
sales. As for other own-brand products, sales of power management
module accounted for approximately 25.8% (2016: 26.7%) of the
Group’s own-brand sales, contributed approximately RMB41.7 million
(2016: RMB181.4 million) to the Group’s own-brand sales.
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For the bare battery cell business segment, approximately RMB248.2
million (2016: RMB286.1 million) was contributed to the Group's
consolidated turnover in 2017, which represents a drop by
approximately 13.2% as compared to that in 2016. The bare battery
cell business segment recorded net loss of approximately RMB3.4
million in 2017 (2016: RMB17.7 million).

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB5,392.3
million in 2017 (2016: RMB5,503.6 million), representing a decrease
of approximately 2.0% as compared to 2016. The decrease in cost
of sales in 2017 was in line with the decrease in sales during the
Review Period. Direct materials, direct labour and other production
costs accounted for approximately 90.3% (2016: 88.1%), 5.5% (2016:
5.5%) and 4.2% (2016: 6.4%) of the cost of sales.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2017 decreased to
approximately 7.1% (2016: 9.2%) as a result of a decline in gross
profit margin for the ODM business segment during the Review
Period.

For the ODM business, the overall gross profit margin in 2017 was
approximately 6.8% (2016: 9.8%). For the own-brand business, the
overall gross profit margin in 2017 was approximately 20.2% (2016:
13.4%). For the bare battery cell business, the gross profit margin in
2017 was approximately 8.5% (2016: 5.0%).

Other revenue of approximately RMB115.9 million (2016: RMB63.1
million) in 2017 mainly comprised of the reversal of impairment losses
on trade and other receivables previously recognised, bank interest
income and government grants. The increase in other revenue was
mainly attributable to the recognition of a reversal of impairment loss
on trade and other receivables amounted to approximately RMB75.9
million during the Review Period.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB86.2 million
(2016: RMB72.5 million) accounted for approximately 1.5% (2016:
1.2%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2017. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of entertainment expenses,
advertising and promotion, transportation expenses, office expenses
and staff salaries and welfare. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in office expenses,
transportation expenses and products maintenance expenses.
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Administrative expenses of approximately RMB289.2 million (2016:
RMB367.6 million) accounted for approximately 5.0% (2016: 6.1%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2017. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff salaries and welfare, bank
charges, legal and professional fees, office supplies, depreciation and
rental expenses. The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly
attributable to the decrease in R&D expenses, legal and professional
fees and staff salaries during the Review Period.

Other operating expenses of approximately RMB84.8 million
(2016: RMB392.5 million) mainly comprised of the impairment loss
recognised on trade and other receivables as well as the write off
of inventories, property, plant and equipment and trade and other
receivables. The decrease in other operating expenses was mainly due
to the significant reduction in the impairment loss recognised on trade
and other receivables in 2017.

Finance costs of approximately RMB44.6 million (2016: RMB26.6
million) mainly represent interest on bank borrowings. The increase in
finance costs was mainly due to the increase in interest incurred on
discounted notes receivable during the Review Period.

Profit/(loss) Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2017, the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB21.1 million (2016: Loss attributable
to owners of the Company RMB119.0 million). The loss incurred in
2016 was mainly due to a significant amount of impairment provision
made for trade and other receivables was recognised in 2016. The
impairment loss recognised on trade and other receivables in 2017
was significantly decreased as compared to 2016.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group’s funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain
a diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure.
The Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt
profile, and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives
by its centralized treasury function. In order to maintain financial
flexibility and adequate liquidity for the Group’s operations, potential
investments and growth plans, the Group has built a strong base
of funding resources and will keep exploring cost-efficient ways of
financing.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December
2017 was approximately RMB146.3 million, principally denominated
in Renminbi, decreased by approximately RMB24.0 million (at 31
December 2016: RMB170.3 million). The decrease in cash and cash
equivalent was mainly due to the increase in pledged bank deposits
from approximately RMB553.0 million as at 31 December 2016 to
approximately RMB645.4 million as at 31 December 2017. The Group
recorded a net cash inflow from operating activities of approximately
RMB132.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: net
cash outflow from operating activities RMB112.9 million).

The Group's borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi,
which were outstanding as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately RMB421.2 million (at 31 December 2016: RMB430.4
million) were carried at floating interest rates. A total of approximately
RMB416.0 of the interest-bearing borrowings will fall due during the
next 12 months after the end of the Review Period. There was no
particular seasonality of the Group’s borrowing requirements. Please
refer to Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements for detail on
the maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings. The Group monitored
capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt of the Group divided
by total equity of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio of the Group
expressed as a percentage of interest bearing borrowings over the
total equity of approximately RMB937.4 million (at 31 December 2016:
RMB910.6 million) was approximately 44.9% as at 31 December 2017
(at 31 December 2016: 47.3%). Bank deposits pledged for banking
facilities as at 31 December 2017 was approximately RMB645.4
million (at 31 December 2016: RMB553.0 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.2 times (at 31 December 2016: 1.2 times) based on current
assets of approximately RMB3,451.9 million (at 31 December
2016: RMB3,233.1 million) and current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,968.9 million (at 31 December 2016: RMB2,767.6 million).
Trade and notes receivable turnover days were approximately 106 days
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to approximately
87 days for the year ended 31 December 2016. Inventory turnover
days were approximately 35 days for the year ended 31 December
2017 as compared to approximately 37 days for the year ended
31 December 2016. Trade and notes payable turnover days were
approximately 160 days for the year ended 31 December 2017 as
compared to approximately 145 days for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately RMB483.0 million, increased by approximately 3.8%
from the balance of approximately RMB465.5 million recorded as
at 31 December 2016. Net assets as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately RMB937.4 million, increased by approximately 2.9%
from the balance of approximately RMB910.6 million as at 31
December 2016.

Change in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries

The Group made no significant investment nor did it make any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the Review
Period.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, bank loans of approximately RMB279.3
million (at 31 December 2016: RMB163.4 million) were secured by
the Group's assets and bank loans of approximately RMB131.0 million
(2016: RMB251.7 million) were unsecured.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December
2017 amounting to approximately RMB10.1 million (at 31 December
2016: RMB9.4 million) was mainly attributed to acquisition of
equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not provide any form of
guarantee for any company outside the Group and did not involve
in any material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent
liabilities was required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share
capital of the Company.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2017, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has
certain bank balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese
Yen and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group’s total
assets is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of
exchange risk is required and no financial instruments were used for
hedging purposes during 2017. Nevertheless, the management will
continue to monitor the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and will
take prudent measures against currency exchange risks as and when it
is appropriate.

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition and
Disposal

There were no significant investment held as at 31 December 2017,
and there were no material acquisition and disposals of subsidiary
during the Review Period.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

The Group does not have any concrete plan for material investments
or purchasing any material capital assets for the coming year.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option
Scheme

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 3,501 full-time
employees (2016: 4,197). The salaries of the Directors and the
Group’s employees were determined by reference to their personal
performance, professional qualification, industry experience of the
employee and relevant market trends. The Group ensures all levels
of employees are paid competitively within market standard and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the
framework of the Group's salary, incentives and bonus scheme.
The management reviews the remuneration policy of the Group
on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance of the
employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. According to the
relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the related local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the
mandatory provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in
accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

22

S EE /= By

P20174F » REBETEUARBETEERRZS -
REEVEREREEMEEREANERNRSEREH
EEELEARARTYE BEASEHEAETUE
7T BERBITABMNMBRITEL  BIEAEEN
MEELPIER EERADELHFINERR - B
PER2017F WEE AR5 TE/EE - Bt
EIREREEERAEERIINERR - WIEEE R
Y S5 71N [ F ) B 1B I ©

EXARERE  EAUBREE

M2017F12A31H » EFFEEHERKE KA
BRI EER AR ERNREXHEHB AT -

ERREFREFEEZRRTE
AEERKREYBEMEREARELBAERE
AEEMEETTE -

B - FMEEKBREE

M2017F12A318 - R&EBE B350 2B EE
(2016%F : 41974%) - EERAEEEENTH M
K2EEMEEBMMBEARIRE  FEERK - TRKR
LM BEETE A5EBERFAERAEESD
FEHFATEKE  MASEERELAEENT
& RERIEATETEAERERENKRBELEEED
HE - EREETHRIAEENFBCR - WS
BEMIEXRE - EEHFIEEFS 20 FK
A RAEGRE - BEBEREBTHEBEZEER
REEDLHEAMEBBRTEEL LS RES
2 BEENKRS  BERBR(BEEERR) K%
RERIERE AEBIFIZRBAENEABSFE
&G (BB EDIFE485E) AR BEELHAFEATE
SETE -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER RN

The Company also adopted a share option scheme to reward eligible
participants (including directors and employees of the Group) for their
contributions to the Group. On 19 June 2014, the Company offered
to grant share options to a number of eligible participants to subscribe
for up to 80,000,000 shares with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in
the issued share capital of the Company pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 3 December 2006. Among the
80,000,000 share options, 21,200,000 share options were granted to
the executive Directors of the Company.

All share options granted on 19 June 2014 have expired as at 31
December 2017.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has
been suspended with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 26 March 2015.

Resignation of auditor

On 25 March 2015, the Company was informed by its former auditor
Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants (“Moore Stephens”) that
based on preliminary observations there were several inconsistencies
in the financial data of the Group while they were carrying out the
annual audit for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014,
and that since the investigation and verification of the inconsistencies
might go beyond the scope of work of general audit, it requested
the Company to perform other additional procedures, including
engaging an independent third party to undertake investigation of the
inconsistencies that it had observed.

On 2 April 2015, Moore Stephens resigned as the independent auditor
of the Company. In the letter of resignation dated 2 April 2015 to
the Board and the audit committee of the Company, Moore Stephens
stated that during the performance of the audit of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014, it observed certain inconsistencies
(the “Matters”). Details of the Matters are as follows:

(@) Moore Stephens were unable to verify all value-added tax
invoices tested in their sales transaction test through the online
verification system;

(b) Moore Stephens were unable to verify a late adjustment debiting
accounts receivable and crediting bank balances. The bank
balances as at 31 December 2014 after putting through this
adjustment was inconsistent with the balances shown on the
bank confirmations Moore Stephens obtained from the banks
during the audit; and
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() Moore Stephens were unable to verify a late adjustment
debiting sales, income tax payable, value-added-tax payable and
crediting bank balances and intercompany current account. This
adjustment was inconsistent with the tax returns, tax payment
advice and bank confirmations Moore Stephens obtained and the
sales ledger that was made available for their testing during the
audit.

Establishment of independent board committee and
appointment of independent third party investigator

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 29 May 2015,
the Board resolved to establish an independent board committee (“IBC")
comprising independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang, to investigate
the Matters. Dr. Loke Yu was appointed the chairman of the IBC.
Grant Thornton Advisory Services Limited (“Grant Thornton”), an
independent third party investigator, was engaged to investigate the
Matters.

Key findings of independent investigation and
recommendation of the IBC

According to the report of the investigation by Grant Thornton, the
cause of the incident was mainly that Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Battery”), a subsidiary of the Group engaging in own-brand business
of the Group, had excess recall and incurred a significant loss in
connection with such excess recall when it implemented a plan to
recall those own-brand battery products of specified series purchased
from Scud Battery by 31 designated distributors.

It was discovered that the financial data of Scud Battery for the
financial year commencing from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2013 and the financial year commencing from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014 contained misstatements. Furthermore, it was found
in the investigation that Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
mainly engaging in ODM business of the Group, had omitted to
declare income tax in the financial year commencing from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2013 and the financial year commencing from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014.

After reviewing the findings of the investigation by Grant Thornton,
the IBC made a series of recommendations to the Board, including,
among other things, engaging an independent third party consultant
to review the internal control systems and procedures of the
Company.
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For further details of the key findings of the investigation and the
recommendations of the IBC, please see the announcement of the
Company dated 14 June 2016.

Appointment of BDO Financial Services Limited as
internal control consultant

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2016,
the Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited (“Internal
Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant to conduct
a review of the internal control systems and procedures of the
Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").

The Internal Control Review was completed. On 30 November 2017,
the Internal Control Consultant issued its report on the Internal
Control Review. The Internal Control Consultant was satisfied that the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
systems in relation to the companies within the Group that are the
subject of the Internal Control Review and all the business areas of
the Group as at 31 May 2017.

For further details of the report issued by the Internal Control
Consultant, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report and the announcement of the Company dated 30
November 2017.

BOARD’S VIEW ON AUDITOR’'S QUALIFIED
OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Review
Period were audited by BDO Limited (the “Auditor”). The Auditor
expressed qualified opinion (the “Qualified Opinion”) on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the Review Period, the details of
which are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual
report. The Board is of the view that, on the following basis, the issue
underlying the basis for the Qualified Opinion have been addressed or
resolved:
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Opening inventories of the comparative year

Given the Auditor was appointed in August 2016, the Auditor did
not attend the physical stock take conducted by the Group of the
opening inventory balance of the comparative year, which is the year
ended 31 December 2016. The Board considers that this was an ad
hoc consequence to the unusual audit delay for the comparative
year. Subsequent to their appointment in August 2016, the Auditor
attended and observed the physical stock take conducted by the
Group of the inventory balances as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2017, and the Auditor raised no concern on such inventory
balances. Please refer to the Independent Auditor’'s Report in the
Company’s annual report for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 and in this annual report for further details.

RESUMPTION OF TRADING CONDITIONS

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 13 July
2015, the Stock Exchange notified the Company that the following
conditions would apply before the grant of any request by the
Company for the resumption of trading of the shares in the Company:

(i) completion of the investigation of the Matters by Grant
Thornton, disclosure of the findings of such investigation,
the Company having addressed the issues identified in the
investigation and if necessary, further investigation with
appropriate scope;

(i) demonstration to the satisfaction of the Stock Exchange that
the Company has put in place adequate financial reporting
procedures and internal control systems to meet its obligations
under the Listing Rules;

(iii) publication of all outstanding financial results required by the
Listing Rules and the Company having addressed any audit
qualifications; and

(iv) informing the market of all material information.

For further details of the above initial conditions of resumption of
trading, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13
July 2015.

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 1 August 2018,
the Stock Exchange notified the Company on 27 July 2018 that an
additional condition would apply before the grant of any request
by the Company for the resumption of trading of the shares in the
Company, being the Company’s demonstration that the Directors
meet the standard of competence commensurate with their position
as directors of a listed issuer to fulfill duties of skill, care and diligence
as required under Rule 3.08 of the Listing Rules.

For further details of the additional resumption condition and the
status of fulfillment of the initial resumption conditions, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 1 August 2018.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fang Jin, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Group, and is a senior economist. Mr. Fang is a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a co-founder of the Group which was founded
in December 2006.

Mr. Fang is mainly responsible for the Group’s development planning,
operational and corporate investment decision-making and brand
strategy. Mr. Fang has been leading the Board for collective decision-
making for years and has set a very clear direction for SCUD’s product
management and branding. He commenced his career at the age
of 18, and has accumulated over thirty years of experience in the
mobile phone accessories industry and related operation management.
He has very keen discernment and vision on the exploration of
branding strategies and the marketability of new products. Prior to
the establishment of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited in
1997, Mr. Fang was engaged, as a sole proprietor, in the sale of
communication products and accessories in the PRC. In December
1996, he established Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong) Company Limited
in conjunction with partners including Mr. Lin Chao (and established
Scud Electronics in October 1997). Mr. Fang has received several
awards including:

2003  National Advanced Individual On Projects of End Users’
Satisfaction

2004  Excellent Runners of Technological Private Enterprises in
China

2004  Fujian Top Ten Venture Heroes in the Commercial Sector

2005  China Top Ten Excellent Entrepreneurs in Brand Construction

2005  The Mudell’s World Executive Awards for Achievement in
Business and Economy

2006  Annual Excellent Persons in Fujian Economy

2006  National Excellent Managers of Users' Satisfaction
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Mr. Fang is the sole director and shareholder of each of Swift Joy
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
Right Grand Holdings Limited, a shareholder of the Company. As
at 31 December 2017, Mr. Fang was interested in an aggregate of
514,338,000 shares, representing approximately 47.19% of the issued
share capital of the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO").

Guo Quan Zeng, aged 57, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, and is an engineer. He is responsible
for the management of the Group’s daily operations. He joined the
Group in July 1997. He had been the manager of the research and
development department, sales department, planning department,
production department and quality control departments of Scud
Electronics, and had been director, vice general manager and vice
president of Scud Electronics. He is very experienced in front-line
management in business development, brand promotion, product
research and development and quality control. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Guo was a lieutenant commander engineer of the PRC
navy mainly responsible for establishing and maintaining wireless
telecommunication systems. Mr. Guo has over thirty years of
experience in the research and development and quality management
in electronic products. Mr. Guo graduated from the Navy Senior
Electronic Engineering School with a bachelor’s degree in radio
telecommunication engineering in 1983.

Mr. Guo is the sole director and shareholder of Cheer View Holdings
Limited, which is a shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2017, Mr. Guo was interested in 18,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 1.65% of the issued share capital of the Company,
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Feng Ming Zhu, aged 54, is an executive Director and vice president
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the development of
the Group's strategy. Mr. Feng holds a Bachelor degree from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics in China. He joined the Group in
March 2007 and served as the director of administration of the Group
until October 2011.
SMT Business Unit before becoming the vice president of the Group

He then served as the general manager of SCUD

in April 2013. Mr. Feng is currently a Specialist of Fujian JingXin Think
Tank Industry Research. He was appointed as an executive Director on
25 August 2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Feng did not have any
equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Li, aged 58, was an executive Director since 31 December
2010 and has been redesignated as a non-executive Director since
25 August 2016. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in October 2003 and
had been the deputy general manager of Scud Electronics. He then
served as the general manager of Scud Electronics until December
2017. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang had served as manager in
the industrial design department of Fujian Start Network, as manager
of the research and development department, of the accessories
department and of the sales department of Fujian Communications
and Broadcasting Industrial Company. He has more than thirty years of
experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Zhang graduated
from the Mechanical Engineering Faculty of Jiangxi University in 1978.
He was granted the qualification of practising as an engineer in 1992
and was granted the qualification of practising as a senior engineer in
1999. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Zhang did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Hou Li, aged 59, is a non-executive Director of the Company and a
member of the Resumption Committee of the Company. Mr. Hou is
a senior partner of Dentons Law Offices (Fuzhou). Mr. Hou holds a
Bachelor of Law degree from East China University of Political Science
and Law and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Xiamen University in China. He is a qualified lawyer in China and
has over 20 years of experience in legal and corporate governance
matters. Mr. Hou also engages in several community services and
had served as member in Commission of Legislative Affairs of Fujian
Province Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, director in Fujian Province Joint-Stock Enterprises
Association and Fujian Province Securities Association, arbitrator
in Fuzhou Arbitration Commission and chairman of Law Office of
Fujian Committee of the Revolutionary Committee of The Chinese
Kuomintang. He was appointed as a non-executive Director on 25
August 2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Hou did not have any
equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director and Chairman of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption
Committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over 42 years of experience
in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial
consultancy and corporate management. He holds a Master of
Business Administration Degree from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia
and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree from the University
of South Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor,
an independent non-executive Director, is his nephew-in-law.
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Dr. Loke currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of the following companies whose shares are listed on The Stock
Chiho
Environmental Group Limited (formerly known as Chiho-Tiande Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 976), CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited) (Stock
Code: 445), China Household Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 692),
Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005), Tianhe Chemicals Group
Limited (Stock Code: 1619), Tianjin Development Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 882), V1 Group Limited (Stock Code: 82), Forebase
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2310), Lamtex Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1041), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding
Company Limited (Stock Code: 3626), China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 39), Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:2882), Zhong An Real Estate
Limited (Stock Code: 672), Zhenro Properties Group Limited (Stock
Code: 6158) and TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
515). He joined the Company as an independent non-executive
Director on 14 May 2009. As at 31 December 2017, Dr. Loke did not
have any equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO.

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”):

Wang Jing Zhong, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption Committee of
the Company. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer and graduated from East
China University of Science & Technology with a Bachelor’s degree in
chemistry. He has more than fifteen years of management experience
in the battery industry. He had served as the engineer-in-charge of
the household products division in the Ministry of Light Industries,
as deputy department head of the Campus Department of the
Education Bureau, as the deputy officer-in-charge of the Household
Products Office, and as the secretary general of China Battery Industry
Association. He is currently the executive vice-president of China
Battery Industry Association. Mr. Wang joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2006. As at 31
December 2017, Mr. Wang did not have any equity interest in the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Wang Jian Zhang, aged 72, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer and graduated from
Xi'an Military Institute of Telecommunication Engineering. He has
more than twenty-five years of experience in electronic technology
and management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang had served
as deputy director of the Promotion Division of Comprehensive
Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics Industry, director
of the Comprehensive Planning and the Investment Division under
Ministry of Mechanical and Electrical Industry, director-general of the
Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics,
and director-general of the Comprehensive Planning Department
under the Ministry of Information Industry. Mr. Wang joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3 December
2006. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 41, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption
Committee of the Company. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison
Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of
Engineering degree in Electronic Engineering from University of
Warwick in the United Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in
Computer Science from University of London — Imperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine. He is a member of and holds a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) certificate issued by The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is a nephew-in-
law of Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-executive director of
CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China
Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited) (Stock Code: 445), Best Food
Holding Company Limited (Stock Code: 1488), Lee & Man Chemical
Company Limited (Stock Code: 746) and Matrix Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1005) and as company secretary of China Life Insurance
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628), whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2016. As at
31 December 2017, Mr. Heng did not have any equity interest in the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 41, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung worked as an auditor in an
international accounting firm. He has more than eighteen years of
experience in the accounting field. He has a Bachelor’'s degree in
Business Administration and Accounting. Mr. Yeung joined the Group
in September 2005.

Jiang Zhi Cheng, aged 41, is the human resources director of the
Group. Mr. Jiang is the person primarily in charge of the human
resources system of the Group and has over ten years of experience
in human resources management and operation management. He
is specialized in training, career development, talent management,
performance management, leadership development and organization
development. Mr. Jiang graduated from Xiamen University with
a degree in accounting in 1999 and from Central China Normal
University with a degree in business administration in 2016. Mr.
Jiang is an intermediate economist and grade 2 human resources
professional and currently pursues the executive MBA program
in Northwest University. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in 2002 and
successively served as the human resources supervisor and human
resources manager. In 2006, he was appointed as the human
resources director of the Group.

Zhou Xuan Xiang, aged 48, is the materials director of the Group.
Mr. Zhou is responsible for the Group's layout and development
of supply chain and materials system integration and management
and has nearly twenty years of experience in terms of materials
and management. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Department of
Business Administration of Chengdu University with a degree in
business administration in 1992. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in
2004 and successively served as the supervisor and deputy manager
of procurement department. In 2006, he was appointed as the
materials director of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Zhou served as the director of Chengdu Office of Sichuan Foguang
Pharmaceutical Factory and person in charge of materials division
of Top Victory Electronics (Fujian) Company Limited. Mr. Zhou has
successively accepted training of Material Requirement Planning (MRP),
ISO9000, I1ISO14000 and MBA remote education of Peking University;
Carnegie Motivational Leadership training and Carnegie Director of
Administration training, and has extensive experience in materials
management.
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Chen Yao Shu, aged 39, is the information management director
of the Group. He is responsible for the planning and integration of
the Group's internal information system and information resources
and has over ten years of experience in the field of information
system of manufacturing industry. Mr. Chen graduated from Hubei
Industry Technology Institute with a degree in architectural design
in 2000 and from Dalian University of Technology with a degree
in business administration in 2014. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
2002 and successively served as the network supervisor, deputy
manager of information management department and manager of
information management department. In 2008, he was appointed
as the information management director of the Group. A number of
informatisation projects led by Mr. Chen were selected as excellent
cases by professional institutions. He was awarded the titles including
National Excellent Information Director by professional institutions in
2007, 2009 and 2014.

Xue Chun Mu, aged 50, is the risk management director of the
Group. He is responsible for design of internal control and risk
management procedures and systems and guidance and supervision
of the execution thereof, including monitoring and supervising
the effectiveness of procedures and systems and participating in
the development of risk countermeasures. Mr. Xue has over ten
years of experience in internal control and risk management. He
graduated from Jimei Finance and Economics College with a degree
in accounting education in 1990 and then pursued a MBA program
in European University of Ireland and graduated therefrom. Mr. Xue
is an accountant, International Certified Senior Public Accountant,
International Certified Management Accountant, Internal Control Risk
Manager, Senior International Finance Manager and Certified Senior
Enterprise Risk Manager. Mr. Xue successively served as the manager
of Management Accounting Department and manager of Investment
Management Department of the Group from 2002 to 2004. He re-
joined the Group in 2009 and served as the audit director. In 2016,
he was appointed as the risk management director of the Group.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Xue served as an audit executive in
the Education Bureau, head of Management Accounting Department,
manager of Cost Management Department, manager of Finance
Department and finance control director.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SCUD Group
Limited (the
“Group”) presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial

“Company” and, together with its subsidiaries, the
statements for the financial year from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017 (“Review Period”).

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections
of this annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’
report.

A discussion of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
can be found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
section of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 136.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to preserve cash for the working
capital requirement of the business.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during 2017 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during 2017 in the share capital are set out
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2017 comprised the retained earnings, other
reserves and share premium of approximately RMB818.6 million (2016:
RMB790.5 million).

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the Review Period and up to the
date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Fang Jin (Chairman)
Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Feng Ming Zhu

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Zhang Li
Hou Li

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong
Wang Jian Zhang
Heng Ja Wei Victor

According to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. According to Article 86(3) of the articles of
association of the Company, any Director appointed by the Directors either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo
Quan Zeng, Mr. Feng Meng Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr. Hou Li, Dr. Loke Yu,
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang lJian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Feng Meng Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr.
Hou Li, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr.
Heng Ja Wei Victor, all being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. There are no
service contracts for any of the Directors who are nominated for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting which are not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS® AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the relevant interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO"), which are required to be notified to the Company and The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO)) or were required pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or were
required, pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company):

Name of Director Capacity

EEpA 514

Fang Jin Corporate interest (Note 1)
ok NEREz (M)

Guo Quan Zeng
R

Corporate interest (Note 2)
NEEz (MEE2)

EENRBETHRABZKRGER KX
B

M2017F12A318 - EFRGEETTRABRARAH
SEFWAREE(TEREBENETNEEZSF R
HAE GG FFH R EEED ) EXVE) 2 E R &5
AR R EHFPREEREES RIAEGEAEXV
BETRSABBAMANCREEMERSMERA
RI(TEEZFT ) RS A B (BIEIRIEEH &
ERAIBRBIECEFERAEENRRINE) - &
R E RN IRES KRB RAE3S2EEF 2 EF L MA
AR FTES EMARA( EMBRA D EHES
HITHEFR GG BR AR REZATH#EZH
R SAR T ¢

HR(AQAEAEREAMEIBIZEER):

Percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of the
issued ordinary Company
shares held (Note 3)
EARARER&T

e 8T RAEZBEDL
LZERHAE (BF3E3)
514,338,000 47.19%
18,000,000 1.65%
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Note 1:  This figure represents (i) 403,770,000 shares directly held

by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and (ii) 110,568,000 shares
directly held by Right Grand Holdings Limited, both of
which are companies with their entire issued share capital
held by Mr. Fang Jin.

Note 2:  These shares are directly held by Cheer View Holdings

Limited, whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr.
Guo Quan Zeng.

Note 3:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2017, i.e. 1,090,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives
or their close associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as at 31 December 2017.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 3 December 2006
for the primary purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have
contributed to the Group and encouraging eligible participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
include directors and employees of the Group and any directors
and employees of the Group, advisors, consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint
venture business partners, promoters or service providers of the
Company whom the board of directors of the Group considers to
have contributed or will contribute to the Group. Under the Scheme,
the board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme was adopted
for a period of 10 years and expired on 2 December 2016 and the
Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of
directors of the Company may at any time terminate the Scheme without
prejudice to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and
which remain unexpired immediately prior to such termination. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 86,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7.89% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this annual report, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior
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approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing in
aggregate over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such
grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders
(voting by way of poll). Subject to the terms of the Scheme, an offer
of grant of an option will remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participant for 28 days from the date of the offer. Upon the grant of
an option a consideration of HK$1 is payable and the relevant option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during the exercise period to be determined by the Board, which
shall not exceed 10 years. The exercise price of the options shall be
determined by the board of directors of the Company in its absolute
discretion but will in any event not be less than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
an offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business
day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 preceding business days of the day of the offer of an option;
and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

On 19 June 2014, the Company offered to grant share options to
a number of eligible participants to subscribe for up to 80,000,000
shares with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital
of the Company pursuant to the Scheme. Among the 80,000,000
share options, 21,200,000 share options were granted to the
executive Directors of the Company.

RS R2BEITRETEITROEE NE LBR
ARARREE BB ZBRARZ01% TP EE L
85,000,000/ 7T« MABARBRR(ARRERR
FR)FEERE - EEFEIRRZABRT - KB
ZEHRBHA R8BI HEEES ERSHEE
B o ERBERER  ARABIMBLTZAREL
AREFEGET 21T RRERIRZET 82 R
TR ERE - AT BTG HIRI0F - B
EZITEBERAARETS L HMNBET  HESR
WA T EERTISERZ&SE + —

(1) ARBEBROHRERRRZ2RDEREE B (LA
REXR)EBIABEEZERBERMIIZK
mE

Q) ARABEOREZELBEREZ AMDEEE
REBIMEL 28 ARBERMAIZ FHRT
B R

(3) ARBMDZEE

M2014F6 198 » AARIRIERTE - REAETA
BR2HEERHBRE  UWRBAQRDETHRA
£ %80,000,000/% & A% I {B0.1078 TL &Y AR 1 » 7
80,000,00017 f& A% # 7 + 21,200,00017 i f% 1 B %
FARRNBMITES ©
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The following table sets out the details of the share options under the T & 51|51 2] TR AXZEF B B2 HARS 2 5515

Scheme during the Review Period:

Outstanding
as of
Exercise price 1.1.2017 Granted Exercised Forfeited
HK$  R2017%F during  during the  during the
Name Date of grant 8 1818 the period period period
#A RHAH BT HATE REARE  RERTE  RERRK

Category I: Directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder and their respective associates

Bhl— &% SRTBABRIZRRERESAZHEAL

Fang Jin 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000 - - -
ik

Guo Quan Zeng 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000 - - -
BRE

Feng Ming Zhu N/A N/A - - - -
BB ek &R

Zhang Li 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000 - - -
R

Total directors 15,900,000 - - -
EEd ol

Category Il Employees working under continuous contracts (as defined in the Employment Ordinance) other than directors

BRI=  REFIM REEREAIRE TRISEAOTEZER

Senior management 19.6.2014 094 47,800,000 - - -
RHERE

Total of all categories 63,700,000 - - -
FrERRRIEET
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Expired
during
the period
REIREIH

5,300,000

5,300,000

5,300,000

15,900,000

47,800,000

63,700,000

Outstanding
as of
31.12.2017
R2017%
12A31H

W RATHE

Percentage
of the total
issued share
capital of the
Company
as at
31.12.2017
AR
R20175
12A31H
BRITRE
BEZEAN



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

All share options granted could be exercised from 19 June 2014 to 18
June 2017 (both dates inclusive), and are not subject to any vesting
period. The exercise price was determined by the Directors of the
Company and was fixed at HK$0.94 per share. The closing price of
the shares on the date immediately before the grant of these share
options, i.e. 18 June 2014, was HK$0.95. 63,700,000 shares of the
share options was expired during the Review Period. The Company
did not recognise any expense (2016: RMB Nil) for the Review Period
in relation to options granted by the Company. Please refer to Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements for detail.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sub-section headed “Directors and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares” and “Share
Options”, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

FTE R 201456 H19B #E2017F6 A 181
(BEERMB)RNITE - BATZEMEB KT
R ATEEBRARREFET  WETAERR
190.9478 70 - B HZEHEAE B BRT(BN20144F
67188 )M DT (E A0.958 7T - I EEEHAR -
63,700,000/ & Az 1 B B B o 7K 7] 50 0] B8 AR R
BEAFEARAQRRL 2 BRIEZEMHAEZ(2016
F:ARKEETT) - BEFE #2056 BHRE
MI5E33 -

ESWRBRONES 2ER

RIEERETRABZR M #EE KR | Rl BB
REET & NPT EE SN AR B HEEFMERR
REE2017F12A31 B L FEBER SZER 25 -
HEARREEEBRBARR R SEMEMEE
ZBEMDREFAERA G - FERES - REF KB
ETN\BRATZFREBEMNARBARAEFEFZ
RENISAT AT BAHER o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than directors 720174128318 * L FA (W FEAR QAT E S 5L
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions H&E/THAS)RAAEZR7M RABBRG R ESR
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be  1EFES RHIEEHIEXVIBE2 X3 B 2 (& AR AN
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of AFKE @ KBALZARAFIREFS RS EME
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to 3361178 Z 08kt Z R SOA R -

be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company): ##& (XA TEKREE.10ET 2 ZER)

Percentage of

the issued share

capital of the

Company as at

Number of 31 December 2017

issued ordinary (Note 1)

shares/underlying 720176128318

shares held HARTERIT

Name of shareholder Capacity T RITSER &=

REREA 54 HEROEE (f3E1)

Swift Joy Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 403,770,000 37.04%
AR AR A A Emfa A

Right Grand Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 110,568,000 10.14%
ERERBRAR EmER A

Value Partners China Greenchip Fund Limited Beneficial owner 63,106,000 5.79%
BEmER A

Value Partners Group Limited Corporate Interest 63,990,000 5.87%

HEEEARAA NSIE

Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in  Bf{zF1; ARABIRETEZBE DR - HAAARR
issue as at 31 December 2017, i.e. 1,090,001,246 Shares, 2017FF12A31B 2 BT RH B (B
when calculating this percentage. 1,090,001,2468 i1 )5t HE o

42



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 56 to 79 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION
COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
AND RESUMPTION COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”),
a remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a
resumption committee (“Resumption Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
considering how the Board should apply financial reporting and
internal control principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s independent auditor. As at 31
December 2017, the Audit Committee consisted of four members
who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang
Jian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.

BroA AR EEE SN - 20174128318 AR FWE
BEAMAT(LERARRAEETIERTRAEIR
RATRD KAB R AD B RIBE S REBAE GO
EXVEE 2R3N G BMA ARG HE - HBR
ARRRIRIBEE S RS 5053361817 & 2 e
N2 HERBRE o

TEER
EEARRFMRMZ CEEAERZIBEZHNA
FIRFES6EEFETIA ©

EERAUESHFMES2ME

REZE2017F12A31HLFE  EF AN RS
Bl 8 2 Bl & LEEE R A BRI FE10 ©

BEREES  REZERE -
EREREES

FHES

ARRERUERZEG([ERZES)) REZ
Ee((R2%EBg)) ¥HZBZE

kEEZEg([EREZEE]) -

BEREES

BRUEEZEZEEZH m%fﬁ%%%ﬁ*%§$ﬁr
QAT ER PR BA TS SR e R S 1R JR AILA e B AR A
SZEEN R B MR o PA2017612A318 - %*2
ZEGHWEKB (DR BBEGMEL(ERF) - T
B TEEEERIRERE)EK -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen
and recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as
Directors of the Company, to oversee the process for evaluating
the performance of the Board and to develop, recommend to the
Board and monitor nomination guidelines for the Company. As at
31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee consisted of four
members who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Wang
Jing Zhong and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board
in determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
executive Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors,
reviewing incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing
the remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
four members who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin, Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.

RESUMPTION COMMITTEE

The Resumption Committee is responsible for leading the process
to facilitate resumption of trading in the shares of the Company as
soon as possible. The Company has appointed Gram Capital Limited
as the financial adviser in relation to the resumption of trading in the
shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2017, the Resumption
Committee comprised the four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and
Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor and the non-executive Director Mr. Hou Li.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Although there are no restrictions over the grant of pre-emptive rights
under the laws of Cayman Islands, no pre-emptive rights have been
granted under the articles of association of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 65% and approximately 22% of the
Group's total sales of the Review Period, respectively. The top
five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represented
approximately 51% and approximately 31% of the Group’s total
purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate
of a Director or (to the knowledge of the Directors) a shareholder of
the Company which owns 5% or more of the issued share capital of
the Company has any interest in the top five customers and suppliers
of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 167 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of his/her duties in his/her offices or trusts
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the relevant Director.
Such permitted indemnity provision was in force during the Review
Period and remained in force as at the date of this report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions, certain details of which are set out below
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
relation to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

FERFRHER

RAFEAEERREEREY  AEERLAEP LK
RKEBEFE D RE#965% X #122% - HA O BEER R A 52 &
ZHEREET  AEERAAHRERREAMERD
AE451% K 4931% °
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REANREMERZARE67E  BREFEUES
EREBUBTERBAERAMRIRELNME
- B KE - BX BERHAX BTBEA
RRAMBERGNESRE  BEReHELZIE  F
ARERETEHETMEAABESERFRTDH
EHzEE  RSREFNBEGRXEREESA
ERMABEARREARIDBER -

HEBEXRS

REERE AEEQETTIRERERS &
THECER EMRAUFVIATHREIELHE - &
S

ARRERIE EMRVUFBVAZETZER SR E
FE e

45



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with  EEARARBREAALTHRTENMAEBEDT :
the Company are as follows:

Name Relationship

=L S

Fang Jin (“Mr. Fang”) Director and controlling shareholder of the Company
Fe(7IEE]D BEEFRAD AR

Guo Quan Zeng (“Mr. Guo") Director

SPRIE([FB5EA]) =
Scud Electronics Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company
REBRET with Mr. Fang being common director

RER(BR)EFARAR  ITAERHAEENARFARELZEWBLRR]

Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang and Mr. Guo being common directors,
FEE BRA 19 and who has shareholding interest in this company as to 67% and 3%, respectively
BERERROERRR - HFEERBEELSKEREENRF - EDRIEBZRE67% K3%ME

Scud Battery Scud Battery Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with Mr. Fang

RERREM being common director

REREMBRAR - HEERHAEENARABEZENBERR

46



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

(A) Lease agreements with Scud Stock

On 30 December 2016, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud
Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease
(2017-2019) Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises
owned by Scud Stock.

Under the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First (2017-
2019) Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2,
Kuai An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area of
approximately 31,155 square metres; (i) 1 office building with
a construction area of approximately 13,268.80 square metres,
rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres; (iii) 1 staff
dormitory with construction area of approximately 25,973.92
square metres with a total of 435 dormitory rooms, rental area
of approximately 19,704 square metres with a total of 330
dormitory rooms; and (iv) 1 warehouse building with construction
area and rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres. The
First (2017-2019) Premises were leased for use as factory, office
for administration use for the Group, staff dormitory for the
employees of the Group and warehouse for storage of stocks.

(A) EERERRKRAME LWEERR

72016128308  REBREF(HEAFEHEA)
HEREREG(EALBRA) T —HHEERZ
(TE—mAEQO17FE20197F ) e ) AEST
REBRBRNOITESS THWEZEL -

BiEE — 1 HEEQ017F 220194 ) # =%
REBRBONASHEREREFURFTERE
BERMNMHEERRTIEMREE3-25%RE
44-25R B R 2 W ([ 88 —#£(20174F £2019
FIWME]D  BEONERE  ZEWMBENA
40,627.68F oK - HEEE K /A31,155F 7
Ko()—@EFNE - 2EMBELR13,268.80
FEHK HEMmMBELNAT,826F F K : (i) — &
EIFEEE  BEMmMIELNR25973.92F 7K
HE4HES HEBEL R19,704F 75
K- HE3BOMES  Riv—EERXE &
SHEBENMEEEBELDNA11,250F 7K E—4#t
(2017FEZE20195 )X HERIEASE 2 T
B TBHAE  ASEEENEIBERE
MERZER -
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For the factories, office building and staff dormitory, the term of
lease is from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019, and for the
warehouse building, the term of lease is from 1 July 2017 to 31
December 2019. Under the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement,
the annual rental for the year ended 31 December 2017 will be
RMB13,245,120, and the annual rental for the two years ending
31 December 2019 will be RMB14,325,120. The rentals are
payable in cash on a monthly basis.

On 30 December 2016, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease
(2017-2019) Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises
owned by Scud Stock.

Under the Second Lease (2017-2019) Agreement, Scud Stock
agreed to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second
(2017-2019) Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2
and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou,
Fujian Province, PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a
construction area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres,
rental area of approximately 9,472 square metres; (ii) 1 office
building with a construction area of approximately 13,268.80
square metres, rental area of approximately 5,443 square metres;
and (iii) 1 staff dormitory with construction area of approximately
25,973.92 square metres with a total of 435 dormitory rooms,
rental area of approximately 6,270 square metres with a total of
105 dormitory rooms. The Second (2017 — 2019) Premises were
leased for use as factory, office for administration use for the
Group and staff dormitory for the employees of the Group.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. The annual rental under the Second Lease (2017-2019)
Agreement will be RMB4,786,104. The rentals are payable in
cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement and
the Second Lease (2017-2019) Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2016.
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As at 30 December 2016, Scud Stock was owned as to 67%
by Mr. Fang and 3% by Mr. Guo, respectively. Both Mr. Fang
and Mr. Guo are executive Directors of the Company and Mr.
Fang is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is an associate of Mr. Fang and thus a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore, the above
transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First
Lease (2017-2019) Agreement and the Second Lease (2017-2019)
Agreement are as follows:

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12A31BIEFE2FE LR

Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12A31HILFE 2 FE LR

Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2019
BE2019F 12831 BIEFEZFE LR

The actual amounts incurred for the above continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB16,951,224.

Under the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement, it was intended
that Scud Stock would lease a warehouse building to Scud
Electronics starting from 1 July 2017. As the construction of
the warehouse building required more time than originally
anticipated, Scud Stock was unable to make available the
warehouse building for use by Scud Electronics during the
period from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the
relevant rent of RMB1,080,000 was not required to be paid by
Scud Electronics during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have

reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out herein

and have confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December

2017, such transactions were entered into:

(1

@)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or better to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed

that in relation to the above continuing connected transactions
with Scud Stock:—

(1

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and
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(3) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to its attention
that causes it to believe that the continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the
connected parties are also set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable
accounting principles. Details of the related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements. The related party transactions
which are also non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above and in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries and no other contracts of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed
during the Review Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review Period.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION EENEREH
Set out below are changes in information of Directors of the Company ~ T&IBIE F T BIE13.51B(DEHI A AT EEN
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules: AR

Name of director  Details of change

EEgE SEFE
Dr. Loke Yu Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Ry g MIE + Code: 876) with effect from 11 January 2017

BHEEREREEEERER AR (RGO R - 876) < BIUIFNITESE - M2017F1 A1 HAER

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company
Limited (Stock Code: 2882) on 31 May 2017
M2017F5 A3 ARZERBBERERER AR (BN : 2882) 2B IFHMITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Zhenro Properties Group Limited (Stock Code:
6158) on 15 December 2017
R2017F 12 A5 AEZERERMESREER AT (RMHAR : 6158) 2 BIUIFNTES

Resigned as the company secretary and authorised representative of Minth Group Limited (Stock Code:
425) on 8 February 2018
R2018F2 AHBHERESREAR AR (BN RIR  425) 2 RAIME RIRBERE

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Winfair Investment Company Limited (Stock
Code: 287) on 3 April 2018
R2018FAA3HBHEXBEEEAR AR (MR - 287) 2 BIUIFNITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 515) on 6 June 2018
#2018F6 A6 RERERELER T RBEBRBRAR(RMHARSE - 515) 2 BUFANTEF

Mr. Heng Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Daohe Global Group Limited (Stock Code: 915)
Ja Wei Victor on 11 January 2017
TBR 4 S 20171 A1 BBHEBARIREBEGR AR (RHRSR  915) 2 BYUIENITES

52



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions referred to in the section “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above and in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or an entity connected with a
Director (within the meaning of section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) had any direct or
indirect material interests in any transaction, arrangement or contracts
of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or its fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which was registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees
in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is
funded by contributions from employer and employees in accordance
with the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contribution
may be used by the employer to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of the
payroll under the rules of the schemes.
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Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 4(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Review Period.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive
remuneration package to attract and motivate its employees. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of its employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to market standard. The
Group also provides regular training to its employees for their career
development.

The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and
regularly communicate with them in order to obtain feedback and
opinions and understand their business needs and demands.

The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with
its suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely
together to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an
open, fair and just manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as otherwise disclosed
in this annual report, during the Review Period, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
which had a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed interest in any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Review Period.
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Company considers such directors to be independent in accordance
with each and every guideline set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 2 April 2015 and BDO Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 25 August
2016.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and to the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

By the order of the Board

)

FANG JIN
Chairman

3 August 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries,
(the “Group”) is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level
of corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves the Group’s corporate governance and internal controls
practices. Save as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles
of corporate governance as adopted by the Company during the
financial year from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the “Review
Period”). The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”)
in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). Save
as disclosed in the section headed “Compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules” below, the Company complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEQ")

During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin served as the Chairman of
the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company and
was responsible for leading the Board in establishing and monitoring
the implementation of strategies and plans to create values for
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”). Mr. Guo Quan
Zeng served as the President of the Group and was responsible for
managing the overall business operations of the Group, proposing
strategies to the Board and the effective implementation of the
strategies and policies adopted by the Board, effectively carrying out
the role of a Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ").

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions and shareholding interests in the Company
and Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between the
Chairman and the CEO.
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THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2017, there were nine members on the Board,
which were the Chairman, two other executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors (“NEDs"”) and four independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"”), whose names are shown in the table on page
64. The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of
the management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board
considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise
to the Board and its deliberations. The term of appointment of Dr.
Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang is one year
from 14 May 2016 and the term of appointment of Mr. Heng Ja
Wei Victor is two years from 1 September 2016. All service contracts
of the INEDs can be terminated by the Company or the INED with
at least 3 months written notice. Each of the INEDs confirmed their
respective independence to the Group. The term of appointment of
the two NEDs, Mr. Zhang Li and Mr. Hou Li, is two years from 25
August 2016. All service contracts of the NEDs can be terminated by
the Company or the NED with at least 3 months written notice. Save
for the Directors’ business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships in the Company and save as disclosed in this annual
report, there are no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships among members of the Board and they are
independent from each other.

The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc
basis as required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose
is to set and review the overall strategic development of the Group
and to oversee the achievement of its business plans to enhance
Shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to
the Executive Directors and the senior management. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors.
During the Review Period, the Board met 2 times and the Directors’
attendance record is shown in the table on page 64. In advance
of the Board meetings, appropriate notices, meeting agenda and
other relevant information were given to all Directors. All Directors
are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for Board
meetings. Draft and final versions of the Board meeting minutes
were sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively.
The original minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company and such minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director. The
Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect of
Directors’ liability.
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The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board which
accepts that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the
performance and affairs of the Group. The Board’s role is to provide
entrepreneurial leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the
Company’s values and standards, and to ensure that its obligations
to its stakeholders and others are understood and met. To facilitate
the operations, the Board has established a schedule of matters
reserved for its approval. The specific responsibilities reserved for the
Board include (1) setting the Group's strategies and dividend policy;
(2) reviewing operational and financial performance; (3) approving
major investments and divestments; (4) reviewing risk management
and internal control system of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (6)
approving appointments of Directors and other senior executives; (7)
approving corporate social responsibility policies; (8) ensuring effective
communication with shareholders and (9) other significant operational
and financial matters. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group are delegated to the management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Directors are continually updated with regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development courses and seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills including updated laws and
regulations applicable to the Company and its Directors as well as
any amendments thereto. During the Review Period, the Company
provided regular updates to the Directors on material changes to
regulatory requirements applicable to the Directors and the Company
on a timely basis and on the latest business development of the
Company. The Directors confirmed that they have complied with
code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code on directors’
training. During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng,
Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr. Hou Li, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong
and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in areas related
to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as corporate
governance and regulatory updates. Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Heng Ja Wei
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Victor, as independent directors of other listed issuers, have attended
various directors’ training seminars arranged by various organisations
including the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Institute of Directors during the Review Period. On a
continuing basis, Directors are encouraged to keep up to date on all
matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings and seminars as
appropriate.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under
the code and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December
2017, the Audit Committee comprised four INEDs who were Dr.
Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr. Heng
Ja Wei Victor. The chairman of the Audit Committee was Dr. Loke
Yu. Each committee member can bring to the Audit Committee his
valuable experience in reviewing financial statements and evaluating
significant control and financial issues of the Group who among
themselves possess a wealth of management experience in the
accounting profession or commercial sectors. The Audit Committee
was established on 3 December 2006 and held 3 meetings during
the Review Period and the relevant Director’s attendance is shown on
page 64.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;
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(iv) to review the Group's financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems and assess the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system;

(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) to review the arrangements which the employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters; and

(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out the
following work:

The Audit Committee reviewed certain financial information of the
Group and discussed with BDO Financial Services Limited in relation to
the internal control systems of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the
Review Period and the relevant Director’'s attendance is shown on
page 64. As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee
comprised Dr. Loke Yu (an INED), Mr. Fang Jin (an Executive Director),
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong (an INED) and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an
INED). The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee was Dr. Loke
Yu. Its main duties are summarised as follows:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing such remuneration policies;
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(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of all individual Executive Directors and senior
management;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

(iv) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(v) to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any service
contract of Directors that requires Shareholders’ approval in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the year
included the following:

(i) determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive
Directors;

(i) assessing performance of Executive Directors; and
(iii) approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the remuneration payable to members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

In the band of
Eaq Rl
Nil to RMB865,100 (equivalent to Nil to

HK$1,000,000)
RMB865,001 to RMB1,730,000 (equivalent

to HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000)
RMB1,730,001 to RMB2,162,500 (equivalent

to HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000)

1,000,000/ 7TC)
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The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the
Review Period and the relevant Director’'s attendance is shown on
page 64. As at 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee
comprised Dr. Loke Yu (an INED), Mr. Fang Jin (an Executive
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong (an INED) and Mr. Heng Ja Wei
Victor (an INED). The Chairman of the Nomination Committee was

Director),

Dr. Loke Yu. The Nomination Committee selects and recommends
appropriate candidates based on the candidates’ prior experience and
qualifications to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the
senior management of the Group. The main duties of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a
Board member and to select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships
having regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective
criteria and the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors to determine their eligibility;

(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company’s policy concerning diversity of

board members, and make appropriate disclosure of the policy
or a summary of the policy.
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The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review
Period included determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The Company
recognizes the benefits of diversity in Board members and believes
that Board diversity can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and/or length of service. In forming the perspective on
diversity, the Company will also consider its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will be
based on merits and each candidate is considered against objective
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually, if
considered appropriate, measurable objectives for implementing
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board for
adoption. The Board will from time to time review one or more
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly. Having
reviewed the Group’s business model and operation needs and the
current composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee has not
set any measurable objective during the Review Period.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual
Director and committee member in the respective Board, committee
and general meetings held during the Review Period.
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MEETINGS ATTENDANCE RECORD Hpreigige
Meetings attended/held in 2017
R2017FHE BITHEE
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Ezg ENEES REZES ¥HESE KRREFAE

Number of meetings AL EHIBHET
held during the MEREA
Review Period 4 3 1 1 N/ATIER

Executive Directors: #{TE5% :

Fang Jin Wk 4/4 N/ATNE R ”n ”n N/ATNE
Guo Quan Zeng LRI 4/4 N/ANE A N/AZ i A N/ATNE A N/ATE A
Feng Ming Zhu SERAT 4/4 N/A i N/A i N/A i A N/A i A
Non-Executive FPTES

Directors:
Zhang Li R 4/4 N/ATE A N/AZiE A N/ATE A N/ATE A
Hou Li (=3 4/4 N/AE A N/ATE N/AT i N/AT i

Independent Non- BYFHTES:

executive

Directors:
Loke Yu =z 4/4 3/3 11 171 N/ATE R
Wang lJing Zhong THE 3/4 2/3 171 171 N/AT i A
Wang Jian Zhang FiEs 4/4 33 N/AZ i A N/ATNE A N/ATE A
Heng Ja Wei Victor B 4 4/4 373 171 1”1 N/ATiE
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GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary
actions to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code introduced by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. The following corporate governance functions
form part of the terms of reference of the Board:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Review Period, the Board reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed below, the Company

has complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate

Governance Code pursuant to Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

throughout the Review Period.

()

66

According to paragraph A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment. Every director, including those appointed for
a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Mr. Zhang Li did not retire by rotation since his re-election as
director at the annual general meeting held on 6 May 2013; Dr.
Loke Yu did not retire by rotation since his re-election as director
at the annual general meeting held on 6 May 2013; Mr. Wang
Jing Zhong did not retire by rotation since his re-election as
director at the annual general meeting held on 6 May 2013; Mr.
Fang Jin did not retire by rotation since his re-election as director
at the annual general meeting held on 14 May 2014; Mr. Guo
Quan Zeng did not retire by rotation since his re-election as
director at the annual general meeting held on 14 May 2014;
Mr. Wang lJian Zhang did not retire by rotation since his re-
election as director at the annual general meeting held on 14
May 2014.

The said Directors did not retire by rotation in accordance with
paragraph A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules because no
annual general meeting has been held by the Company since 14
May 2014.

All such Directors are expected to retire and offer themselves for
re-election at the Company’s next annual general meeting.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management Structure of the Group

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2016,
the Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited (“Internal
Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant to conduct
a review of the internal control systems and procedures of the
Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").

The scope of work of the Internal Control Consultant included
an independent assessment of the internal control systems of the
major subsidiaries of the Group which addressed, among others, the
recommendations of the independent board committee as set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 14 June 2016, covering financial
reporting procedures, receivables recording and collection procedures,
recording procedures on the return of goods in the sales process,
bank statements reconciliation procedures, distribution of goods and
tax declaration procedures.

During the period from September 2016 to April 2017, the Internal
Control Consultant performed reviews on the internal control systems
of the major subsidiaries of the Group (including the new enterprise
resource planning (“ERP”) systems for certain companies within the
Group) which involved collecting relevant information, conducting site
visits and interviews and conducting walkthrough tests. Through this
process, a list of issues had been identified and the Internal Control
Consultant recommended certain improvements and/or remedial
measures to address such issues for the Company’s consideration.
The Company has considered and implemented such recommended
improvements and/or remedial measures, and thereafter the Internal
Control Consultant performed a follow-up review which involved
substantially the same procedures as above to come up with further
recommendations on improvements and/or remedial measures for
the Company’s consideration. After the Company has considered
and implemented such further recommended improvements and/or
remedial measures, the new ERP systems were formally launched by
the Group for the major subsidiaries of the Group.
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Sample walk-through documents in respect of the enhanced internal
control systems of the Group (including the new ERP systems) and
the operation processes of the Group within the scope of the Internal
Control Review for the period of review from 1 May 2017 to 31
May 2017 were provided by the Group for the Internal Control
Consultant’s follow-up review, checking and testing during July to
September 2017 to assess whether the improvements and/or remedial
measures recommended by the Internal Control Consultant have been
implemented and whether there was any material internal control
deficiency.

On 30 November 2017, the Internal Control Consultant issued its
report on the Internal Control Review. The Internal Control Consultant
was satisfied that the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control systems in relation to the companies within
the Group that are the subject of the Internal Control Review and all
the business areas of the Group as at 31 May 2017.

Having reviewed the findings and results of the report on the Internal
Control Review prepared by the Internal Control Consultant, and
having taken into consideration the improvements and/or remedial
measures implemented in accordance with the Internal Control
Consultant’s recommendations, the Board is of the view that the
Company has put in place adequate internal control system and
financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under the Listing
Rules. In view of the above, the Board considers that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems was
conducted during the Review Period and the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.
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We set out below the current risk management structure of the
Group:

Risk Management Department

The Group has set up a risk management department which is
responsible for the design and implementation of a risk management
system and assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the
implementation and effectiveness of enterprise risk management
framework and procedures and reviewing risk response measures. The
risk management department performs an internal audit function and
is responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Group assists the Board in monitoring
the risk level of the Group and the design and operational efficiency
of the relevant risk management and internal control systems. The
Audit Committee oversees the following procedures on behalf of the
Board:

o examination of the Group’s risk management system, internal
control system (including corporate strategy, finance, operations
and compliance monitoring) and internal audit functions to
ensure the establishment and maintenance of effective and
appropriate risk management and internal control systems and
adequate resources to perform the internal functions of the
Group;

o regular review of work reports submitted by the risk management
department, including action plans to address any weaknesses
of the risk management and internal control systems which
have been identified and updates on the implementation of
recommendations to address the weaknesses;

e  external auditors regularly submit reports on the internal control
matters identified in the course of their work to the Company’s
management. They also meet with the Audit Committee to
discuss the scope and results of their review.

The Audit Committee will report to the Board after review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Audit Committee, the Board will form its view on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.
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The board of directors will ensure that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group will
be conducted annually.

Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties. Some of
the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation
measures have been devised to manage such risks.

(A) OPERATIONAL, STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS

The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous
pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’s main
product, is mostly used in smartphones, laptops, tablets and
wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may
change rapidly in response to consumer demand or taste. As the
supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number of domestic
smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in customers’ sales
of smartphones will have significant effect on the sales of the
Group's lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Investment of resources in development of new products
and application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and
new fields in response to changes in market demands;

(i) Diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the
Group’s overall business;

(iii) Proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced
technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability.

For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached
to their quality and safety. The performance and safety of
lithium-ion battery is very sensitive to ambient environment.
The safety of lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external
circuit design to ensure battery’s operation is normal and safe.
However, the efficiency and reliability of these safety devices
are closely connected with good and consistent manufacturing
quality. Various different circumstances or causes may also lead
to short circuit and other risks.

70

EEefRREFHARERREIEMA P EZEH
EERIEEITIRGT »

AEEBXERKBE TEEME
AEBEBETIRRBRRE T EEN AEERELES

BEEHEINN T ERIEE EREEATEZER
B o

(A) BE - EmsRAFEE
BREFERTEER-—ATE  ARFEE
ERERFECRESEANERETR £
AR FARER R A FRRME - HEAEEE
EmMHEEEXNEREEEENFTRAOKM
SRWE  ERERERE LT G A BB

ERAHER  TPNEETHEEEX
8 5 B S Y A S [ ) SR B F B AR AR B R A K
EXFE-

REBERIUA MEIBRRRZ FRRE

() BEERFARTESR AEMSHERE
b BERTEBERRNTITERTE
18 s

() ZRAERES WA EHERZHE
FHERBBREH L VE

(iii) &5 R B K 35 o) A i A0 AR B 0 Bl A
8 DB AEE T

EREFELERTHEEREE RTS8
BEFEMOERELEEHERRBRAENTER
RN EBBTFEMNLZ2MEERES A BF AN
FEEREAERESDELEELEMMRETE
Eo SR EBRLTEERENNENAISEE - &
RIFBE—SWEEESETEE - SELRE
K RE TR AL g 5 BT EIEE AR R H A
B\



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RERWE

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

@

(i)

(iii)

In the pursuit of higher efficiency and endurance for
batteries, the Group conducted more rigorous review of the
safety of batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered
by the Group meet high safety standards;

The Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers
the liability arising from a defective product that causes
personal injury, property damage or other losses;

The raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality control department shall conduct inspection at each
stage throughout the whole production process to ensure
the Company’s product quality and safeguard the interests
of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2017, more than 80% of the Group’s turnover was derived

from its ODM business. Over 50% of sales of ODM business was

derived from three domestic smartphone brand manufacturers. If

the Group loses one of these top customers, it may have adverse

effects on the operation and financial results of the Group’s
ODM business.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

)

(ii)

(iii)

The Group will look for more potential customers to reduce
its dependence on top customers;

The Group will strengthen after-sales services for customers,
pay regular visits to customers and conduct customer
satisfaction survey, to continuously improve the quality
of products and services and consolidate the Group's
competitiveness in the industry and increase customer
loyalty;

The Group will develop more new products to meet
customer needs.
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The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from domestic
operating units. Adverse events in the domestic operation and
political environment may result in material adverse effects on
the Group's business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Development of overseas markets to increase revenue from
overseas operations;

(i) Continuous monitoring of domestic operations and political
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and
establish quick strategic response to changing business
environment.

Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the
Group will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the
Group's financial performance and operating cash flow.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  Regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from
key customers to control it at an appropriate level,

(i) Implementation of strict internal control measures and
increase collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery module (the
Group’s main product) is lithium-ion battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, laptops and tablets,
wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage
and other fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply
of lithium-ion battery cell will have a material impact on the
profitability and production costs of the Group.
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(B)

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

@)

(ii)

Regular research and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials;

Through automation upgrade of production lines, the
Group solves the problem with human resources and
effectively controls production costs, which have positive
effects on improvement of the Group’s profitability and
control of production costs.

ACCIDENT RISKS

Major accidents including fires,

natural disasters or serious

infectious diseases will affect the Group’s assets and operations,

thus affecting the Group’s operational capacity and reducing

profitability.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group’s
properties and business is purchased;

Provision of regular education and training sessions on
safety for all staff to strengthen staff's awareness of
production safety;

Training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and
fire drill at workplace are organized at least twice a year
to let staff have a solid understanding of the significance
and necessity of production safety and improve their own
awareness of safety protection;

The Company organises physical examination for the benefit
of its staff to help in assessing possible occupational and
serious infectious diseases.
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(C) INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of Chinese economy in the near future,
commencement of drop in global shipment of smartphones and
the possible substantial decrease in consumers’ demands for
replacement of smartphones will have material adverse effects
on the Group’s business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-
ion batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp
opportunities for access to the market and adjust the
development strategy in response to changes in the market;

(i) Proactively build a platform for communication with
consumers, pay close attention to consumers’ demands, timely
listen to consumers’ opinions, and provide good products and
after-sales services to increase customer loyalty.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules;

e conduct its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant
guidelines and policies relating to inside information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange
from time to time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and

o has implemented policy regarding prohibition on the unauthorised
use of confidential or inside information.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”).
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied

Having made specific enquiries of all

with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Company. Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants
resigned as the external auditor of the Company with effect from
2 April 2015. BDO Limited (“BDO Limited”) has been appointed as
the Company’s external auditor with effect from 25 August 2016.
During the Review Period, the amount payable by the Group to BDO
Limited and the PRC auditor for their audit services was approximately
RMB2,595,000 and RMB333,000 respectively. During the Review
Period, the amount payable to BDO Limited for their non-audit
services in respect of review of the interim financial information of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017 was approximately
RMB433,000.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and their
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on page 132 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.
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SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed matter and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s corporate communications including interim
and annual reports, annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available all
the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the Company’s
website. Shareholders may direct enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders and
the investment community may at any time make enquiry in respect
of the Company in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via the numbers and email address provided on the
Company'’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via a number and email address provided on the
Company’s website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. The written requisition may be deposited at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton
Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary. If within 21 days
of such deposit of the written requisition, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also seeking to maximise the interest and return for all
parties so as to enhance a harmonious development and a victorious
collaboration in the long run.

1. INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication
and interaction with investors, and continued to improve
communication channels with shareholders and investors, so as
to enhance governance transparency. The Group’s management
regularly meets with investors, and proactively announces the
latest information and business development plans.

2. CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products,
especially on mobile phone batteries and has implemented
strict quality control like ISO so as to meet safety requirements.
With our product testing centres, we administer stages of
tests including crash, high-temperature, dampen and long
period recharging on our battery products. We also invest
resources in product R&D to develop more reliable products. The
battery products of the Group have also passed the stringent
requirements on quality control and safety set by the relevant
government authorities.

3. EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived
to enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and
increased factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols,
so as to ensure unobstructed fire passages and the availability
of water in case of fire. In addition, the Group has regularly
held fire drills, increased investments in fire prevention facilities
in factories, so as to ensure the sufficiency of fire prevention
equipment and facilities.
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The Group has proactively taken and implemented various
measures, including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner, ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in
case of fire;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’
hazard prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks and fire drills on such days;

(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops, with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact in such flammables.

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed
emphasis on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group
started a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied
to the establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents will
be cultivated at the skill training institute and available in the
pipeline to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry
participants. After a period of training, the Group will allocate
labour resources directly to various departments, which will
shorten the time of staff replacement and reduce labour cost.
Automated production will also be implemented at different
phases. Moreover, in the training process, participating staff
can understand the practical operation issues arising from the
course of production, which will effectively enhance production
efficiencies and qualities. The Group invites talents from society
and selects personnel with the required management and
technical expertise through professional and rigorous training
processes. At the same time, this also brings to society a new
generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the Company’s
social responsibilities.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis
and employment contracts were signed based on principles of
fairness and on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions
on contractual terms such as scope of work, remuneration,
social insurance, and working hours, among others. The legal
rights and obligations of the employer and employee are
clearly defined. We also strictly comply with the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to national social insurance to set
up insurance scheme for basic pension, medical, work-related
injuries, unemployment and maternity for employees and cover
the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to further protect
the interests of individual employees, the Company has taken
out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all employees.
The Group complied with the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China since 1 January 2008 and established a labor
union. We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in
support of construction and development of a harmonious and
stable employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of them are delivered to qualified recycling plants
for treatment.

For environmental, social and governance report of the Group,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance
report” on pages 80 to 127 of this report.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
"ESG report”) for SCUD Group Limited (“SCUD" or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group is principally engaged in the development, manufacturing
and sale of lithium-ion battery modules for smartphones, tablets and
other smart electronic products as well as the provision of all-round
power supply solutions for various consumer electronic products.
Unless otherwise stated, this ESG report covers the Group’s overall
performance in two subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social
of two subsidiaries of SCUD operated in Fujian Province, Mainland
China from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting
Period”). The two subsidiaries namely Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,
Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”) and Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”)
continue to account for the Group’s major financial contribution,
so as the environmental and social impacts. During the Reporting
Period, the aggregate revenue of Scud Electronics and Scud Battery
represented approximately 95% of the Group's total revenue.

Throughout the report, the measuring and reporting of key indicators
on environmental and social aspects would be separated for the two
subsidiaries wherever data was available. For inseparable data sources,
the key indicators would be aggregated and reported together.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

The Group highly evaluates the interactions with various stakeholders
as a key source to identify areas of attention for continuing the
business in a risk-free, resilient, and healthy manner. Various
stakeholders including internal senior management team, employees,
and external customers and suppliers continue to be involved in
regular engagement sessions to identify, discuss, and review key
topics to focus on.
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In 2017, the Group distributed quantitative surveys to the board
members, management team, employees, suppliers, and key clients.
A total of 177 surveys was received and recorded for identifying the
most significant ESG aspects to focus on. The survey results showed
that compared with environmental topics, the Group’s stakeholder put
more focus on social aspects. The most material topics raised by the
stakeholders (importance in descending order) included:

—  Labour standards

—  Client and customer data protection
—  Anticorruption

- Customer service

— Intellectual property

—  Supply chain management

—  Air emissions

—  Environmental policies

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please give your
suggestions or share your views with us via email (coso@scud.cn) or
phone (0591-63159773).

SCUD MISSION AND VISION ON
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITMENT

The Group defined its mission and vision on sustainability through a
systematic Environmental Risk and Opportunity Assessment analysis.
A total of 18 topics were fully assessed, many of which have
overlaps with ESG topics, including, but not limited to: supply chain
management, waste treatment and chemicals storage, laws and
regulations compliance, testing and monitoring, overall marketing,
employees’ satisfaction and internal auditing etc.

The Group is dedicated to continuously researching and developing
innovative production methods, optimising its business model, and
enhancing production efficiency and quality.
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Identification of Key Operational Risks and Targets for a

Risk-free Business

For effective management and monitoring, the Group continues to
utilise a hierarchical system to identify environmental and social risk
factors from and assign goals and measurable targets to functional
department. Following are some examples of relevant risks and goals

applicable to most departments.

Unacceptable Operational Risks

Measurable Targets

BRETELERRKRERERETAMKE

REREREERER  AEBTEHNEI AR
7o ERBEMMGEARREE - MBI SRR

Transmission of chemicals via
indoor air

Not closing doors and windows,
collapse of buildings, trees etc.

Wire aging, improper maintenance
of appliance etc.

Operations not following standards/
procedures

Improper transportation and
handling of dangerous goods

0 cases on occupational disease

0 injury case (major injuries);
Less than 2 cases each month
(minor injuries)

0 fire accidents

0 electric shock event;
0 cases on occupational disease
0 explosions

Adoption of Best Industrial Practices

The Group ensures strict compliance with any applicable regulations,
laws, guidelines and standards. In addition, we strive for excellence,
not just compliance. As a result of sustainable and integrative
management, the Group has renewed and/or achieved following

certificates in 2017:

o ISO 9001 Quality Management System (both Scud Electronics

and Scud Battery);

e TL 9000 Telecom Quality Management System (Scud Electronics);

o ISO 14001 Environmental Management System (both Scud

Electronics and Scud Battery);

o OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System (both Scud Electronics and Scud Battery);

e  Workplace Safety Standards — certificate level 3 (both Scud

Electronics and Scud Battery);

° EICC Electronic Industry Code of Conduct Certificate (Scud

Electronics);

° QCO080000 Hazardous Substance Process Management (HSPM)

System (Scud Electronics);

° Integration of Informatisation and Industrialisation Management
System (Scud Electronics and Scud Battery).
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A. Environmental

As an electronic and battery production group, we are aware of
the potential environmental impacts and non-renewable resource
consumption caused by our operation. The Group continues
to strive for maximising the resource efficiency, identifying key
environmental risk factors, proper handling of chemicals and
waste, measuring procedures related to operation, and finally,
ensuring continuous monitoring and improving.

The Group has implemented a comprehensive Environmental
Management System and is certified by 1SO14001. Chemicals are
handled under strict procedures in a controlled environment by
qualified and experienced personnel only. The Group continuously
monitors air emission, wastewater discharge, and noise level to
ensure the minimum impacts on surrounding environment and
to create a healthier environment for its workers. The Group
did not receive any complaints from surrounding community
regarding air pollution, odor, noise, or night light pollution. All
employees are trained with 1ISO14001 and are expected to follow
applicable Standard Operation Procedure (SOP) for environmental
protection.

The Group highly values the effective material management
to reduce any risk as our operation involves large amount of
chemicals and materials, some of which are hazardous. The
Group established management system following QC080000,
covering key requirements of the various environmental
protection directives such as the Restriction of use of certain
Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment
("RoHS") and Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE).

Energy conservation policies are implemented throughout the
Group. In 2017, the Group promoted several emission reduction
and energy saving projects, such as:

o Implementing DingTalk Web Office System to save printing
papers;

o Reinforcing the Air-conditioner energy conservation policy,
implementing use restriction and monitoring system;

o Eliminating disposable cups for all conference rooms by
substituting mugs, encouraging employees to bring their
own mugs to avoid consumption of disposable cups.

To the best of the information and knowledge of the directors of
the Company, during the Reporting Period there was no material
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
which had a material impact on the Group.
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1. Emissions and Waste 1.
(i) Air Pollutant Emission (i)

To control various air emissions, the Group identified
key air emission sources, and for each identified
source, the Group implemented control measures
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correspondingly.

Activity
EE

Chemicals involved

BROCER

Environmental impacts
REXE

Control measures

BHER

Application of pesticide
EREE

Air conditioning
=8
Fire extinguisher

Fire extinguisher
B
Smoking

ited

Vehicle fuel consumption

Bt

Detergents and chemicals leakage

BEERERRR

Aerosol

RER

Residential electronic appliances
FEEH

Methyl bromide #6
FER#6

CFCs

aaK

€0z, NOX, N20

& REL
—&aft=R

Halon 1211/1301

R EET211/1301

CO:

k| 7

COz, PM, SOx, NOx

Ozone depletion

REHR

Global warming
PIREE
Global warming
PIREE

Ozone depletion
REER
Global warming
2HEE

Global warming, human

&b ARAZIZE  health (respiratory) impacts

Lk R R K
Gt 4]

CFC-113, TCA, CCl4
ot

OB ALK

Mm@tk
CFC-12
-

Refrigerant, CO2
U —&dbhx

RIRER - ABRE(FRES)
240

VE
Ozone depletion

REHFE

Ozone depletion, global warming

REER  2RER

Global warming
2HEE

Use substitute chemicals of
methyl bromide

FRRERNER (2R

Proper maintenance

HEHE

Prevent fire accidents

ERT MK

Substitute with COz

AZEiRER

Promote non-smoking behaviors,
designate smoking rooms

HITRE - BERES

Promote using public transportation,
formulate management regulations
and use company vehicles reasonably

SEFEARLRE - HIEEREOIR
BRRERALE

Employees training, designated and
controlled storage places per MSDS

BEEI  BECERT2RIMHA
EIRERIEGIERSM

Training, certification for relevant
personnel, use pollution-free
alternatives

# - BEARRE
BEHm

Training, awareness raising,

ERESA

proper maintenance
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Manufacturing Air Emission

The manufacturing process did not generate major
air emissions other than fumes and particulates from
hand welding processes. In particular, both inorganic
and organic chemicals such as tin dioxide (SnO),
nickel and insoluble nickel compounds, benzene,
dimethylbenzene, ethyl acetate, acetone, butanone
were generated. They were collected and exhausted
through designated pipes, and the concentration level
both indoor and at the outlet are monitored.

Both the Environmental Air Quality Standard (GB3095-
2012) and Measures for prevention and control of
air pollution in Fuzhou — (2013) 37 were used as
benchmark for the monitoring processes. In addition,
the fume emission from food preparation in canteen
was also strictly monitored according to Emission
standard of cooking fume (GB18483-2001).

The following table shows the monitoring results of
key emissions. All sampling results presented in the
table were the highest value observed during the
Reporting Period, all of which were still far below the
permissible level set by standards aforementioned.

EEBEREEK

MBATIREESER BRI - &
IERIRN T EAE H MR - BE
2 EAEZE/5(Sn0) - RTINS
Migbaw - X ZBEX - ZB2
Bs - B TS mgRA#IEE
Do BERIBIBIETE B BUE R
WHERAREOERRE TR -

EERENRRETRESEEE
(GB3095 2012) R @M = R 5 2B

T MB(2013) 37ARE%E o I K
S B IR IR R R O E BE U E(GB
18483-2001)E 1§ BS 1 B = T AT &
BB o

TREINEZ2HHMNERER - X
T 2FIM T ARASRE BRE M
ER%?'JE’J ==E - TAERERER
838 L AR AR IR TE ) A2 FEAKE

Highest sampling result Permissible level
(CGiwa, mg/m3)  (PC-TWA, mg/m3)

BEERER AREFKF
Emissions W (Crwa, mg/m3)  (PC-TWA, mg/m?3)
Tin dioxide —a1ti5 <0.1 2
Nickel and insoluble nickel compounds $8FTSAMIE(LE Y <0.004 1
Benzene i <0.1 6
Dimethylbenzene —HBEX <0.3 50
Ethyl acetate Vi <0.6 200
Acetone 7 B 7.73 300
Butanone TER 8.98 300

Note: Crwa: time weighted average for mean BisE © Crwa B F 19 0RE ROBSFE D0
concentration. PC-TWA: time weighted average 1B o PC-TWA A& I [ hn #E
permissible concentration. ARFRE -
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Gaseous Fuel Consumption

During the Reporting Period, approximately 930 kg of
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") was used for cooking
appliance in canteen. The LPG usage reduced by over
50% compared with last reporting period due to the
substitution of LPG by other energy source such as
electricity for safety reasons.

Canteen LPG annual

Annual SOx emission
from LPG (kg)

RBEHE REZERAGFERY
930F R L A A(ILPG]) » 8 k£
—HREHMELL - LPGAERA50% A
F T HRAZERAMAMAENSE
BERMRELPG o

Annual NOx emission
from LPG (kg)

consumption (kg) LPG (in MJ) LPGHFEELEMN LPGHMEELEN
RELPGHFHEE(TR) LPG (JEEE) RELNFHRE(TR) AECYFHERE(TR)
930 46,666.47 9.30E-04 0.188

Note: Conversion factors were made reference to
China Energy Statistical Yearbook 2017.

Vehicle Operation and Emission

Vans, passenger cars, and trucks were used for
transportation. Vehicles operated on gasoline or diesel
fuel. Their combustion generated several air emissions
include nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx)
and respiratory suspended particles (PM). The
Group continues to prioritise to purchase low-fuel-
consumption and low-emission vehicles if new ones
are to be purchased.

st : B EB2ZhBERIREF
62017 °

HEET KRR

HE -  HERRBHARER - BH
VAYBm kS m AR o BRI e E
EZEER - 2EAa/PNOX) -
&AL ¥0(SOxX) K AT IR A S F RE KL )
(PM) - BEEFTEHE - AEEELERE
ESBFE - EPERE R -

Vehicle operation fuel consumption

BHEHEITHAE
SOx annual NOx annual PM annual
Gasoline Diesel emission (kg) emission (kg) emission (kg)
consumption (litre) consumption (litre) mEty AELY ARABZENY
FURSHFEER () SCmHMEE(H) FHBE(TR) FHBE(TR) FHBE(TR)
275,020.2 26,427.6 4.47 268.66 19.93

Note: Emission factors were made reference to
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules
and their referred documentation as set out by
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
unless stated otherwise.
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(ii) Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions

During the Reporting Period, there were 18,769.14
tonnes of GHG emitted, reported in carbon dioxide
(CO2) equivalent. The overall intensity of the GHG
emissions was 1.31E-05 per pieces of sold products,
combining the two operational sites. The GHG
reported included following activities and scope:

° Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions from:

—  the stationary combustion of LPG;

- the combustion of fuels for mobile
transportation;

- fugitive emissions of refrigerant (i.e. R22/
HCFC-22) application;

. Indirect (Scope 2) GHG from purchased electricity;
and

. Indirect (Scope 3) GHG from:

—  business air travel;
—  electricity consumed for processing fresh
water and wastewater.

Two of the largest sources of GHG emissions for the
Group were the application of refrigerant and the
purchased electricity. It is reasonable for the Group
to adopt policies on introducing renewable energies
(refer to section 3 — The Environment and Natural
Resources), which will achieve both emission reduction
and conservation on non-renewable resources.

(i)

BERE ([GHG]) Bk

MR IR 0 BERR18,769.14IEGHG
(BZERCO)EERWR) - & 0f
MR A S IB T 1R - MBBEGHGEE R
EASHHEER.31E-05 ° HIRMA
GHGBIENU T EE R EHE :

o UTNHEWGHGH (& E1)
HERR

—  LPGHIERIEAKE -
— BB IBAOVIEIREE

—  [FRLHE(BIR22/HCFC-
22)B) B ERMEBER

o BEEMGHGHRE (SE2)HEM
53

e UTHHAGHGH E (& E3)
BERR -

- MZEBEBRT
— RKEBEKRKREHERES
5 o

75 B H o R AGHGHE HUR A& £ A
HLHRBE - ARESRRHAS
AR BAERERNBER (2B %358 — IR
BRRAER)  BERBTREL
TAIBEER -
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Total Emission

Site (separable for Scope 2 only) GHG source COzeq. (tonnes) (%)
ST (EREE2T 2 1F) GHG/RE —EimEE(Hg) BHEME(%)

Scope 1 direct GHG emission — aggregated at the group level

HE1 GHGEEHN —FKEERNAE

LPG - Canteen’ 2.69 0.01%
LPG —RE’

Mobile — gasoline? 624.72 3.33%
BB — Tm?

Mobile — diesel? 70.73 0.38%
82038 — Seh?

Refrigerant application® 11,658.24 31.06%
1 FARLR A

Scope 1 total 6,527.26 34.78%
& 148 5t

Scope 2 indirect GHG emission from purchased electricity*

#E2 BEGHGRI K

Scud Electronics Electricity 7,702.74 41.04%
RERET E)

Scud Battery Electricity 4,406.79 23.48%
Scope 2 total 12,109.54 64.52%
EE248 5t

Scope 3 indirect GHG emission — aggregated at the group level

§0E3 GHGHZEFH - A REEENAE

Business air travel® 43.44 0.23%
Rz B IR T

Electricity consumed for processing fresh water® 75.43 0.40%
BRI TIEFERE®

Electricity consumed for processing wastewater® 13.47 0.07%
FE7K )0 LB FER) B 17°

Scope 3 total 132.34 0.71%
& E 348 5t

Total GHG 18,769.14 100.00%
GHG# 2
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Emission for the combustion of natural gas
for stationary source was calculated with
emission factors from Greenhouse Gas
Protocol Calculation Tool — GHG Emissions
from Stationary Combustion (Chinese).

Emission for the combustion of for mobile
transportation was calculated with emission
factors from Greenhouse Gas Protocol
Calculation Tool — GHG Emissions from
Transport or Mobile Sources.

The consumption volume of the refrigerant
was provided by the Engineering
Department of the Group, including all
operations, offices, warehouses, and
other buildings of the Group, to remain
consistent with the reporting scope, 50%
of the total consumption were allocated to
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery based on
engineers’ estimation. Emission factors for
R22/HCFC-22 application were based on
the Fifth Assessment Report (AR5) for GWP
values for 100-year time horizon — 1,760 kg
CO2eq. per kg of R22.

Combined margin emission factor of
0.70285 tCO/MWh was used for purchased
electricity in Fujian, China.

Emissions were calculated using online tool
provided by International Civil Aviation
Organisation.

Emission factors were made reference to
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules
and their referred documentation as set
out by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited, unless stated otherwise.

MiEET s BEE)SRBRRARMED
RERBIZ IR E RS
EREHEM(F O HyE
UREETE ©

MizE2 :  BEBMEERSENR
BRERBHAAETA -
BB B R ERE
R B BERRBGTE -

MizE3: BALAHAEmASEIR
iR BEAEERE
EE PRAEABERE
HiEFHHAE  HERS
BERT B REIR
BB - A E850%HH
REBETFERERSE
B 4 o {# FIR22/HCFC-22
B BE R BE IR B5X R &
=T 3 25 (ARS)H B 1004F
GWPEFTE — & T 7%R22
1,760 F " —EftixEE °

Mzt : PEEZEEERAEH
BEEREEE IR
0.7028518 — & (b ik °

MisEs :  ERPFBIRAERERMA
BRENEGIAGFE -

fiaEe : BmAFAIN - BHRER
SEBFRBMARIAAR
RBEER TR A8
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(iii) Hazardous Waste

The Group generated various types of hazardous
electronic and chemical wastes. All were generated
from production lines. A total amount of 3.7906
tonnes of hazardous waste was reported for the
Group during the Reporting Period. All hazardous
wastes were strictly collected, handled, and stored on-
site following the “Standard for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Waste Storage” (GB18597-2001), as well
as the Group’s Management Procedures for Hazardous
Chemicals. The procedure requested specifically on:

o Proper storage and identification, and separation
from other goods

o Storage place with proper ventilation, restricted
access by only qualified specialists

e Zero leakage of chemicals

e Nearby fire extinguishing facilities in place

o Protective materials are in place and used by
specialists

All hazardous waste would be further handled by
registered and licensed collectors regulated by the local
government. Some of the wastes were transferred to
Fujian Solid Waste Disposal Co., Ltd. for municipal
treatment, and other recyclable electronics were
collected by Shenzhen Taili Waste Battery Recycling
Technology Co., Ltd..

(iii) BEEEY

AEBEESEERETFRICEEE
Mo MEBREMYBHEERESE -
A= E 45 R 53,7906 B E fE &
) o REREEIR - FTE B EREEDY
BRIEARAR B B8 BE W B A7 5 o S A
(GB18597-200M A Kk N EE /) /& &
EEREBRTRE  RERFRH -
R LEeEA T EEARR

. ERGHEES REEE
L

s THFRSFERRL BHEER
MEZALAEL

o (EEmTHRRE

o MUEECHEIRNERIE

e BEBEMH HEXAL
i35

FBEEREMEHZH T RFRE
EVFERT ~ R R — IR o BB
DERYMBREREEEBERYE
EBRRAPETHEEE - MEMWA]
W EFEMBRYIMEIEEED
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Waste amount (tonnes)

Hazardous waste type BEEEEYER REEEY £ (NF)
Waste containers of organic solvent JEE 75 WS I A 0.01
Waste cloth with machine oil h B HOm ) EE AT 0.08
Waste ink and paints JEE 2B R R AR 0.11
Cleansing chemicals =il 0.56
Waste cloth with organic solvent 8 B WS EIR EE 3.03
Waste batteries REE 0.0056
Total hazardous waste EEEEDHE 3.79
Intensity (tonnes per pieces of sold products)  ZE (M BHCEEM) 2.65E-09

(iv)

For both hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, the overall intensity was based on
total aggregated products sold by the two
key operations.

Note 1:

For all hazardous waste categories other than cleansing
chemicals and waste cloth with organic solvent, a
reduction on waste generation was achieved compared
with that of last reporting period, ranging from 27%
to 95% reduction in the amount generated.

Non-hazardous Waste

Non-hazardous wastes the Group generated were
mainly industrial waste from production and
commercial waste such as waste papers. A total
amount of 358.14 tonnes of non-hazardous wastes
were generated in total during the Reporting Period.

Waste metal and waste plastics were sold to a
downstream handler — Fuzhou Microparticle Plastics
Technology Co., Ltd. for downstream recycling.

During the Reporting Period, a total amount of
4,672.84 kg waste office paper were generated, and
4,439.97 kg (95% of waste paper) were collected by
the aforementioned handler for recycling, while the
remaining few were handled to the Environmental
and Health Management Department of Fuzhou
Economic and Technological Development Zone. Those
unrecyclable waste papers included office papers with
confidential information which had to be shredded
and hauled away with other non-hazardous waste for
landfilling.

(iv)

e kETERYMNER
BEERMATEEBR

EMREEMR °

BRET -

BB R B KB EIA T EEm AN
HFTBEREMER - BEYELRE
—EREERL  RIPER2I%E
95% °

BEBEEY
AREBEANEBEEEENTIE A4
ETEEEYREEREEZY  WE
e REEHM AEBHRFES
358. 14MAMEEREEY) -

BB MEEHHE T THEEREE
IR BB B IR A A ©

RIS - REBEEENEFEHR
NEREERAL672.84T 52 Eh
4,439.97F R (FEHK L 2 195%) A
LR EEITEI - mER T D2
DIERERINE B M AR IRIE A
FEREREITRIE - ST B
FREEHEHEE SN AR
HARKWH IR REEYEEE
# o
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Waste amount (tonnes)

Non-hazardous waste type BERZEWER RSV £ (NF)
Waste metal BEeE 24.28
Waste papers-recycled REAR — B 4.44
Waste papers-landfilled R4 — 1B 0.24
Waste plastics REEE L 321.45
Other production wastes HEMAEEREREY 7.73
Total non-hazardous waste BEFEEVHEE 358.14
Intensity (tonnes per pieces of sold products)  ZE (B8, GHEEESD) 2.51E-07
Following schemes were implemented to reduce REBEERE - AR EEREEREY
generation of both hazardous and non-hazardous MES BT ATEE

waste during the Reporting Period:

- Reduce: source reduction on hazardous and non- - R EBEEREEEVE

hazardous waste generation was implemented,
at the same time more pro-environmental
behaviours have been promoted among
employees to reduce both the consumption of
resources and generation of waste

—  Reuse: reuse the incoming packaging materials
such as cardboard boxes as much as possible

- Recycle: collaborate with post-consumer
waste recyclers to divert recyclable waste from
landfilling, e.g., 95% of waste paper generated
during this Reporting Period has been recycled

Since the recording of non-hazardous waste generation
included different categories from those recorded
during the last reporting period. The comparison was
not deemed appropriate and not provided.
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(v) Wastewater

The production lines do not generate industrial
wastewater. The domestic wastewater was discharged
to the Water Bureau for centralised processing after
on-site treatment with septic tanks.

(v) REK
HEBTEETEREK - KRB HE
ERIRE - EIRRBEKBEREKRER
EFRRE -

Domestic wastewater (m?3)

Site B AT HTEREK(ZTTK)
Scud Electronics REMREF 60,284
Scud Battery REMRE M 10,549
Total et 70,833

Use of Resources

The Group continued to adopt the Energy and Resource
Management Procedure to manage the proper use of
energy, water, and other resources. The monitoring method
was to collect monthly data on resource consumption,
analyse the hot-spot and set up updated monthly target. By
year-end, management team will review the performance
and check the implementation of the target through
management review.

(i) Energy Consumption

During the Reporting Period, the electricity
consumption was 17,229,193 kWh in total for the
Group, whereas Scud Electronics consumed a larger
amount of electricity of 10,959,300 kWh. Other fuels
used by the Group included LPG for canteen and
gasoline and diesel for vehicles during the Reporting
Period.

EREA
REBEETMNEERRERERZT - A
BERELR  KREMERNEEER - B
BITERARS AREBERBEFEERE - 2
BB R Eiﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ’]ﬁ* o B IR EKTE
FEZABNRRITBREERNBRER
BREEEN

(i) BERHZE
REHB REENEESLRER
17,229,193 F LB - EREFIHER
KEBHE 10,959,300 T FLBF o 1R
iHﬁF‘ﬁ REEE A E MR EE
BFEALPG R EHE A F5H -
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(i)

Annual electricity consumption and intensity

FREEREBE
Intensity (kWh
per pieces of sold

products)

Consumption (kWh) ZBE(TERE

Site B AT REE(TER) BHEEER)
Scud Electronics RERETF 10,959,300 9.14E-01
Scud Battery REBRE M 6,269,893 4.42E-03

LPG, diesel, and gasoline fuel consumption

LPG ~ SR MR ELH#E

Indirect

consumption

Direct consumption (in kwh)

Energy source BETR BEiFHE BEHEHE(TRE)
LPG (in kg) LPG(F5) 9.30F+02 12,962.91
Gasoline/petrol (in litre) ban=1Gaw. 275,020.2 2,437,133.44
Diesel (in litre) S () 264,27.6 264,232.12

The Group continues to implement energy
conservation initiatives as illustrated under the overall
"Environmental” section. Compared with last reporting
period, the total electricity consumption increased
slightly as illustrated under “The Environment and
Natural Resources” section.

Water Consumption

The Group obtained both production and domestic
water from the local Water Bureau. There were no
issues in sourcing water during the Reporting Period.
The total water consumption for the Group was
187,720 m? during the Reporting Period.

The Group continues to implement water saving
initiatives, ensuring the water saving from both
technical side (e.g., proper maintenance for water
facilities and avoid any leakage) and behaviour
perspective (e.g., “turning off the tap as you go”).

(i)

AEEEEERERIRE | &R
EVERRERE G - WM E—EREH - [R
BERERERI—ESHMTNEREE
BRAIZ NN -

FEKE

REEB A KEBESEERLEE
FA7K o s EAR - REVEKIR A AL
EMMREE - AEBERIRE BN
K8 AE187,7203 L 5K ©

REBEBEEEKER - BRIEK
M E(plan - SHOKREETEE
R R AT DRIR) RITRAE(F)
o TBEFREK - AEKREED) -
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(iii)

Water consumption and intensity BABRRE
Intensity (m? per
pieces of sold
products)
Consumption (m3) BE(LAK
Site SR FEKE(IFK) BHEEEM)
Scud Electronics RERET 150,012 1.25E-02
Scud Battery REBRE M 37,708 2.66E-05

Packaging materials (iii) B

Packaging materials were sourced from various
suppliers in Fujian province during the Reporting
Period. A total amount of 1,575.53 tonnes of
packaging materials were consumed during the
Reporting Period. Most of the materials were
consumed for Scud Electronics for it needs more
materials for protection, storage, internal transfer
and delivery of components and finished products.
The intensity for the packaging materials for Scud

HREHME  AEEREEE S HER
HEAEME - MEHEERENBRE
WME4EE A1,575.5308 o KEBDHE
TEREREFEMRE  FEFERS
MEHRE - i - REPER R H
B REKD - REREFRRERSE
WEBEEMBEES R ABHEEE
f1.3E-04% 1.56-08 « ARRIBEE
EBEENEYHEETNE - TEEIMT

Electronics and Scud Battery was 1.3E-04 and 1.5E- AEBEAE o
08 per pieces of sold products, respectively. Internal
benchmark shall not be performed due to the
different property of goods produced by the two key
operations.
Consumption (tonnes)
Packaging materials BEMB SHAEE (W)
Paper-based packaging materials M B EEM R 1,446.66
Plastic-based packaging materials BEREEM R 128.87
Consumption (tonnes)
Packaging materials used by site SRERANBEMR SHFEE (W)
Scud Electronics REMRET 1,554.30
Scud Battery REREM 21.23
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3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group's business does not generate significant impacts
on environment, though it does rely on upstream extracting
of raw earth materials. The Group considers resource
conservation of paramount importance. We systematically
identified any resource-intensive activities and adopted
Control measures to reduce resource consumption and their
associated emissions. Below are some key activities, their

associated environmental impacts, and control measures.
1. Refringent usage: involving chemicals such as CFC-11,

CFC-12, CFC-13, HCFC-22, R500, F502 which lead to
ozone depletion and global warming.

Control measures:

o Purchasing policies on energy efficient appliance,
proper maintenance;

. Reduce leakage;

o Increase recycling rate;

. At the end of appliance life time, it is reclaimed,
or treated in cooperation with local Environmental

Protection Agency (EPA);

. Windows and doors shall be closed for all air-
conditioned rooms;

o Air-conditioner will be installed in a cool place or
a sunshade can be installed.
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Use of purchased resources: generating indirect
emissions and impacts.

Control measures:

e  Considering purchase of renewable energies,
and/or install on-site renewable energy.

Daily production/domestic activities: leading to
resource consumption and waste generation.

Control measures:

o Campaign to save paper, waste paper recycling,
double-sided printing, use of waste paper for
notes and memos;

° Campaign to save water, report and reduce
water leakage;

e Save electricity: lighting management, arranging
personnel patrol inspection to avoid energy
waste, using the design of natural lighting and
sunscreen of buildings;

o Resource recovery, assessment and enhancement
of waste reuse, waste reduction to reduce the
load of incinerating and landfilling processes of
municipal waste treatment centres;

° Planting trees to increase green area and micro-
climate regulation;

e  Standardise procurement process, select energy
saving equipment, and keep regular maintenance
of equipment;

FREEER: EXEMBEEREY
@,

S

e EZERBUBERRRE /XL
KRG A BARLR -

AEEETEEERY  HEERME
ERERY) -

IS

o HIWAM - BEAEUY - EEIT
B BREaRFEELARLE
7N s

o ERRIAIK - E IR ADIRK

o AT BEEE . RHA
BB eRRE  KAB
RS S R SR S R R

o BREW - FERREAEEY
BANA - RIDEEY RED
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e Promote pro-environmental behaviours such as: o RERBRI{TAW:

- sorting and washing similar clothes together - K¥YHE-  AEXD—H

to reduce washing times, use natural dry; B RAE SRR - R
ABRES

- adopting low-carbon life style, use public — BEERBAFSA - BE
transportation; NHZBTHE

- avoiding high-speeding, reducing car - BEBR- -BIAE- D
usage, reducing car air conditioner usage, FREHER - SEPHE o

encouraging car-pooling.

Overall, the Group has achieved its resource wEms  AEEEER2017FF
conservation target set for 2017 regarding fuel BB R AR BN E R4 B
consumption and paper consumption. Nevertheless, Z o BEWMI - KB HEANRE L
the water and electricity consumption have slightly e m2018F # AE—FEHER
increased and 2018 will be a critical year to further BOBCRMBAREE - AEE/ER
implement the resource conservation policies. The 8K DA KR S U FE 9 BR K AT BE R
potential increase in electricity and decrease in fuel RABNERERRERAR - K
consumption is likely due to the replacement of 2018%F » AEBEHatERAEEN
natural gas by electricity as the energy source. In EIBIED - Hlanf B AEEE A
2018, the Group will reinforce specific management ERE I EABRESFERETTRK]
practices such as “turning off the lights and machine HREE -

when leaving” and “avoiding waste of lighting, idle
machine, and water leakage”.

Resource category 2017 performance results compared to 2016

BERER 2017 RBEERE2016F AL

Electricity Electricity consumption increased by 1.2%, not achieving the target
S BEWERI12% @ REKBEZE

Water Water consumption increased by 1.7%, not achieving the target

K FKEER1T7%  REKBF

Fuel consumption Fuel consumption decreased by 8%, achieving the target

R FE BOREFER 8% » KB IR

Paper consumption Paper consumption decreased by 23.5%, achieving the target

HLOR B HAREFER L 23.5% » EK AT
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B. £t
EERLITER

B. Social

1. Employment and Labour Practices 1.

The Group considers human resources as our most valuable

asset. The Group adopts management practices such as

Methods of Employee Interview and keeps records of every

interview with its employees, including complaints records

if any. Employees are encouraged to discuss any of their

concerns with the Group, including but not limited to the

following topics:

0}

Work environment: whether equipment and facilities
can meet the needs of work in time, enterprise
culture, management system construction;

Job aspects: job responsibilities, operating procedures,
work tasks, development & training, promotion,
personal career planning;

Employee benefits and welfare;

Employees’ family issues.

Employment

The Group had a total number of 2,424 employees
as of 31 December 2017. All of them were full
time employee. The updated 2017 Staff Manual has
come into force including basic human resources
(HR) policies, recruitment and dismissal procedures,
compensation and benefits, appraisal, rewarding and
penalty, promotion, contract abolition, development
and training, employees’ communication, and
occupational health and safety.

The Group established specific recruitment processes
for those returned employees. All other newly engaged
employees shall follow the normal recruitment
procedures such as providing personal data for
background check. The termination of a labour
contract includes different types and categories, such
as resignation, dismissal and termination under various
situations. The Group identifies situations which may
lead to a dismissal, e.g., an employee committing un-
ethical behaviors such as bribery and/or corruption.

AEEBRANERAZEEEE  XRA
BTN ASERERRRCEEERD
A BREERRE(INE) - NREEEE
BEGHRBEEFHARENRTIY  BHEE
ARMATTE

o IFRIE : RIBRRIEZEME RE
ITE - pEXL BEREGERS
K

o  TIfEhmE : TIFRE - BIEEF T
1EER - BREEI - BT EAR
ESE K

o [EBREA:
e EBRERMRE -

(i) 1=

M20179F12A8318 A& B £ H
22452 EE - 2HEEHV AREH
BE - Z#FM2017FETFMEE
o BEEARANERHR)ECK « 18
IERRERRF - FBRER - 77
g EH aR®B%R - BREE
- BEEBRRBEGERESE -

AEEOpEREERARERAR
FreBEMMABRERERLE
AR RHEEABENRES
%E - RILBBHERBETREN R
AR - B - BREMRIEZERR
b - AEREFERI A RS BRENTE
o BMEBFHIRERTTA - iRk
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Compensation and Benefits

Basic compensation and benefits package include
minimum wages, legally mandated breaks, holidays,
social insurance and pension in compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC regarding
employment, such as: Law on Trade Unions of the
PRC, Employee Annual Vacation Regulations, Social
insurance law of the PRC Employees are entitled to
leave of absence, annual leave, sick leave, marriage
leave, compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave, voluntary leave, injury leave, compensation leave
and breastfeeding breaks.

The Group has internal Salary Management
Regulations to manage employee compensation,
which includes basic salary, bonus, special allowance,
overtime allowance, and extra stipend when
applicable. The remuneration structure is “merit-
based” and is set objectively based on the personnel’s
position and performance. In addition, all employees
are entitled to have a “birthday red packet” each
year, as well as a “wedding red packet” when the
employee gets married. The Group also sends cash to
employees to celebrate their new-born babies, or to
show condolence for employees’ family loss.

Appraisal System

The Group enforces “Everyone is equal” as one
basic principle when dealing with rewarding and
penalty system. The Rewarding and Penalty Procedure
clearly define criteria on rewarding and penalty and
incentive regulations. All cases shall follow the written
procedure. The Group adopts the promotion principle
of unleashing the talents of every employee. And
all employees have the opportunity to be promoted
if they show the talents and suitability for a certain
position. HR Department will arrange comprehensive
evaluation procedures before an employee is
promoted.

HN BRI

EAFH B AR & o BE A ARRE
RERER(MPETEE BEF
RIRIGD] - PEM G REOE) R ER
RETE DEEKRE - #HRA - R
REZRE EEAEZANRK - F
B mR B BREEER E
R BER BRKRER - THR &
ERREIRER -

NEEHEARNI LA SR - B8
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BIREL - INVTEBL R EBSNEEL (L0
F) - BB AN B AER IR
BAEBMBULRRERTESRT - It
SN FTEREGFAEEIERLE]
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HEIERBIKER

AEBEBEAZIREIZET - 545
RIS EBNEGIRERF - B8R
BETIRBERIFERISHE
RAERFTR  1EERANER
S 2)BBRFERF - LKA
B BMA R B BITIRERRER
FFFIMETHEFLIRER -

Equal Opportunity and Non-discrimination

The Group implemented a formal Control Procedure
on Prohibition of Forced Labour, Discrimination and
Workplace Harassment. Employees have the following
channels to report on any violation or suspected
violation under this procedure: 1) report directly to the
HR department; 2) go through the complaint program,
and send it to a specified mailbox or call a designated
hotline; or 3) go to the Employee Care Centre for help.

Number of employees

EEAZ
Scud Electronics Scud Battery Total
RERE T FRERRE M #st

Total number of employees & B # % 1,781 643 2,424
Employee category EEER
Senior management 2RERAE 10 8 18
Middle management RAREIEAB 125 56 181
Frontline and other staff —EREMET 1,646 579 2,225
By age group BRERAR
<=25 <=25 856 300 1,156
>=26, and <=35 >=26M<=35 687 243 930
>=36, and <=45 >=36M<=45 190 84 274
>=46, and <=55 >=46 2 <=55 45 16 61
>=56 >=56 3 0 3
By gender R
Male S 1,192 404 1,596
Female g 589 239 828
By region RES
Mainland China B K fE 1,781 643 2,424
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Total Workforce (Number of employees) By Employee Category
RESERES 2(EE)REEH D

18

[ Senior management Middle management ([l Frontline and other staff
BRERRE hRERE AR EME T

Total Workforce (Number of employees) By Age Group
RERAENB D 2(BE)REH D

61

1,156
B<=25 P@>=26and<=35 >=36,and<=45 [ >=146,and < =55
<=25 >=26, 2 <=35 >=36, k<=45 >=46, )2 <=55

Total Workforce (Number of employees) By Gender
BRUBE S 2 (BE)BEE N

@ male [ female
£ 8
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Turnover ABRK
A total number of 1,975 employees left the Group in M201745F - REBEHF1,975%EE
2017, contributing to turnover rate of 81.48%. Such a BERE - ABMALLE7381.48% © 10
high turnover rate was very common in the electronic HERABRAL RET TRIETTE
manufacturing industry. BEER -
Scud Electronics Scud Battery Group total
RERET RERE sEEc

Total number of employees 20175 BB B B AR

leaving employment in 2017 1,563 412 1,975
Turnover Rate AEREHER 87.76% 64.07% 81.48%
Employee category EEER
Senior management ERERAE 2 1 3
Middle management FRERAE 13 7 20
Frontline and other staff — R RHEMET 1,548 404 1,952
By age group RERAER
<=25 <=25 1,002 268 1,270
>=26, and <=35 >=26M<=35 492 114 606
>=36, and <=45 >=36M<=45 62 26 88
>=46, and <=55 >=46 ) <=55 6 4 10
>=56 >=56 1 0 1
By gender gl
Male B 1,136 292 1,428
Female @ 427 120 547
By region REE
Mainland China B R RE 1,563 412 1,975

103



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - HEREBRE

Total Turnover Rate By Employee Category
RESERSINBAERKLLE

Frontline and other staff
a0 = D 87.73°
Al R EAME T 87.73%

Middle management
e MD 11.05%

Senior management )
=rmmg M 16.67%
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Total Turnover Rate By Age Group
RERARNEDNBABRALR

>~ D 33:33%

> =56

>=46,and < =55
! “16.39D
>=46, 2 <=55 %

> =36, aNd < = 45
! 32.12%
>=36, & <=45 !

> = 20 AN < = 3 D
0 ‘I 0,
>=26, F <=35 eo16%

©7 2 D 109 86 %

<=25

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120%

Total Turnover Rate By Gender

BUBIE D NBAERKL R

female
“© — .06
66.06%

male
= D) 59.47 %

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
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(ii) Occupational Health and Safety (“OHS")

The Group endeavours to ensure employees are

protected from potential hazards, risks, and accidents.

Workplace health and safety is of paramount

importance to the Group.

The Group applies Risk Assessment and Control

approach to manage workplace health and safety.

First, the relevant risks and hazards related to our

operation have been identified. These identified

risks were then assessed for 1) their probability of

occurrence, and 2) the potential consequences of the

(i) BE@ERZZ(OHS))
AEBB AN ERERZIRE - [
IHEERE - BBRRER - TIESHM
RESEZ2UAEEMEEHESEE -

AEBERBRRRERIES L - &
BIESMERERS - B A%
BT REERRNERRREE -
Z1& - FHEEREERRI) B X
R2)BEEMBEERR -

occurrence.

Risk assessment-
Activities Potential hazards Consequences of hazards score
EE BERE RERR BRI -2 8
Application of chemicals Leakage Burning of eyes, skins 200
FRLER BIR NERE - KB

Product design

EmRs

Printing processes

ENmliaie

Transportation of chemicals
tERESR

Equipment usage

REBER

Welding processes
3 ol

All manufacturing processes

FrBgLE Rk

Extreme weather
BmAR

Design errors
it

Transmission of hazardous chemicals
BEEELER

Leakage, fire, explosion etc.

IR K BIFS

Design errors or inappropriate usage
HERAEATE

Fumes from welding

BEREE

Wire aging, improper maintenance of appliance,

operations not following procedures

ERE( - RERETE  THATRAE

Not closing doors and windows, collapse of

buildings, trees etc.
THFR - 25 BIAEGS

Short circuit, explosion 800
BRI
Syncope, central nerve paralysis etc. 320

B - PRWEMES

Fatalities 320
A=t

Short circuit, explosion 360
fEEE - RIE

Respiratory damage 320
WRASES

Fire 320
KK

Fatalities and/or injuries 400
RUEHR/HEE
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To control the high-risk areas, the Group adopts
internal Regulations for the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases Management to secure
employees’ health and safety. Any related expenses
of occupational health examination are to be borne
by the Company. In case any occupational disease is
found, the Group will follow the “Regulations for the
treatment of patients with occupational diseases and
occupational diseases” to implement any follow-ups.
All employees are required to take part in occupational
disease prevention and health knowledge training
sessions. Similarly, the employees are requested to use
personal protective equipment when applicable.

The Group applies Assessment of the Implementation
of Health and Safety Management to evaluate the
health and safety management, monitoring the
performance via several measurable metrics. All
key functional departments are required to fill in
the evaluation form each month to track their OHS
performance, and they all performed well under OHS
topics — achieving 100 scores.

BEFERREE  AEERANT
WEREEIEG - BREBOR
BERZE  BERRGSHEBMESE
FBARRREE - BEEBER - &
SEBREBEREERBERE
BARGI ETRE - FTEEENTS
TN ZE R TER M B 1 ANsE 5 FI AR AR -
B - (B BEF A EARERE
(ER) -

AEBERAREELZE2ERERAT
il FHERELRLZEE - BBEE
AEEEREERE - AT BB
P ARERERE - NRHE
OHSKRIR - B&ABRERIFIEROHSTT
EHRBREF —EF1009 °

Best performance

Goals Evaluation Criteria score
AR TERE BERRED
Less than 2 minor work injury cases each month One minor injury deducting 5 points, 20 points
BAEMIEFWEN2R more than 2 cases deduct all points. 209
IREMIGERNSD  BB2RNRAESH

0 major injury case each month Any major injury deducting all points 30 points
BRAOREXGEEN —BEESREFEH  ARMEHH 30%
0 major accidents such as fire, or those resulting in more than ~ Any listed accidents deducting all points 50 points

RMB10,000 loss, or life injuries, or any accidents resulting —BEEFAMAIIEN - RAESH 509

in significant operational impacts
OREREH - AU FER AR 10,000700A B TH)
B WEREREETENFY
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(iii)

Other metrics such as injury and fatal incident rates,
lost days due to injuries were also kept at the group
level. The Group treats workplace health and safety
as a continuous improving process, and we frequently
review and improve safety management system
processes to achieve injury-free workplace.

Occupational Health and Safety Data

Scud Electronics

SEERTCHECERE  BIE
BRTFERHFEMER - KAEEG
THZARERZERFBENEE
7 - Hﬁfﬁ?\ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂ&iﬁﬁéfi
g ARIIESAEIE

BERREZZHIE
Scud Battery

RERE 7 RERRE M
Work related fatality BT YRR LT 0 0
Lost days due to work injury AIEEELXIEAH 23 135
Work injury cases <3 days TIEEH<3R 1 0
Work injury cases >3 days TI5EH>3K 3 4

To the best of the information and knowledge of
the directors of the Company, during the Reporting
Period there was no material non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations relating to
occupational health and safety which had a material
impact on the Group.

Development and Training

The Group follows internal Regulations on Training
Management to monitor the employees’ development
and training practices. Other than general trainings
on topics such as OHS, management systems, the
following specific types of trainings were carried out:

e Job competency: training for updating/expanding
employee knowledge, improving job skills,
promoting work efficiency.

o Special skills/qualification training: training for
special operators, whom need to participate in
the training organised by professional training
institutions, and obtain external qualification
certificates.

e Key position personnel training: training for staff
of key production positions, they will need to
pass the internal qualification examination.

o Any temporary internal training: directly fill in
“training implementation schedule”, and select
“new demand for the implementation basis”.

e Any unplanned external training: the application
form will be filled by departments or individuals,
submitted to the general manager of the
subsidiary for approval.

(iii)

HARREFTRMLRE - RIWEH
M BEEAEEREAEERE

FENBERREM T ZHBNER
ERRER o

BRRIEI
AEERAABEINER RS - BEiE
BEBHRERIEIFEMR - BROHS ~ B
S —ARIFFIIN - AEE TR HIA
THEF RN

« T{REeR  EFWFEAM
BB TEREREB T
R -

o HRERE/AREBI  FKE
EABTEI - 2l A8
AN B IE I 1 AR A B 3
FALEIGINEPEIRFE ©

e ERMUABEI:EERLE
LA B - 2mEFH A
BRABBNMERER -

o EAREEEI  EXER

[y B peE B | RIR B
LEES =R

o (EAIRFEISNINERIEFI : B BD

FIREARSRFR  TEX
B R AR TR EE AL
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For new employees in particular, three hierarchies
of trainings were carried out. On their first day, the
HR Department will introduce them the development
history of the Company, the enterprise culture, the
OHS policies, anti-bribery, anti-corruption, counter-
terrorism etc. they will also be visiting the factory and
understanding the layout of the Company. Secondly,
at departmental training, the process flow, production
characteristics, risk factors etc. will be carried out.
And finally, at individual working group, training will
be conducted by their direct supervisors including
technical skills and operating procedures etc.

First hierarchy
(first day of employment)

F—E(\EE8)

Second hierarchy
(within first week of employment)

BENEERE)

Third hierarchy
(within first month of employment)

B=E(AEEA)

In 2017, the Group completed a total of 32,437
training hours for 10,588 employees.

LEHRHEER  AREEE=(E
BRWEI - ABRE—XK ADE
IREBRABENBRRNBERESL -
PEXL - OHSEER - Rl - B
W REE - BREEH2ETH -
TRARNME - £ #ETIH
MR AESE - AREREAFIE
Al o &% - BB TIEANEIIKHEE
BETEER BRERERRFERF

o

&

By HR department
BBANEIREF

By the department of employment
BB

By direct supervisor

BBERELT

M2017F » REE #4510,588% &
BIRME 32,437/ N5 o
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Scud Scud
Electronics Battery Total
RERET REREH @t

Number of employee receiving training 2 iEHI/E E AZ 6,328 4,260 10,588
Total training hours |\ 26,135.5 6,301.5 32,437
By employee category RESER
Senior management Number of employees receiving training 8 8 16
BRERAR 2IEINES AR

average training hours completed per employee 4.95 5.63 5.25

BaRETMZIOTHEE
Middle management Number of employees receiving training 595 190 785
RREEAE SMEINNES AR

average training hours completed per employee 19.44 931 16.30

SHERZREINOTHRY
Frontline and other staff Number of employees receiving training 5,725 4,062 9,787
AR HMET ZMENNES AR

average training hours completed per employee 14.37 9.91 13.21

BARETMZIOTHEE
By gender b gE ]
Male Number of employees receiving training 4,184 2,491 6,675
5 2IMEIINEE AL

average training hours completed per employee 13.95 9.60 12.85

BRREETHIINTHEE
Female Number of employees receiving training 2,144 1,769 3,913
Z 2IMEIINEEAY

average training hours completed per employee 16.14 10.13 14.41

SRERTARINTHER
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(iv) Labour Standard

Background check was conducted for every new
employee during the recruitment process to ensure
compliance with the any applicable labour laws in
China, such as the Labor Law of the PRC. There
were no children nor forced labour in the Group’s
operations in the Reporting Period. The Group
applies following hierarchies to strictly follow labour
standards:

1. Control at the system level: According to the
Group’s human resource management control
process, child and forced labour is strictly
prohibited, and the responsibilities of the
relevant department and personnel in the various
recruitment process are clearly stated.

2. Control with high-tech: Before signing the
contract, the employees’ personal information
identification system was initiated, and the age
audit of the employees was performed.

3. The humanistic care: An employee care center
was established to help address the employees’
concerns, objectively and impartially react on the
feedback from staff, and take actions for any
violation reported and confirmed.

4. Reference of third party information: After
obtaining the consent of the employees,
the Company checks the authenticity of the
information provided by the employees by
checking with independent third parties and/or
the employees’ past employers.

(iv) BTXR
BEHBTERBERETHERESR
HE - BRTETPENEAERSH
ER - AR ESENE - RIREHRE
AEENEEBERET LGS
THER - ARBEBATERERE
1RE <y AR

1. HIEEEES: REEEHA
NEREBEBEF - BELE
IEERETREHST - B8
HRTEREABFIIABESE
RESBIEPHEL

2. PRRES REALOZA
2 8 1 8 A & F 8R & g’
B WEBHETFRER

3. AXEE: 2uESREIEDL
ENEREMAESE  FEAL
W B TR RER R
RIERNERTREIITE °

4. BEF=FEF: BBEER
Bk ARBEBIYFE=FRS
HEEMRIREREIZEEERMH
BERMEEN -
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2. Operating Practices

(@

Supply Chain Management

The purchasing policy was not updated in 2017. The
purchasing of tantalum, tin, tungsten and gold (“3TG")
minerals were avoided as human rights issues are
directly and/or indirectly linked to the extraction and
trade of these minerals. Based on the principles of
openness, fairness and honesty, suppliers are selected
and evaluated with consideration of their legitimacy,
cost, management system, production and supply
capacity, technology and quality.

The social and environmental impacts of suppliers
are managed under the Responsible Business Alliance
(RBA) program (the formerly Electronic Industry
Citizenship Coalition (EICC) program). The RBA
facilitates collaboration and dialogue among various
stakeholders toward achieving the RBA mission of a
responsible global electronics supply chain. In corollary,
the Group’s compliance with the RBA standards
continues to ensure that working conditions in the
upstream suppliers are safe, workers are treated with
respect and dignity, and manufacturing processes are
environmentally responsible.

In 2017, major suppliers of the Group were sourced
from Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan, and the
Republic of Korea.

2. EEIEH

0]

HEEEE
RIBBOR2017F R B AL EH -
BN AR REER & R EZ
EmEMNRERNIE ZEME - Fi#e
REREE - 8 HERFEE - RIBAM -
R RIER R B E BTG R
B EBEEERFEENEIEME - KA
EERR  LERMERESN  RE
B2 o

feln

HEFELE MRENZERBEEE
BEBRITAEAM(RETTERR
BETTRERI)EITER - RERE
BREESHOHEZANAIERY
o NEREEREBMEREENE
FHEENED o IR - A%KE
BTEIREBBTRENRERE
TERHERTFRENZE BT
XEEEME A AR ELERIE
HIRIREE -

M20175F  AEEN T 2HERHM
REPEARE - B8 - 8ERER -

Total number

of suppliers

by region

Scud Electronics  Scud Battery REFHE D

Geographical region hE & RERET RERE HEER AR
Mainland China SICIPN 162 185 347
Hong Kong BE 2 35 37
Taiwan =y 1 3 4
The Republic of Korea 45 3 0 3
Total #st 168 223 391
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(ii) Product Responsibility

No non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided can
be identified during the Reporting Period.

Product Packaging and Advertisement

Packaging of our sold products has clear indication
to ensure safe handling during transportation, to
avoid any false or misleading contents to misguide
consumers. Safety requirements are labelled on
product packaging when applicable. The Control
Procedure on Information Communication guide
relevant activities, in addition to following national
standards: GB191-2000 Packaging: Pictorial Marking
for Handling of Goods, GB18455-2001 Packaging
Recycle Mark, GBT18455-2010 Packaging Recycling
Marking.

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Business Ethics
guides commercial advertisement. In particular, when
doing advertisement, inappropriate elements and/or
acts should be avoided, which include but not limited
to:

e  biased propaganda or exaggeration of certain
defects in comparable products or services, and
the use of contrasts, associations, etc., to reflect
others;

e the involvement of counterfeit trademarks
unapproved by relevant department in various
statements or notices;

e unauthorised use of other well-known goods and
service marks as a foil to promote own products
and services;

o using words or promises that are ambiguous to
consumers;

(i) EmEE

REHE - SEIFHAEEEE
TENEBREELLE EE B

BREF RREMERERBOELE

HHOBEBERERER -

ERBERES

ﬁzﬁﬁﬁgﬁuumﬂ J:,E:ﬁﬁﬁﬁg?a

CUHERNERBEPFIR
E@’&mﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ&%ﬁmnﬂ
EPEERE - NERKREMBE
i%tx%xiﬁ“ BREIRIZAE
GB191-20008% : EY B EHFER
/T\ffﬂu GB18455-20014 & [a] Yy 12

* GBT18455-2010% & B Y 1% &5
u%vﬁm%@% |2 Fr 5 5148
A o

AEBAEBEERITRAENEEE
EERMIES - LER - RESHET
B BN T TEITER,H1T
R BEENER

o HAHLBERIRBEHHFL
BRI EERBEAN - AR
LR ETLL - B S 77 S LA 5
HAp A

o NEFEEBHASCAMDHBRRL
HEABPENBEEE

s RAREEEEMEMHMABAEMK
REBRIERBIEANERERS
Em MR

e HHEBEEFASHTAENAE
PR



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IRIE - 2R ERRE

o using unlawful, unscientific and unfair evaluation

or awards;

o Garbling, stealing and/or hiding main facts in
relevant data.

All relevant activities are in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations including “Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC"”; “Advertising Law of the
PRC”, “Law of the PRC on the Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests”, "Regulations on the Ethics
of Advertising Activities”. No false nor misleading
contents shall be contained within any advertisement.

Quality Control and Quality Assurance

The Group updated its Control Procedure on Non-
conformance Products, clarified the responsibility of
each department to ensure minimum defects and
corrective actions were taken in a timely manner.

. Quality Department: overall supervision to
identify, review, handle and track the non-
conformance materials and products;

e Warehousing Department: identifying, isolating,
and feedback on non-conformance;

e  Engineering Department: root cause analysis of
non-conformance products;

e  Production Control Department: sorting, re-
working, scraping on non-conformance;

. Manufacturing department: identification,
isolation, feedback, correction and improvement
of non-conformance products.

o ERIE - ERBRARFH
B R

o H HBE/HEEAEEK
BHHOTEEE -

ERBRSETAMRERRE
S BRIPEARANMBERATEE
BEE] [HEESE]  [FEAR

HABDE B E RS REE ] R BER
EJJL%%E%’EJ cEERNBRTBRERE
REREEAR -

BEAREERE

AEEEHTETABEMEHIE
Fro BHET R EPIMEE - ARRS
ERPA R = AR K0 K B SREVAY IE 48 7

RE
E

BEE - AR
KR HES & 1R K

4 2
=

B

o .
AR -

X OB IR
it \m I

o B B RETARE
iR 8

o TIRERM: HTAREMETR
RREDH

o AEEFIE: HTAREME
1198 BT - 3REE

o HEE:RA - FeEE RE-
ERRAETAREM °
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Specifically, the Group adopts targeting procedures for

dealing with following non-conformance materials and

products:

Point of Occurrence Control Methods
B %

LHER  REBRMSEIEER @ &
BT MM RER

Raw materials and/or out-sourcing products  Supplier Corrective and Preventive Measures

FME R SRR E HIEREIEE RIE

Non-conformance from processing In process Quality Control Operation Management Method
MITEHE BIEmEEHIREE IR A

Finished products non-conformance Final Quality Control Operation Management Method;
EXRmTEE Outgoing Quality Control Operation Management Method

RERERBRETEE - HEMEEHIRETRA

Products recalls Return Analysis Report

Emdd REIDHT RS

Overdue Products Specification for Material Storage Environment
BEIEm and Storage Period; Outgoing Quality Control

Operation Management Method
MEFRFRRENFRARRE  HEnEERREERTE

Hazardous materials control Restriction of Hazardous Substances (RoHS Directive),
BEMEHES waste batteries (91/157/EEC)

PR %5 E¥E (ROHSHES)

« BEE(91/157/EEC)

In 2017, the Group had an average recall rate of 8.04%
for Scud Electronics, and 1.44% for Scud Battery. It
should be noted that the following product recall table
implies those returned from the test that not reaching
the customer’s criteria, it did not imply a whole batch
recall (e.g., for the 100% recall rate). Once the goods
are returned, they are re-screened, and the qualified
ones would be re-shipped, while those inferior ones
would be re-modelled and re-manufactured.

M2017F - AEERFERSE F LA
EREMH T EEES51728.04%
F1.44% - 55X E - THERAE
REPWERATARPREINRP
EREMRENER  WARBRELR
BlER(FIa - 100%HBREIER) o —
B mRE B ERGE - 218
MEMBEFEL  MHERBEN
AR SRS o
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Product category

Scud Electronics

Product category

Scud Electronics

EmER RERRE T EmER REBREF
Product 1 Product 8

Em1 Em8

Total products sold (pcs) 32,568 Total products sold (pcs) 989,850
EEEMBE() EEEMBE()

Products recalled (pcs) 263 Products recalled (pcs) 99
EAEERMM) EABER)

Recall rate 0.81% Recall rate 0.01%
B ExE B /%

Product 2 Product 9

Em2 Em9

Total products sold (pcs) 30,360 Total products sold (pcs) 959,034
EEEMBE(T) EEEMBE()

Products recalled (pcs) 1,912 Products recalled (pcs) 149
EAEERMM) EAmERH)

Recall rate 6.30% Recall rate 0.02%
A mxE B ExE

Product 3 Product 10

Em3 Em10

Total products sold (pcs) 10,800 Total products sold (pcs) 942,810
EEEMBE() EEEMBE(H)

Products recalled (pcs) 400 Products recalled (pcs) 300.00%
EAmERH) EABERH)

Recall rate 3.70% Recall rate 0.00%
A mxE A ExE

Product 4 Product 11

Ema Em11

Total products sold (pcs) 6,000 Total products sold (pcs) 1,895,651
EEEMBE() EEEMBE(H)

Products recalled (pcs) 13 Products recalled (pcs) 6,167
EAEERMT) EAEERMT)

Recall rate 0.22% Recall rate 0.33%
B ExE B ExE
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Product category

Scud Electronics

Product category

Scud Electronics

EmER REBREF EmER REBREF
Product 5 Product 12

Em5 Em12

Total products sold (pcs) 360 Total products sold (pcs) 648,388
EEEmBE(T) EEEMBE()

Products recalled (pcs) 360 Products recalled (pcs) 3,572
EAEERMM) EABER)

Recall rate 100.00% Recall rate 0.55%
RE % RE =

Product 6 Product 13

Em6 Em13

Total products sold (pcs) 1,232,202 Total products sold (pcs) 2,273,855
EEEMBE() EEEMBE(H)

Products recalled (pcs) 6 Products recalled (pcs) 5,862
EALERH) EABERH)

Recall rate 0.00% Recall rate 0.26%
A mxE A mxE

Product 7 Product 14

Em7 Em14

Total products sold (pcs) 1,193,313 Total products sold (pcs) 1,776,967
EEEMBE() EEEMBE()

Products recalled (pcs) 3,388 Products recalled (pcs) 1,950
EAEERMT) EAEERMT)

Recall rate 0.28% Recall rate 0.11%
A mxE AmxE

Product category

Scud Battery

Product category

Scud Battery

EmEH TRERRE M EmEH FRERRE
Product 1 Product 2

Em1 Em2

Total products sold (pcs) 1,419,200,000 Total products sold (pcs) 318,489
BEEEMBE () BEEEMBE ()

Products recalled (pcs) 29,600,000 Products recalled (pcs) 2,547
EABIERH) EABIERH)

Recall rate 2.09% Recall rate 0.80%
ks AEx
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The flowcharts below set out the procedures for TXRERSIEERPRFNE D

dealing with customer complaints and recalls. IR o
Customer complaints Root-cause Review and
received - analysis — > improvement _— Cas:;;sed
WEEF#ER SRARE et RE ’
Re-work Re-work -
Rec;élsioccllgred - planned . executed - R;;;g;;d
= $HEIET HITET

Intellectual Property Right

The Control Procedure on Intellectual property (IP)
Assessment and Protection guides the protection of
IP rights of the Group and our business partners. The
Group has included IP right clause in the employee
contract and employees are required to sign the Non-
disclosure Agreement when joining the Group. The
Group has provided intellectual property training to its
employees.

Other than internal management of IP rights targeting
employees, the Group also signed Confidential
Agreement with business partners. IP right clause are
written in various contracts to mutually protect the
Group and our business partners’ patent, technology
secret, trademarks, trade secret, copyrights and other
IP rights.

In case of any incidents of breach of the agreement
by any entity, which leads to a significant loss or
consequences of the Group, the responsible party
will be penalised for no less than RMB30,000, and
any expenses related to investigation and lawsuit, if
applicable.

FBEERERY S MR 2 B RR FFHE S
REAEE LB PINEBRBH 2 FE
ERE - AEBEREE AP RAMZ
ERGH - BEEEMAREERA
BERTWHE - ARECHEEREHN
HBEREE -

retiiiE B B ER N ERIN
AEBREAXBRHEZRT MR
HMBERIGFFEBASAHTANEE
REAEELRBMNEBEHNE
A BITME - AR - AENE IR
RN EAD AR o

A ERERZGE  BRAKEH
BXERNBERIER  BEEAFEEE
TR A R #30,0007T & & 7130 78
EEEAE NFREENERNER
(@A) o
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(iii)

Data Protection

The HR Department is fully committed to the privacy
protection of employees, suppliers, customers and
consumers. For instance, the Staff Manual clearly
stated that “No employee may disclose personal salary
or probe the salary of others”. In case a department
needs to obtain salary data for work-related needs, an
approval form shall be signed by the manager of the
subsidiary before the HR Department will release such
data.

Anti-corruption

All employees, suppliers, and clients are fully regulated
under the Group’s Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery
Regulation, and SCUD’s Business Code of Ethics. In
addition, every party shall conform to the “Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC”, “Criminal Law of the
PRC”, and other laws, regulations and regulatory
documents related to commercial bribery.

Taking a Risk Assessment approach, all departments
will complete an Economic Activity Identification Form
to identify relevant parties and stakeholders of the
department, and the risks of bribery undertaken by the
personnel of the department. Employees are required
to fill in the Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Self-
checklist once every six months to ensure self-discipline
and prevent any corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud,
money laundering, or other unlawful activities.

No corruption cases were reported or found in 2017
within the Group. No concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices were brought against the Group or
its employees in 2017.

(iii)

ERRE
ANEBERBEEINNFRERE - H
R BEREFPHNEML- M-
BT FMBEREEAREHTE
HREBAATESITREMESNT
Bl mEBPETIEFRERERTE
g ANERIERMEREIRZ
GIEEC = PNCIESE S i 3

k&S

MERE HEAREFPHXAEE
RES RG] RRER S FE
RERIRE © I - BT EESTF
BRAEEHFE] [HEAEISE
ERER R EREBEARENEEX
1 e

R A R BEHE L - R EPIRHAR
PR B EE RAR - DARERE BFPIARRE
BN RFNEARBFAABTERRE
MR - BEABSEAES X
RESRREFAEER  BREER
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Community Investment

2017 is the 20th anniversary for the Group and this year’s
cultural activities focused on the celebration of our 20 years
of expansion. The Group continues to invest extensively to
promote the corporate culture and increase the employees’
belongingness. A total of 25 corporate cultural programs
have been planned and 19 were successfully implemented
throughout the year. The Group had about 1 — 3 cultural
events each month, with some corresponding to traditional
Chinese holidays. Events include hiking, badminton, billiard,
basketball games, the 20th anniversary party and old staff
commendation meeting.

The Group also encourages the employees to participate in
philanthropic activities. A total of 56 public welfare projects
were kept in official record, including blood donation,
donating winter clothing, volunteer for the elderly. In
addition, the Group regularly contribute to charities
concerned with education in various rural areas in Fujian,
Guizhou, Gansu, Henan, Jiangxi province.

HERE

2017 RARSE BB K208 F B F A H)
MALEEBEG20F HEMNEMSTE - A
EEBERZIRE MR FE X KI5
BIMBERK - BRE25BAEIER
UNMFRERINERI19E - ALET AR
P ZE3EULIED) - B REEFEER
B R o EBEFEMELSIRIT - PEK - &K
B 20FHREUREETIREARE -

AEBZBETL2EEZEY -CERAE
MAFSeIRAKBENIAR - BRI - 38
BIE X RMEERERD - 1o AKE
EMmEE - M B/ AR IEA
ZERNBROBE BSHBIRK -
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Page
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Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 : R
“Comply or explain” General Disclosure 82-83
Provisions

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste:
[ B iRz I HE — MR

EHABERIBEREYR  MKRIHEES  EEREZEEYNELESH
a) BUR: K&
b) ETFEEITABEATZENRBEEEZRAOIER -

KPI' A1.1 The Types of emissions and respective emissions data. 85-86
BB RIEIRAT BERIE R RABRABER IR -

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity. 87-89
BRERIEIREA12 AERBESNER(WER)HE -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 90-91
BRERIERA13 MELAZSEENEER(NER)BE -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 92
MBERIERA1L FELABREEEVEER(WERBE -

KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 92
BARERUERALS  fRESERE MR AEKR o

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 90-92

RABEAEWIETEA1.6  handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HlRBEEREEREYNG L  RIEEEENEELIABHRR °
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“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[T R R E

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[T R E

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EHA2 : ERER

General Disclosure 83-93
— R

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw 95
materials.

BRERER(BIEIR - R MEMRM ) BBER -

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and 94
BARAEBUEIZA2.1  intensity.
REAESMERER S HEEREEERTE -

KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 95
FARAERUEIEA2.2 BFEKEREE -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. 96-98

MRAERIERA2.3  HMAERE AR B RASKR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit 95
RASRAEEIZA2.4  for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
HAKEGER AR _ R B AR ERE - A RREA ARG B RATFK
Ho

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if 95
RARRAENIEIZA2.5 applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
ERMATABEMHNAE R (WER)BEESMIEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EBHEA3 : BIRRAAER

General Disclosure 82-83

—RRIE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

BRETAHRBERRABRENERTENBR °

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 96-97
B4R 4E3E1ZA3.1  and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

M EBRHHRBERRNERNEATERERNEE AT EN
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B. Social B.itE

* Employment s BRRZIER
and Labour
Practices

Aspect B1: Employment
FBEB1 : (&%

“Comply or explain”  General Disclosure 82,
Provisions 99-101
Information on:
a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

[ETmEIRE —KREE

BRFMERE BERET - TERZK  BRY - FERE - 2t REGAREGFER

RAE
a) BE: &k
b) BEFHBEITABEATENBEBEEZRROINER -
Recommended KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 101-
Disclosures FASRAERNIEIZB1.1  geographical region. 102
HER IR RIER - BEEL - FhERNRMESSHESRH -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 103-
BARERIEIEB1.2 MR - SRR R REI S HIE B IMALLE - 104
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Page
=%

“Comply or explain”

Provisions

8Tl i |1 E

Recommended
Disclosures

R R

“Comply or explain”

Provisions

8Tl i 1R E

Recommended
Disclosures

B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2 : BREZE

General Disclosure

Information on

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

—RRIER

BARELZE2TERBERRERERERABEEEED
a) BER K
b) EBFEHBEITABEATENHEBEERROINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

FARAERIERB2.1 R TRRAERMILTRABRILX -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
FARENERB2.2 EATEBBARTIERR -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how
RSB 45 403E1ZB2.3  they are implemented and monitored.
ot PER AN A B SR I R B e 2 1 it - AR T REER % ©

Aspect B3: Development and Training
fEHEB3 : & REI

General Disclosure

—RRIER

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

BRRTHEES BT TIEREMNMB R REENBER - HaFES) -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.

FARAIERB31 RUERKEREHESNXIIEET DL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
RS AR NIEIZB3.2  employee category.
RIERI R EEERIE D - BRES TR TIGRE -

105-
106

107

107

106

107-
108

109

109
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Page
B

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fEEBA4 : 35 T X8|

“Comply or explain”  General Disclosure 110
Provisions

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BT fiRE R E — IR
B IEE T oas4 T

a) BUR: &
b) EBFEBEITABEAFENHBEEZRROINER -

Recommended KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 110
Disclosures RASE4EIEIZR4.1  and forced labour.
HERE R E BB AR M AR R E T RORHIS T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. N/A
BRENIEIER4.2 MR IVE R BN ER A IS PTERER A 288 - T A

e Operating o 2E 4
Practices SRS

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
fEEBS : HrEEEE

“Comply or explain”  General Disclosure 11
Provisions — AR EE
[E~FofiRiE | HE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRE R SRERBR o

Recommended KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 111
Disclosures BARENIEIERS.1 R REI S HHEREE -
HEEEE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 111

RSB 45 3E1ZB5.2  suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
A R EEEOED - MERTERENNEEREE ARE#H
BHIERERIT REER A -
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"Comply or explain”
Provisions

[T R IR E

Recommended
Disclosures

B E

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[ETEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure 112-
114,
Information on: 117

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

—RRIEE

BRMRHERTRENRERELZ S  BS  RERLEEEURBERIEN
a) BE: Rk
b) BTHETABEAXENRBEIZRAMNER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety ~ N/A
B4 BIEIZR6.1  and health reasons. 378 FR
PEERRERAEMABPRT T EERIEAMARKNA DL

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how 114-
B4 BIEIZR6.2  they are dealt with. 117
RN Em MRS B A RIEE 7% -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 117
RAE4EBIEIZR6.3  property rights.
Tt B e RS AN E B BB ] o

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 113-
BB NIEIER6.4  HEIlE SIRTE B2 K E mBIE R 114
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they 118

RESE4EIEIZB6.5 are implemented and monitored.
HaE B E A RHRIE RALBEGR « ARIBABENIT RERFE ©
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B

Aspect B7: Anticorruption

EHEB7 : RES
“Comply or explain”  General Disclosure 118
Provisions
Information on:
a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
[BFocfRiE HRE —ARBEE
BRI IERRRE « B1R - MEFREBEH
a) BE &k
b) BEFHBEITAREATENBBERLROINER -
Recommended KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought N/A
Disclosures RASRAEANFE1ZB7.1  against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the i@
HBEHE outcomes of the cases.
REREAANE BT A HE BIRIE W E BAN B SR ARMFHBE REFA
R
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 118

RESE4EWIEIZR7.2  how they are implemented and monitored.
B a5 MR RAR T - A RBRBERIT REER A -
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o community | _____________.#E | |

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
[B<Fo Rz [HRE

Recommended
Disclosures

HERE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : HERE

General Disclosure 119

— MR
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the
issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BN R2ERTRLEMELEFTENBRREER EHEEBELRMENBEK

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 119
RABR4ENIEIZBS. 1 EFEENEE -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 119

MRAENIERBS2 EEIHRBMBAER -
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 HETHEER115
{8H : +852 2815 2239 FZrhi251E
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED BREREBERATRER

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 136 to 246, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described
in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

Opening inventories of the comparative year

We were engaged to perform the audit of the consolidated financial
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 in
August 2016 and we were therefore not able to attend the physical
inventory count conducted by the Group for its inventories as at
31 December 2015. We were not able to satisfy ourselves concerning
those inventory quantities by alternative means. Since opening
inventories affect the determination of the financial performance
and cash flows, we are unable to determine whether any adjustment
might have been necessary in respect of the financial performance
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the net cash flows from operating
activities reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. Our audit opinion
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was modified accordingly. Our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current year ended 31 December 2017 is also modified because of
the possible effect of the above matter on the comparability of the
current year’s figures and the corresponding figures.

REZR2EXE

BAREEAGHMAS(HESHEAE )EM
ZERBEFEN(FRRTER D)ETER - &M
EZEELT 2 EERHMANRS AR F 47
EUBRRARENET] —HhE—FTFL - R
BAGMASBRMACERSEERTA) (57
1) BHMABYRERE  YEETTAIFEM
BEXREBEM - RAAE BRAMESHETERE
BN EEMRRFINET T RIRHEE -

ALBRFENFINFE
BMR20165F8 A EZ Y E R E & 20165124
A EFEMNGAEVBRETETER - Bt - B
K FEEEMN2015F12A31BHEFEETH
BERTEBRI - RPIREARME MO H A5 KB
TEMGFENHE BNV EFEXENBERER
ReRENET  BMNEZRERSIRESEEH
22016F 12 A3 1B IEFEZFEEBERAMEER
BRMEBHVBRBURGEESTRERMZR
ZEETFHMEREREFHELTAMNERAE -
EERBEEEEE2016F12A3MBLFEZGREH
BmEALEMABAREER - EEREEEEZE2017
F1R2ANBUEFEZGEMBREMEL 2852
RAE LM EEAEEEEEAFERBEFE 2
AR THFEMELRE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

(Refer to notes 5(v), 5(vi), 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets with carrying amount of
approximately RMB297 million and RMB2 million respectively.
The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the cash generating units in which these assets
belonged to in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies
and concluded that, except for the written off of property, plant
and equipment with net carrying amount of RMB3,344,000,
there was no impairment loss for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units required the exercise of significant management judgement.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment
assessment included:

e  Assessing the appropriateness of methodology used for
assessing the recoverable amounts; and

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions used.
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Impairment assessment of trade and notes
receivables

(Refer to notes 4(h), 5(iii) and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade and notes
receivables with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,713
million and a net impairment loss reversal of approximately
RMB47 million was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2017.

The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the trade and notes receivables in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies which required the exercise
of significant management judgement in considering factors
such as the credit history including default or delay in payments,
ageing analysis, settlement records during the year and
subsequent settlements after the year end.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment
assessment included:

o Understanding the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the customers;

o Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade and notes
receivables;

e Reviewing payment patterns during the year and amount
of subsequent settlements after the year end made by the
customers;

e Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s estimation of
recoverability of trade and notes receivables with reference
to factors considered by the directors.

FEU B 5 5RIR K B R B R E TG

(FFRE A B SR AN aF40h) ~ 5(i) % 19)

201756128310 - EXEEWE FFIE R E
WEBRREFEL AARE,713,000,0007T &
REZE2017F12 A31 8 L FE BRI ERREE
BIFEER B 4 AR 47,000,0007T °

ERAEECREEEESHABRAEKES
PR R EWREEITRER G - EERKNEE
MEEEL(BRENFEHORTE RS -
FABN M FRORERK) FRREET
BERNEIEE A6

EIFIHEL 1R
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OTHER
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BREMAES AN BRRAREN
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conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.
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SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

B % H AR S

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Tsui Ka Che, Norman
Practising Certificate no. PO5057

Hong Kong, 3 August 2018
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SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
melEakAtEmEmRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 ##Z20174% 12/31H IFF/Z

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®T T ARBTT
Turnover e 6 5,801,566 6,061,477
Cost of sales 5 E AR (5.392,314) (5,503,647)
Gross profit EF 409,252 557,830
Other revenue H bWz 7 115,907 63,074
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS (86,208) (72,533)
Administrative expenses ITHRS (289,209) (367,566)
Other operating expenses Hih& &M (84,838) (392,507)
Finance costs L& R AR 11 (44,614) (26,564)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR EA R 36 - 64,145
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERANGE R, (E518) 8 20,290 (174,121)
Income tax FR1S 12 (409) 49,288
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEEHEF, (EE) 19,881 (124,833)
Other comprehensive income for the AFEEHEZHEMEBES !
year, net of tax:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently M 12/E BRI EH BT ERN
to profit or loss BH
— Exchange differences on translating —BREEINEB ZENET
foreign operations 6,951 (10,712)
Other comprehensive income for the year, AREEF%EE M2 KR
net of tax 6,951 (10,712)
Total comprehensive income for the AEERHEKRFELEE
year 26,832 (135,545)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: THIATEIEAFEER,(F5E):
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIE Z =N 21,125 (118,951)
Non-controlling interests IR (1,244) (5,882)
19,881 (124,833)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 5| A L fE(F 2 E 54058
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE PN 28,076 (129,663)
Non-controlling interests IEIE RS (1,244) (5,882)
26,832 (135,545)
Earnings/(losses) per share BREF,(FER)
- Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EXREE(ARES) 14 1.94 (10.91)
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SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF F|NANC|AL POSITION
e BREAR R R

At 31 December 2017 7201712 H31H

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE AR¥ET T ARBT T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KR 15 296,588 288,377
Intangible assets B EE 16 2,254 3,124
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables %EH I~ e REMEREIA 20 18,912 21,310
Deferred tax assets REFRIAE B 29 147,182 141,451
Total non-current assets JEmENE EARTE 464,936 454,262
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 17 571,782 462,644
Trade and notes receivables W E 5 5RIA R EWEE 19 1,712,754 1,650,416
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 8 718 - 1% 4 I E ith fE Ui 7k 18 20 120,112 244,493
Amounts due from related parties FEUS B A 508 21 246,179 146,817
Current tax recoverable AT Y o] BN EAFR 1B 9,423 5,443
Pledged bank deposits EERIRITIFK 22 645,388 552,962
Bank balances and cash RITHEER IR ® 23 146,304 170,305
Total current assets MENE EBRE 3,451,942 3,233,080
Current liabilities ,ﬁiﬁﬁ{i
Trade and notes payables JERTE SR IE RENRE 24 2,291,820 2,114,370
Other payables, receipts in advance and Eﬁﬂﬁéﬁmlﬁ TEWGRTE &
accrued charges EEtE R 25 249,351 207,731
Provision for warranty EmREEES 26 411 1,943
Bank loans — current portion WITER —RENIBD 27 410,379 415,094
Other loans — current portion HEZ —n#Ehn 27 3,253 7,466
Obligations under finance lease — current EIEREEE
portion —mEhEs 27 2,350 5,455
Amount due to a director e E BRI 28 5,611 5,839
Amounts due to related parties JEfTEE A T8 21 5,733 9,653
Total current liabilities mEaGesE 2,968,908 2,767,551
Net current assets mENEEFE 483,034 465,529
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBAE 947,970 919,791
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Other loans — non-current portion Hi e —3EmEnsfn 27 5,178 -
Obligations under finance lease MEREBE
— non-current portion —IEmEE D 27 - 2,350
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEA G 29 5,360 6,854
Total non-current liabilities EmEBELATE 10,538 9,204
Net assets BEE 937,432 910,587
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SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wra MR AR

At 31 December 2017 2017412 H31H

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®T T ARBTT
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital [N 30 107,590 107,590
Reserves & 31 818,593 790,504
Equity attributable to owners AAREE AELER
of the Company 926,183 898,094
Non-controlling interests FERER 32 11,249 12,493
Total equity gL 937,432 910,587
FANG JIN GUO QUAN ZENG
e ZPRIT
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
E E
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SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

an\

< S\ o

*"—ﬁz"z

EE S

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

Attributable
Statutory  Enterprise Share to owners Non-

Share Share  Capital  reserve expansion Translation option  Accumulated of the Controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve  reserve losses ~ Company Interests equity

L%

HE i BhE FEA
B RBEE EARE  AEE  BRES  EXGR e EZREE  EEHY FEREE ARk
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2016 #016%1A18 107,590 619288 186,215 114597 58136 (64,734) 14811 (10,153) 1,025,750 28863 1,054,613
Loss for the year rEEEE - : - - - - - (11895T) (118951 (588 (124833
Other comprehensive income B2 EhE - - - - - (10712 - - (10 - {10712)

Total comprehensive income KEEEENGEE

for the year - - - - - (10.712) - (118951)  (129,663) (5882 (135,545)
Capital reduction of a non-wholly 2 ENERARAIME

owned subsidiary - - - - - - - 2,007 2007 (1590 (13920)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) ~ HEHBA (36) - - - - - - - - - 5,439 5,439
At 31 December 2016 and 120165128318 %

1 January 2017 01751818 107,590 619288 186,215 114597 58136 (75,446) 14811 (127,097 898,094 12493 910,587
Profit(oss) for the year KERET|/ (B8) - - - - - - SIS NS (124 1988
Other comprehensive income Eh2EhE - - - - - 6,951 - - 6,951 - 6,951
Total comprehensive income FERRENREE

for the year - - - - - 6,951 - 1125 28,076 (1,244) 26,832
Appropriations iy - - - 5,459 279 - - (3189 - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions 24 E “W%%%Z - - - - - - (14811) 14811 - - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary HH-ENEA - - - - - - - 13 13 - 13
At 31 December 2017 120175128318 107590 619288 186,215 120,056 60,865 (68,495 - (99336) 926,183 11,49 937432
Notes: st -

Share premium 17 & (B

B An i B RR 45 1T

B ERETR ) BHA

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company.

BT EE 2 BB - 1B ARD A2 1% B
i - AR A ERAR R SRS D7) A S 346

The application of the share premium account is governed by Section &l °
34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Capital reserve B

AEBZERBERRADAF D HITRG 2 HHE M
WEMB AR 2 BRER @B N ERBELSEBER
AR EmzEEEAMARBMBHREZZ5E -

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEMEBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & %2017F1231H 1F F/Z

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company,
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves,
namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. ("Scud Battery”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Hongde"”), Fujian Green Energy Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Green
Energy”), Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde"),
Scud Power System Co., Ltd. (“Scud Power System”) (together the “PRC
Subsidiaries”) are required to transfer 10% of their respective profit
after income tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements
to the statutory reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of their
respective registered capital. Pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, they are also required to make appropriation
from their respective profit after income tax as reported in the PRC
statutory financial statements to the enterprise expansion fund at
rates determined by their respective boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/losses arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Share option reserve

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to
the employees over the vesting period.

Accumulated losses

No dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016. As at 31 December 2017, the balance of accumulated losses of
the Group was RMB99,336,000 (2016: RMB127,097,000).
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SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
:-\/TAEEEUILE%:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 22017412 A31H 1FF/Z

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities KETHFEBRERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax TS BLRT S F (Ei8) 20,290 (174,121)
Adjustments for: FEIER
Interest income FLE M A (8,534) (15,073)
Finance costs BhE R 44,614 26,564
Amortisation of intangible assets A 1,404 1,563
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - MEMEREITE
equipment 46,563 50,391
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BENMKRESR
equipment 7,536 8,146
Write-off of property, plant and M - WE KR E M
equipment 3,344 1,951
Impairment loss recognised on trade and  FLIEUE 5 A L EWZIEFER 2
notes receivables RIEBE 12,402 319,083
Impairment loss recognised on TIEMFE - e REAAERFEER
prepayments, deposits and other 2 BIEEE
receivables 12,385 57,520
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and B R 2 EUWE 58 N EWEZEHER
notes receivables previously recognised B E (59,005) -
Reversal of impairment loss on BARRZEMNIE - e KEMERGRIE
prepayments, deposits and other BEEEEE
receivables previously recognised (16,909) -
Write-off of trade and notes receivables 3K B 5 18 KRR I MR R (1,367) -
Write-off of prepayments, deposits and WSETETFRIE © R e R E M ERGRIE
other receivables (1,479) -
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) TFEMUR, (MR E)
of inventories 3,644 (284,200)
Write-off of inventories Gatit 42,836 -
Deregistration of a subsidiary 2Ly 13 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME R FkE - (64,145)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes in  &E& S #ERINLL N, (BE)
working capital 107,737 (72,321)
Sale proceeds from disposal of financial BEERATESABSR ZHEEEMSHIA
assets at fair value through profit or loss - 60,000
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEMm),/wH (155,618) 377,368
Increase in trade and notes receivables FEUR B 5 3R IE I e I ZE A 3 0 (14,368) (764,990)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TENFRIA ~ e R E A EUWRIER A
other receivables 132,782 519
Increase in amounts due from related JE Ui 38 A+ ZRIEE SN
parties (99,362) (90,103)
Increase in trade and notes payables JEHE 5 3R TE N FE A 24538 N 177,450 403,200
Increase in other payables, receipts in E A FRIE - TEURGRIE R IERT B RN
advance and accrued charges 41,620 32,432
(Decrease)/increase in provision EmREERESCRD), 18
for warranty (1,532) 73
Cash generated from/(used in) SEEL(TABEE
operations 188,709 (53,822)
Interest paid ERFE (44,614) (26,564)
Income tax paid BT FTSEL (11,614) (32,515)
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SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meREemER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEEEFEES (AR BSTE
operating activities 132,481 (112,901)
Investing activities REEE
Interest received B U F & 8,534 15,073
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits AT ROEM), R (92,426) 37,456
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HE&E R HEIBEE 2 FA1SFUE
financial assets - 1,000
Payments to acquire property, plant and BEYE  WERRERE
equipment (65,654) (58,330)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BERPEERIR (534) (1,738)
Decrease in time deposits TEERTF FUR = 140,000
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HENBRAREAZRERAFRE
subsidiaries - 3,306
Capital reduction of a non-wholly-owned F2EBEMBRAIESHD
subsidiary - (13,920)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE(FTH), FELBELSTHE
investing activities (150,080) 122,847
Financing activities R EE
Bank loans raised EEFITER 520,248 970,678
Other loans raised EEHEMER 9,999 -
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (518,815) (885,087)
Repayment of other loans BEREMER (9,034) (11,368)
Repayment of obligations under finance BEmEEEAE
leases (5,455) (5,202)
Decrease in amount due to a director ENEEZERD (228) (99,681)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties {8 A + 3R IE R (3,920) (56,028)
Net cash used in financing activities RESEE AR ST (7,205) (86,688)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRASEERA FHAD
equivalents (24,804) (76,742)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning S#EERRELZEER
of year 170,305 249,430
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXR@ B & 803 (2,383)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESREELEEEE
year 146,304 170,305
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBSESEEBLERSNT
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LR 146,304 170,305
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REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

GENERAL

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electronic appliances, while also engaging in
manufacture and sale of lithium-ion bare battery cells.

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs - effective 1
January 2017

Amendments to IAS 7

BIFR & 52 R 75% (IBFTAN) REDZ

Amendments to IAS 12

BB & 52 E RIS 125% (55T A)

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

I % B 7 e 5 AR 1201 45F —
2016F A FE

Amendments to IAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the additional
disclosure presented in the note to the cash flow statement,
Note 38.

Disclosure Initiative

—RE#
REREEMERA (AR ])H200647
20REMSHEEMALARRE Y EHER
AR HBRAR2006% 1221 BEBEBBA R
S AR AR ([ 2FT ) ER L -

ARBMEBEBR/REZR - REKBE QA
TERFRUTFENMBISRETEMMAZE
BETEMRARBRBE CEEREE - Tl
EERTECCEERBEE -

B A Bl PR Bt 75 3 5 22 R (1 B PR B

B 28 )

(a) HRAHET /ST MR R A%
Bl-B2017F1A1REX

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
RAREREERABBRLEHIBEE

Amendments to IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
BRI 5 S HERIZE 1255 - M EME R R

EIE A E 73 (13T) - BB
BRIET3IA—RESMER - BERHH
REMEEHFEREEDEEOE LD
& o

RMMERTE BB 38R mERM
PPN Z BBIMREE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BR4WE B3R E 2 8| ([ BB Bt
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued) XA |) (2

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1 (a) BRHHFT RBITERTBREE

144

January 2017 (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to
debt instruments measured of fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is consistent
with the manner in which the Group has previously
recognised deferred tax assets.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to
clarify that the disclosure requirements of IFRS 12, other
than the requirements to disclose summarised financial
information, also apply to an entity’s interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or discontinued operations
in accordance with IFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to IFRS 12 has no impact
on these financial statements as the latter treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously dealt with disclosures relating to its interests
in other entities classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations in accordance with IFRS 5.

Al-B2017F 1818 £ (&)

BB ST 2ERIE 1255 (15T 4 ) — BAREH
IR TE R IEAL IR EE
BEREREAREHRAEEREBET
PVEER - BRENAELRFEREN
B TAMBNELHAEEANR

RNETHREVBRRLEZE - AR
BB 2 BRIR 7y T B AR R BB 1 IR AE Y
HEEZHIA - -

BB A1 7 3R 5 2E BI20144F — 2016 B A
ZEFEERE - BB IREERE129
(15T ) » REMBEBIEZE
BEEECE R BB ZSIET AL R
3 S BA e i) 2% 1B ZE BIVE HH AR R T 24 89
1B - HER B BEBRMBIREERE 12
R REMEBNERBEERNESE - U
7B BIPR B IS SR 2E A 81257 2 BRER AT -
BREKBEMBERE - TMERNRE
BIRR B s iR R B EN E RBE K
IEREEB D BRFIEREH R IERE
¥BONEMEENE SRR -

RNBIFR B B S R 125R 2 BT AY
ZEMBHRRAEZE  ARNREZEIE
F R BN R R IR A B AR IR B R B 7
BEENESEDBRIBIEHEXD KL
REXBHONEMEBOESAERZT
A—%-



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective

The following new/revised IFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these

changes on the date they become effective.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
BIRR B 75 ¥ 5 L RI20145 — 2016 3A B 2 F iU

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
BB B 75 S 5 A2 R 20144 — 201655 B B v S v

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BARR A T ¥ 5 £ RI20156F — 201 79A B 2 F R B

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BRI S £ RI2015F — 2017 F Bz FEME

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BIRR B T ¥ 5 £ RI20156F — 20179 A B 2 F R U

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BB B 5 5 A2 RI201 56 — 201 7B H v R B

Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘
B[R B 75 S 5 2 A 28 255 (1B 5T AR
IFRS 9 )

I % B 75 S 5 22 R 2B 9557

Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘
R B 75 S 5 2 I 2B 955 (1B RT AR

IFRS 15 \
R S 75 0 5 R A 28 1 55

Amendments to IFRS 15
R SRS R B 155 (BRTA)

IFRS 16
B B 75 o 5 R R 2B 1 658

IFRIC 22

R RERBRZESF 2%
IFRIC 23

BB RE2ER R %235

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
B 75 3 S AR A S8 105 ]2
BIpR &R 2E A 55285 (18R] A)

2. BRANE BR B A R o 25 B ([ B B B
BHREER ]

(b) BRTEMKRERZHT EBITE
B Bt 75 e o 22 A
AT EAREEABIRKR BB ] EE
AT BRI s R B BT E MR
BWAREAEERFRN - AKEBATH
REEERBREAZEZLE -

Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards' B )
R RS AR RIZE 158 (BT A B RN BL IR B s s 5 2 AL

Amendments to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures? ) ) .
RERTEAIE 285 (BT AR E AR A B ERIR A2

Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations?

R ERERNFE IR ERTA) EE A 52

Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
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not yet effective (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

3 The amendments were originally intended to be
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle -
Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to IFRS
1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards, removing transition provision exemptions relating
to accounting periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle -
Amendments to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,
clarifying that a Venture Capital organisation’s permissible
election to measure its associates or joint ventures at fair
value is made separately for each associate or joint venture.
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not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment clarifies that a company remeasures
its previously held interest in a joint operation that is a
business when it obtains control of the business. Paragraph
42A is added to clarify this requirement.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendment clarifies that a company that participates
in but does not have joint control over a joint operation,
does not remeasure its previously held interest in the joint
operation which is a business when it obtains joint control
of the business. Paragraph B33CA is added to IFRS 11 to
clarify this requirement.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Tax

The amendment clarifies that a company accounts for all
income tax consequences of dividend payments in the same
way as the entity recognised the originating transaction or
event that generated the distributable profit giving rise to
the dividend. Paragraph 57A to IAS 12 is added to clarify
this point.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendment clarifies that when a qualifying asset is
ready for its intended use or sale and (some of) the related
specific borrowing remains outstanding, that borrowing is
treated as general borrowings. Paragraph 14 of IAS 23 is
amended to convey this principle.
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not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled.

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at FVTPL.
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not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing
the incurred loss model in IAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

IFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
IAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS 9 retains the
requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Amendments to IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
if specified conditions are met — instead of at fair value
through profit or loss.
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not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. IFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

IFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

IFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under IFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS
15 will have an impact on the pattern of revenue and
profit recognition as there is only one performance
obligation identified in the contracts with customers and
the performance obligation is satisfied at point of time.
The impact to the Group is expected to include more
comprehensive disclosure as required by the new standard.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until the Group has
performed a detailed review.
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not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to IFRS 15)

The amendments to IFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
IAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a
single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion
and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, IAS 17.
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not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining the
date of the transaction for determining an exchange rate
to use for transactions that involve advance consideration
paid or received in a foreign currency and the recognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability. The
Interpretations specifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part thereof) is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of 1AS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.
Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together based on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a
right to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the entity
determines it is probable that the tax authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should measure
current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the
entity determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty
in the determination of tax is reflected using either the
“most likely amount” or the "expected value” approach,
whichever better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of adopting the above standards and amendments
to existing standards to the Group. Except for those
disclosed above, the Group has so far concluded that the
application of these new pronouncements will have no
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

154

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("IASs”) issued by the IASB and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee of the IASB (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

4. EXETHEE
(a) EBEHRGEHE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share
of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from
these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value
of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost Any premium
paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in the same way as other non-financial assets.
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(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less impairment
losses, if any. The results of associates are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable during the year.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% - MERRZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings held for ~ Over the lease term
own use under finance leases

Plant and machinery 10%

Motor vehicles 20%

Electronic equipment, furniture and 20%
fixtures

Moulds 20%-33.33%

Leasehold improvements 10%
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(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.
Software 3-5 years
Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

— it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

— adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

—  there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

—  the Group is able to sell the product;

—  sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

4, EXRESHBE )

(0) BYEE

(i)

(i)

BWBHETEE

B WE 2 BB E ) TR AN
R NEBAHTFBAZBLEEK
ARRBEBRR s AFEE - Bk
ERFRARNELEERKARR
SHEE M REHRERIRYIRR

BEIRARERFRAEREES
REBEIT - AIERFHERNER
BETRKAREMNRRERET
Bk o BB AN RS AR ATT
BT

L/CEs 3ES5F

RBPEL ZETZEE (TREH)

NEF R EMMAS - TR TIER
R E AR

—  ERMERREEMAMEE:
- ARWERTHKFAE

- AETHMEEEM

- AEEBRNHEEES

- HEEREELRKEBENE:
N ARt EIHA X -

161



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= AR

RE R ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

162

(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs) (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

(h) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.
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(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments or
financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available-for-sale or are not included
in other categories of financial assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these assets are carried at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses.
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(ii) BB EERBERE

(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

164

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

e it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and
directly reduces the carrying amount of financial asset
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

For Available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(v) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently

at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises

all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted

average method. Net realisable value represents the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business

less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()]

(k)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent short-term,
highly liguid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances, as
follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed, which means
that all the following conditions are satisfied:

e The Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

e The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii) Processing income

Processing income is recognised when processing
services are provided.

() Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.

168

4, EXRSHBE#)

(k) =R (E)

)

(iii) MT KA
INT A TR R 4 IN T AR 75 14 AR

FrigH
FANASHEEE RHEEEREA -

EHREBENRIEREEBE AR EE
BATEH M S HARNK AR BB
TEH AR - iRME RS BlE A HIE
ZIEEE -

EEMBARMEREMSEERBE
ZEEEEERTHME 2 AR B
ZRMER - BT E ST HERTIEF
ZEABRCHRABERABI  BAMEY
B ZREREERIAALE - WERBEN
BRERHIMRE R ZE - ABRELEH
BEE - BEERATNERANEEXRE
ZEHMEERERIERE BT ARRRK
TR FIEHARLEHIEZ B EETE

BIERIBEEDIZEARMB AR - BEA
TREA %Ua‘&gZ&ﬁﬁﬁ%l@(Zﬁﬁ%ﬂ
R EmaR  EAEE ARG
EBZ2YE  UREHERAEIERA
RS TERIERSD

PRSI Bas R - MM EERNE 2
WatERWIRR AR - AIRERATRE
B E R AR ERR ¢ S fim H R B A M R
ROWEBER  AREHAMERZN s
R -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXE:EHE »®)
(Continued)

(m) Foreign currency (m) 5

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

170

(m) Foreign currency (Continued)

(n)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets

acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation

on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and

liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the

rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.

Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign

exchange reserve.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

e  property, plant and equipment;

° Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases; and

. Investments in subsidiaries and an associate.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expenses immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another IFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that IFRS.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services
received is measured by reference to the fair value of the
options at the date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to
vest at the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value
of the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

172

(p)

(a)

(r)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options,
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the

measured immediately before and after the
remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option scheme
which is determined to be a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction with employees. An option pricing
model is used to measure the Group's liability at grant
date and subsequently at the end of each reporting period,
taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
bonus is awarded and the extent to which employees have
rendered service. Movements in the liability (other than cash
payments) are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2

(Continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities (s) BERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EXASEEBTEHEE LERSHEER
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive Eif I BE B BUR LA AR - Bz B R
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is AL IR AT R - BI® BL K AL T E A
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that HBFER B EEREE

can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic M A ARATRER ML EN & - &5
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be Regrl SEfhst - AIZEARBBEERSIAS
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a & - MR B R R A RO AIBR A o
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of EUBESEEE—IBRERARENA
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the AREERLRENAERET  NEHEES
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence FARBE  HRLEBEN RS HME
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also BRAN o

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(t) Related parties (t) BEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) fWEBLAT AL - RIFZA LTS ATA
related to the Group if that person: TR ERK B AR E BRI
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () Ik EEEHAEE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEEEAFESN o
(i) is a member of key management personnel of (i) ARNEEIRNABFRAANE
the Group or the Company’s parent. ZEBENE o
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fHFFE TIMEMARE - BIZEEEA
following conditions apply: BB B
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEREAEEBER-—SEHH
same group (which means that each parent, RERBI(ANEE]LA - HER
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AIRFARMEBARIKILEE A
others). &) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il —"REBRS—EENBER
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AlgkaE X (S5 —EBAK
member of a group of which the other entity is a BRRIMEEKE QAR
member). NAHEEDE) -
(ili) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREBHRA-—F=7TNA
party. B o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2

(Continued)
(t) Related parties (Continued) (t) BEAL(E)
(b)  (Continued) (b) (#)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy, " REBRE=FEBNGE

the other entity is an associate of the third entity. X mME—ERBRRA-—F=
FEENEEATF

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) BERRASENEREEEH
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an BB IEES MR rEE
entity related to the Group. Big@FEtal o

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) BREZ@FEEATEH S
person identified in (a). k2

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) @OFIIEATHERBEERT
influence over the entity or is a member of key ENXBZER(IXEEER
management personnel of the entity (or of a AMEZEEEEKS -
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (viii) E 28 - = H PR & E A AT K
it is a part, provides key management personnel Sm&ELEEE A RREE
services to the group or to the group’s parent. FTEEBABRE -

Close members of the family of a person are those family —BATHELRKENX B 5 TR R TS

members who may be expected to influence, or be MRZSHH A EZALTHZTZALHER

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity REERKE - B :

and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; () BATHTFEZREBHIKEFRS

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; (il FZATREIREMENFL: &
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or (i) ZATHZATHEBIKEHEH
domestic partner. XEAN -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

176

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of the customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. The directors reassess the allowance at
the end of the reporting period.

Warranty claims

The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information may
differ from future claims. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the
Group's productivity and quality initiatives, as well as parts
and labour costs.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether an intangible asset is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
Details of the impairment testing are provided in Note 16.

5. EEGHERATTIEEREZ
ZEERR®)

(i) FEZTRHEFE

(iii)
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(iv) RABRR

(v)
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HRBIHKA -

BEEERE
BEEVEERDREFRMEMEE-
REtHEREER  AKEFEFZARS
ELBUELAZAKRSRE  WAEE
ZUMBRERGFEERE ERRESREERN
TEHY - AR REELIRERTE - BRERE R
A FHIERMI 16524



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5 EESHYUERELGHIABREEZE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEERR )
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(vi) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (vi) 12 - BERRERE

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, the
directors estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

(vii) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax losses carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB23,993,000 (2016: RMB85,057,000)
which relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses
and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere
in the Group. These subsidiaries have no temporary taxable
differences which could partly support the recognition
of deferred tax assets. Also, there are no tax planning
opportunities available that would further provide a basis
for recognition.

AEEEREHREPIRFEDE  BER
REEEHRETMARMETSR - % - BFE
REEA PR BN REE R e EE R
BEHBENR - EEEIREELEN
MREEBAE TR ESE(E R FER
HEXRAREEREETORSE)E -
BIHERIRME - R FER L ERARTIRIER
BEEETRAFRZBUAORNINEE
RGTAESHBREBEXIBERTERLE
HEEMIBERAGH - EITTEREER
B EEVAGFIREEESIRSESE
BUMAHARRERE - WRESEN
MREUAEZFHLRENIRE °

(vii) SEEBRE E

P B R 15 8D R 5 TR B 18 7Y 1 RE R A IR RE TR
HEE  WEARRBRAN A BIEEMAH
RzBEAR - EFARBARARERHIA
M2 AT RE I ) e BURE A R JE AR B AT B R g
TEHEARHE - AREE A THER R
HEESH °

RNEE B AETUEEEL AR 823,993,0007T
(20164 : AR#85,057,0007T) ° 5/
B R AT 813 518 BT BB A R R R 46 7]
FA AR 8 75 52 [ H b b 75 B9 FE SR AU o
1t 55 P B A B 30 4 T 3B ) S BRI SE A
BEEMERERBZRE o tbih - WEHR
BRI S DU — D IR HER A o
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vii) Deferred tax assets (Continued)

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, profits would increase by approximately
RMB5,998,000 (2016: loss would decrease by approximately
RMB19,041,000).

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 29.

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

178

(a)

(b)

Turnover

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

Reportable segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of the Group’s own
brand “SCUDH £ RR”
design manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as bare

("Own-brand business”), original

battery cells (“Bare battery cells business”). The chief
operating decision makers (i.e. the Company’s directors)
review the segment information of these businesses and
based on it to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. The Group’s reportable segments are set
out below:

5. EEGHERATTIEEREZ
ZEERR®)

(vi) BERIREE (&)

(a)

(b)

MAEEERH B ABRNECHEE
R AT I 4 A K #5,998,0007T
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZRo3ER =)
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIF|DE(E)

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium-ion
battery modules, power banks, motive battery and related
accessories for branded mobile phone and tablets and EV
manufacturers within and outside China.

Own-brand business — Manufacture and sale of “SCUDRE
B&" brand lithium-ion battery modules, power banks, power
management module, motive battery, smart wearable
devices battery and related accessories for mobile phones
and digital electronic appliances.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and
power banks.

Others — Sales of raw materials and work-in-progress and
processing income.

ODME % — A E5 N S FH - T
R B S B A A A SRR T
TR - BHEF - B0 LIARE
-

BAEMERT - RERHEISCUDRE
BB T E0EA BHER F

FEREE BHOT L BETHRET
StoA R FHASIE BT RGO ARR A -

BURB - RERHEEARTE - PR
BHREDEROERTEL -

HAith — SHE R F A BT YA
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

follows:

(b) F¥EZER(E)

ERZEXBNOHBERZIT

Segment revenue and results T EBM e R FEE
2017
ODM Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Others Total
BE
ODMEE#H RlESS ERER Hit st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%Tn AR¥®Trn AR%Tn ARETx
Total Turnover e 4,888,237 839,768 373,423 635,560 6,736,988
Less: Intersegment sales B NEPHE (5,181) (678,031) (125,213) (126,997) (935,422)
Turnover L 4,883,056 161,737 248,210 508,563 5,801,566
Segment profit/(loss) EHF/(E51E) 48,472 3,163 (3.357) 22,390 70,668
Unallocated income AABRBKA
- Bank interest income —RITFIBIA 8,534
— Rental income -l A 554
- Others —Hft 200
Unallocated expenses FOERY
- Auditor’s remuneration —ZEE RS (3,361)
- Legal and professional fees —EREREEER (2,861)
— Staff costs — BT (3,779)
— Others —Hit (5,051)
- Finance costs —BERKA (44,614)
Profit before income tax B PS8 AT A 20,290
Income tax G0 (409)
Profit for the year REEGF 19,881
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

(b) H¥RDAR(E)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) T ERM R EAE ()
2016
ODM  Own-brand  Bare battery
business business  cell business Others Total
BE
ODME7% e BNEK Hith Faey
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT AR®Tr ARETR
Total Turnover BEEE 4,836,010 681,025 379,496 504,396 6,400,927
Less: Intersegment sales W NEPIEE (47,612) (624) (93,362) (197,852) (339,450)
Turnover EEE 4,788,398 680,401 286,134 306,544 6,061,477
Segment loss HEER (118,872) (63,144) (17,672) (15,160)  (214,848)
Unallocated income VL ON
- Bank interest income —RITF BN 15,068
- Rental income -l A 928
- Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ — H &M B FURA 64,145
- Others —Hf 1,854
Unallocated expenses AAEHEE
- Auditor’s remuneration —ZEE & (1,329)
- Legal and professional fees —FEREEEA (7,572)
— Staff costs —BTHA (3,929)
- Others —HEf (1,874)
— Finance costs — BB A (26,564)
Loss before income tax BT AR (174,121)
Income tax S 49,288
Loss for the year NEEER (124,833)
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

EEBRIER B

(b) F¥EZER(E)

Assets and liabilities BEREBE
2017
ODM Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Total
BE
ODME# A hER TS EESS et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®Trx AR¥BTR AR®Tx
Segment assets DEEE 2,908,425 752,017 252,451 3,912,893
Unallocated corporate assets ROWAREE
- Bank balances and cash —IRITHEBRIRS 3,184
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENHRIEZRS R
other receivables =] 205
- Others —Hfh 596
Consolidated total assets IREEERTE 3,916,878
Segment liabilities DEAE 2,037,826 724,215 194,520 2,956,561
Unallocated corporate liabilities FR#BA 7 & &
— Other payables — H b e RE 15,922
— Amount due a to director —ENEEHRE 400
— Deferred tax liabilities —IEERIEEE 5,360
— Others —Hth 1,203
Consolidated total liabilities eEBaBEeE 2,979,446
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6.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EX K9P ER )

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) D EB(E)
Assets and liabilities (Continued) BEREBE(E)
2016
ODM  Own-brand Bare battery
business business  cell business Total
BB
ODME 75 mh R E R TERER HET
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFIT AREFT AREBTT ARETT
Segment assets DEfEE 2,868,228 534,113 283,122 3,685,463
Unallocated corporate assets RO AREE
— Bank balance and cash —RITEBRLIES 643
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENHIE EE Rk
other receivables H b U GRIE 1,236
Consolidated total assets REBEREE 3,687,342
Segment liabilities nIaE 2,236,541 300,303 219,299 2,756,143

Unallocated corporate liabilities K2 B AR BE

— Other payables, receipts —H b pETRIE
in advance and accrued TEURIE R FEST
changes &M 14,623
— Amount due to a director —ENEERE 629
— Deferred tax liabilities — B IEE & 5,360
Consolidated total liabilities rEAaERE 2,776,755
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

6. EXBRIER )

Hip &8

(c) Other information (c)

184

2017

ODM  Own-brand Bare battery

business business cell business Others Total
BE
ODME# R EUER Hth Foh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTr ARETR ARETR AR%T:R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « BRE RRERE 24,750 14,636 7,027 150 46,563
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE « BERFEESE 4,208 3,116 212 - 7,536
Write-off of property, plant and equipment NE  BERRERS 2,144 - 1,200 - 3,344
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH - 129 12 1,263 1,404
Impairment loss recognised on trade and note FEKESFERERER
receivables BRZRERR 8,713 2,128 1,561 - 12,402
Write-off of trade and notes receivables MERKE STERENER 60 1,307 - - 1,367
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, FEAFE R REMRKE
deposits and other receivables BRZRERE 1,211 4,902 6,272 - 12,385
Write-off of prepayments, deposits and other MEBRTE  REREM
receivables e R 395 1,084 - - 1,479
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and note BEBRERE SFERERE
receivables previously recognised BRERERM (19,081) (38,977) (947) - (59,005)
Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, BERRENTE ke REM
deposits and other receivables previously ERFEREEREE
recognised (6,556) (1,596) (8,757) - (16,909)
Write-down of inventories HFEHR - - 3,644 - 3,644
Write-off of inventories e 32,530 10,306 - - 42,836
Research and development costs HEER 128,580 15,750 10,505 - 154,835
Income tax FTiEst 1,274 (9,052) 1,135 1,052 409
Additions to property, plant and equipment n%  BERERERE 43,704 19,874 1,679 397 65,654
Additions to intangible assets EYEERE - - 26 508 534
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) () HavERE)
2016
Bare
ODM  Own-brand  battery cell
business business business Others Total
ER
ODMEH miEER ERES Eft @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFT  ARETT ARETT AR®Tr  ARETxR
Depreciation of property, plant and NE  BERRENE
equipment 22,512 17,908 8,557 1,414 50,391

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BERREEBR

equipment 2,583 5,295 268 - 8,146
Write-off of property, plant and equipment — #i#%% - BERE 979 103 869 - 1,951
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEERH - - 13 1,550 1,563

Impairment loss recognised on trade and HENEFFERERES
notes receivables BAZREER 281,011 31,488 2,116 4,468 319,083

Impairment loss recognised on prepayments,  SLFEREUE - 14 A fEl A

deposits and other receivables BR2AEER 34,301 10,980 5,100 7,139 57,520
Reversal of write-down of inventories WRFERE - (284,200) - - (284,200)
Research and development costs HeEgA 171,193 24,558 10,752 2,265 208,768
Income tax FTiEst (35,989) (12,765) (1,025) 491 (49,288)
Additions to property, plant and equipment 1% - BERREFE 52,787 4,790 2,952 2,771 63,300
Additions to intangible assets BEVEERE - 397 - 1,341 1,738
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(d) Turnover from major products d) FEERZEXS
The Group’s turnover from its major products were as REREETEERCEEBNT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
ODM business: ODME :
Mobile phone battery FHEM 4,725,050 4,540,473
Power bank BEEIR 128,813 164,276
Motive battery B HEM 14,577 59,914
Others Hih 14,616 23,735
ODM business ODMEETS 4,883,056 4,788,398
Own-brand business: BEmMMEREL
Power bank BEHEIR 80,203 395,973
Power management module BIREEEMA 41,738 181,424
Mobile phone battery FHEM 19,997 31,514
Motive battery EHEM 1,813 46,667
Smart wearable devices battery BeeFEREE 1,220 6,006
Others Hith 16,766 18,817
Own-brand business BA mhEER 161,737 680,401
Bare battery cell business: BIRER
Lithium-ion bare battery cells SEEEFEN 248,210 286,134
Others Hib 508,563 306,544
Total turnover Fat 0] 5,801,566 6,061,477
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(e) Geographical information (e) HEEHR
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as REBWE 2R E T 58 RS R
analysis of the Group's carrying amount of each relevant EEBREZSTURKNEBGESEH
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and HREERREWE B LEERET
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market BENEREES T  REREARESHF
have not been presented as they are substantially generated BlE A AR -

from or situated in the PRC.

(f) Information about major customers f) FEEFEHR
Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for RKEFERFPZWHE(FES(EARERE Y
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below: Z10% 8 A £ )EFI T ¢
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Customer A ZFEA 1,298,782 1,679,156
Customer B =5B 792,064 862,479
Customer C =PC 717,430 N/AT N3 A

' The corresponding revenue did not contribute over ! HERETREAEEB RSB

10% of the total revenue of the Group. 10% A E ©
7. OTHER REVENUE 7. HftWzs

2017 2016

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR® TR ARBTT

Government grants BT 2R 13,388 19,345
Interest income B A 8,534 15,073
Net foreign exchange gain PE 7 I a5 58 - 11,890
Sale of scrap materials HEER = 4,110
Compensation from suppliers HrEmEEE 1,816 1,658
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and BITR 2 EIE 5518 R BN E R

notes receivables previously recognised EEER D 59,005 -

Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, @7 3R 2 B FIE - 124 R E b REW
deposits and other receivables previously IR EEERE D

recognised 16,909 -
Sundry income ESIET PN 16,255 10,998
115,907 63,074
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8.

188

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRETBHANERN (&E)

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Bk (GTA)TFIEE ¢

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT

Auditor’s remuneration:
— current year

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (including depreciation
recorded in research and development
costs of RMB8,655,000 (2016:
RMB7,273,000)

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised on trade and
notes receivables

Impairment loss recognised on prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Write-off of trade and notes receivables

Write-off of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of
inventories

Write-off of inventories

Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

Cost of processing income

Operating lease rentals for office premises

Research and development costs

Staff costs (Note 9)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

BT EN S -

—AEE 3,361 2,212
M BERRETE

(BIENRE B AR EEN

#rEE AR#8,655,0007T

(2016%F : AR¥7,273,0007T))

46,563 50,391
A E 1,404 1,563
HEWE 5 I8 R ERRIERER
ZBEEE 12,402 319,083
HIEMRIE - 1S RH b EHGRIERER
ZBEEE 12,385 57,520
WsHENE 5B R EREE 1,367 -
WEETERRUA « e REM TR
1,479 -
FEMOR, (MO E )
3,644 (284,200)
FEME 42,836 -
LEWE - BERREESE
7,536 8,146
WEHIZE - BB R 3,344 1,951
RARZ 2 FERA 5,356,604 5,421,220
NI A Z B AR 35,710 82,427
MAEL2HERS 19,824 28,457
HEBER 154,835 208,768
8 TR A (FiEE9) 334,656 362,172
HEWBAREEN S - (64,145)
FHIEM B AR ELMEE 13 -
P& 5 E51E, (e ) F 58 622 (11,890)
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STAFF COSTS 9. EIRKA&
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EE=He(MFE10) 3,812 3,537
Other staff costs HhE TAA 380,354 409,744
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRIEFIGT &R 13,717 19,165

Less: Staff costs included in research and S FF AR EBRRE TRA

development costs (63,227) (70,274)

334,656 362,172

.DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES' 10.EENEEHM

REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 (a) $Ef§f%"ﬂ1\%f§ﬂ(%’622$)%38315‘({5‘
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the PRAR(HBEENZER)RO(E
Ordinance) and the Companies (Disclosure of information 622GE)(IEHHFEMESIHME T ¢

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the
Regulation) is as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT

Salaries, housing allowances, other N - BEERL - iR R

allowances and benefits in kind EWiaH 2,460 2,394
Fees e 1,308 1,099
Other emoluments: HeMe :
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAE T B 44 44

3,812 3,537
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10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’' 10.EE=REEHFMe
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b)y AEBRESIZNMBMESFBEOT :
are as follows:

2017
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
in kind Fees contributions emoluments
5H - B2
EBEL - Hits
BEER RIRER
BYER wne B AL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®TRT AR®TZR

Fang Jin ik - - 11 1
Guo Quan Zeng SRR 3% 1,300 - 11 1,311
Feng Ming Zhu RSB 600 208 1 819
Zhang Li KA 560 160 1" 731
Hou Li &L - 160 - 160
Loke Yu ez - 450 - 450
Wang Jing Zhong Fad - 70 - 70
Wang Jian Zhang TEE - 70 - 70
Heng Ja Wei, Victor TR 4 - 190 - 190

2,460 1,308 44 3,812
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10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.EEREEFM o)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIZNMBMESFBEOT ((#)
are as follows: (Continued)

2016
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
in kind Fees  contributions  emoluments
0 BE
AL Hft
R RKAER
EWER kn BEL it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR®TR

Fang Jin ik - - 10 10
Guo Quan Zeng S[R3 1,300 - 14 1,314
Feng Ming Zhu AT 200 72 3 275
Huang Yan =i 67 134 7 208
Zhang Li R 2R 800 189 10 999
Hou Li =5 27 55 - 82
Loke Yu PR - 446 - 446
Wang lJing Zhong TR - 70 - 70
Wang Jian Zhang TEE - 70 - 70
Heng Ja Wei, Victor MK 4 - 63 - 63

2,394 1,099 44 3,537
During both years, none of the director has received any KREEER  BEdE W AERS R
bonus payments paid by the Group. H T84 o
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10.DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(c) The five highest paid individuals include three directors for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: three), details of
whose emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: two) non-
director highest paid individuals are as follows:

10.EEREEFM o)

(0

HZE2017F12A31BIEFE AZ2&S
FALBIE=2(2016%5F : =£)8%
HEHSFHEBIHN L -

Hipm# (20165 - MA)IFEF RS H
ATBET

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARETT

Salaries, bonus, allowance and other  Bi& - #8% - B R HMEF]

benefits 2,471 2,421

Retirement benefits scheme R FIET B HERN
contributions 31 30
2,502 2,451

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest
paid individuals are within the following brands:

HEHRFFEERSFMA LM FIAT
#HE

2017 2016

Nil to RMB865,100 (equivalent to Nil ~ ZTZ&E AR®865,100c(HHERZEE

to HK$1,000,000) 1,000,000 7T) 1 1
RMB865,001 to RMB1,730,000 AR¥865,0017TE AR1,730,0007T

(equivalent to HK$1,000,001 to (F8& 71,000,001 752,000,000

HK$2,000,000) L) = 1
RMB1,730,001 to RMB2,162,500 AR#1,730,0007F AR¥2,162,500

(equivalent to HK$2,000,001 to JL(FE#2,000,00178 702

HK$2,500,000) 2,500,000/ 1) 1 -

(d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including both
directors and employees) or any directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during both years except that Mr.
Fang Jin has voluntarily waived his salaries for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 22017412 A31H 1FF/Z

11.

12.

FINANCE COSTS 1. ME R
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREEF T
Interest on bank borrowings SRITIE AR 18,123 18,482
Interest on other loans HuEHF 2 216 508
Interest on obligation under finance leases FIEME & EF| 2 283 432
Interest on discounted notes receivable BLIRFENZ ST B 25,078 6,531
Other finance costs HAh g & A AR 914 611
44,614 26,564

INCOME TAX 12. B8

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other

jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal

business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong incurred tax losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

On 2 July 2013, Dongguan Hongde was recognised as
ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number
is GR201344000058. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly. On 24 July 2014, Shenzhen Hongde was approved
to continue as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate
number is GR201444200634. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly. On 30 November 2016, Dongguan Hongde was
approved to continue as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the
certificate number is GR201644000083. It is subject to income
tax at 15% accordingly.

On 14 August 2014, Scud Electronics was approved to continue
as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number
is GR201435000040. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

HRGERABETEZRBELI - ARrE
%@%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬂiﬁ%@%ﬁlﬁ L EN
RANEAE LS HEE o

HREMFAREENEMRIFERBAESE -
TRIERBEE - MABREE LML A E
REAERAFERBEFEERSHERE &
S B E RS LB -

hEIGERMASHRBETIRER A BFEEERN
e B IE MG A R A M E -

2013567 H28 - REBEEMRR R = M
% - BEI=F - FEREITAGR201344000058 ©
HIZ15% 8 B E MBS - 7201457
A48 - %W\ﬁ%?ﬁ%)&fﬁiﬁi%%‘%ﬂiﬁmﬁ :
REI= - FEHR RGR201444200634 ©
Z15% BT R NABEFTIS R - EA2016$11H
308 REBEREABEASTRMCE A
H=F - FERS HBGR201644000083 ° A%
15% BBt B AN AR IR PRTS BE ©

M2014F8 A 148 - REME THEEBE BT
% - BEA=F - FEREILAGR201435000040 ©
HIR15% MR GMBERSH -
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IAAS

12.

194

INCOME TAX (Continued)

On 30 September 2014, Scud Power (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Shenzhen”) was approved to continue as an ANTE for a period
of 3-year and the certificate number is GR201444201487. It is
subject to income tax at 15% accordingly.

On 21 November 2016, Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhen Nalon”) was approved as an ANTE for a period of
3-year and the certificate number is GR201644201656. It is
subject to income tax at 15%.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the remaining
subsidiaries of the Group that established in the PRC are subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%.

Details of the income tax (credit)/charge in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
as follows:

12. FiB8 8

2014569 H30H - REBEIRCORID AR A
AIDRIIRER D EEEBE SRR
ABE=F  BFEZHREY AGR201444201487 - &
R15% M B RENAREFTS L

2016511 A218 - RN TEAGEE M BR A
BIRYIBARE ) B Am Rt - BHI=
F o EEREY AGR201644201656 © Ei215%
O SR SR AN R FEFT IS A

RIBPBEDERSIE - AEBEHBEKIZH
HM B AR ARTREEMEHRE25%H
i o

FFAGABRRMEAMEEKREROAFHROE
%)/ ZHFEWT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
Current tax — PRC BEARR 18

Enterprise Income Tax: PRI EATISE
— Tax for the year —AFEBIE 6,356 (11,488)
— Underprovision in prior years —BAFEREBETR 1,278 645
Deferred tax — current year (Note 29) PEIER T8 — AFE (F1FE29) (7,225) (38,445)
Income tax charge/(credit) Frisfisz it/ (%) 409 (49,288)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 %2017 12731H 1F F/Z

12. INCOME TAX (Continued) 12. Fif88i)
The reconciliation between profit/(loss) before income tax and Ra B R H M A E WK BRATE A
income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and (BB HEATSH 2 HERMAT

other comprehensive income is as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Profit/(loss) before income tax AT EFRLEA, (EE) 20,290 (174,121)
Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant REARAER AERREGTE

jurisdictions BIBIE 5,269 (38,964)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR L HE R R 2

purposes 28,148 103,411
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes HZERH UL A T 75 5 22 (35,669) (113,124)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHEBENHEEZ 2,978 8,774
Underprovision in prior years MEFERETE 1,278 645
Effect of concessionary rate granted to the PRC Ry BB ARERHERN

subsidiaries % (1,595) (10,030)
Income tax charge/(credit) Frisfisz i (%) 409 (49,288)

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

No dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December HZE2017F K2016F12831HIEFETET
2017 and 2016. TR S, -
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14. EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE 14. 8RRER(FH#E)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per RARIHEE ANEESRERNREERT, (B
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the B)RBATEEE -

following data:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T

Profit/(loss) for the purposes of basic and STEEREANESRET(HE)
diluted earnings/(losses) per share (profit/(loss)  &EF,(E1E) (KA T HA AFE
for the year attributable to the owners of the — {EARRFE %A,/ (EE))
Company) 21,125 (118,951)

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREAE

2017 2016

‘000 ‘000

TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  E+EGREAREERT,(EiE)

for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings/ )& @A HIAE F1 8%

(losses) per share 1,090,001 1,090,001
The computation of diluted losses per share for the year ended TEHE2016F12A31 B EFEZ BIREEE
31 December 2016 does not assume the conversion of potential BR - TERXCEREHEE TERENER
ordinary shares in relation to certain share options granted as BZBELTBER AAHEERESZE - B
they are anti-dilutive. As at 31 December 2017, there is no 2017412 A318 » WEBELER -

potential ordinary share.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 9% - RERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Land under Plant and Motor ~ furniture ~ Construction Leasehold
finance lease Building  machinery vehicles and fixtures  in progress Moulds ~ improvements Total
HEHE B3k &
ETiH BT HREREE R GUREE  ARIR LR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MRETT ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cost A
1 January 2016 WIEEIAIA 12904 106,797 279,654 15,678 74129 4150 1352 71,65 566,316
Additions g - - 41,881 17 16934 3,600 B 145 63,300
Transfer from/{to) construction in progress &1t /(A)EE TR - - 5,098 - 676 (5.774) - - -
De-recogition from disposal of subsidiaries ~ RE L ENBAFA 183 - - 1305 872 (1,591) - (60) (4.934) (28,782)
Disposals fe - - (12,536) 2 (10,185) - (1315) - (24.287)
Written off BB - - 2,1%) (265) (6,469) (103) - (146) (9,179
31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 W61 A3NBRNTEIR1A 12904 106,797 290,576 15,007 73,494 1873 - 66,717 567,368
Addtions HE - - 47309 I8 14347 31 - 131 65,654
Transfer fromfto] constuction n progress  &th/( A EE T - - 505 - 20 (525) - - -
Disposdls e - - Wiy s 9 - - - (6
Writen off b - - (24.0m) - (5,047) - - - (29,124)
31 December 2017 WITENE3A 12,904 106,797 310,124 13,203 73,062 44n - 06,848 587,410
Depreciation il
1 January 2016 WIEE1R1A 2467 25,365 120,185 9,775 40,757 - 629 67421 266,59
Charge for the year TEEER 21 5,080 28,665 1276 1258 - 138 243 50,391
De-recognition from disposal of subsidiaries ~ RE & ENBAFA 83 - - (8,507) (352) (890) - 47 (483 (14,630
Disposals it - - (6,871) (189) (8.361) - (720) - (16,141)
Written off B - - (1,209) %) (5,621) - - (146) (7.228)
31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 WI6E12A318 R01TE1R1A 218 30,445 132,263 10258 38428 = - 64879 278,991
Charge for th year RERRS u 5001 298 919 14450 - - 9 4658
Disposds e - - 879) (3% (5725) - - - 895
Writen off b - - 21,899) - (3.881) - - - (25,780)
31 December 2017 WIENE3A 2958 35,536 134473 8825 $B1m - - 65,758 29082
Net book value Em#E
31 December 2017 WIENANA 9946 1,261 175,651 4378 29,79 4 - 1,090 296,588
31 December 2016 WI6E128318 10,186 76,352 158,313 4,749 35,066 1873 - 1838 288377
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IAAS

15.

198

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB16,460,000 (2016: RMB19,127,000), land under
finance lease with a carrying amount of RMB71,261,000 (2016:
RMB77,089,000) have been pledged by the Group in favour of
a bank to secure a bank loan granted by a bank to the Group
(Note 27).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged property, plant
and equipment carried at approximately RMB31,535,000 (2016:
RMB26,057,000) for other loans (Note 27).

As at 31 December 2017, plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB1,996,000 (2016: RMB2,263,000) has been
pledged to a landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses
payable.

15. 9% - BERRE®)

720174124318 » BREE A R #16,460,0007T
(20164 : AR#19,127,0007T) B E F i 28 -
SR E A R71,261,0007T(2016%F : AR
77,089,0007T ) &t & A0 & b LA F 7 52 [ 4K 7
THRIT - AERIRITE T AL R 2 RITER (I
F£27) o

M2017F12A318 - AEBEEHREEEAOA
R #31,535,00070(2016%F : AR #26,057,0007T)
W -« BB REENESEMER(HE27) -

®2017F12 4318 » BREE & A K #1,996,0007T
(20165 : AR#2,263,0007T) B = R i#s
ERENEEMNIERYERTFEE -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B HR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B & &

Software
B4
RMB’000
ARBEFT
Cost %S 10,669
1 January 2016 2016F1H1H
Additions NE 1,738
De-recognition from disposal of subsidiaries 2R B H ST R AR AR ERERR (1,971)
31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 2016 12H31HX2017F181H 10,436
Additions NE 534
31 December 2017 2017%F12H31H 10,970
Amortisation and impairment B RRE
1 January 2016 201651 H1H 7,080
Charge for the year REERX 1,563
Disposals & (1,331)
31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 20165128318 % 2017FE181H 7,312
Charge for the year REERZ 1,404
31 December 2017 2017512A31H 8,716
Net book value IREFE
31 December 2017 2017512H31H 2,254
31 December 2016 2016%F12A31H 3,124

Note:

i) The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included 0}
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement

GEX

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

RERFHANBIEFS D ARERER
Hp2EBaERITBA AT -
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17.INVENTORIES

17. 78

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBT T

Raw materials B 275,671 285,140
Work in progress E S 95,081 60,729
Finished goods BIRN Gh 200,952 115,363
Goods in transit TFEE D 78 1,412

571,782 462,644

During the year, a write-down of inventories of RMB3,644,000
(2016: reversal of write-down of inventories of RMB284,200,000)
and a write-off of inventories of RMB42,836,000 (2016: RMB
Nil) were recognised in profit or loss.

RAFE - FEMEA RS 644,0007T(2016
F . FEMRBRERL ARY284,200,0007T) & 17
B U A R #42,836,0007T(2016%F © AR
T)ERBEPER

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. AT EAEBZNWIMKEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Fund investment, at fair value BRATEARZESRE

At the beginning of the year REY] - 60,000
Disposal k= - (60,000)
At the end of the year RER = -
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19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 19. ERESZFIEREWREE

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T R AREEF T

Trade receivables B E 5 3kI8 2,011,083 1,941,182
Notes receivables R EE 52,937 116,355
2,064,020 2,057,537

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & : RIEEBREE (351,266) (407,121)
1,712,754 1,650,416

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

allowance, is as follows:

REHZR  EHBRBRBRNEBEBAROER
EH PR NEREBROREANAT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,383,404 1,507,237
61 to 180 days 612180H 208,602 104,138
181 to 365 days 181£365H 120,748 2,700
1 to 2 years —EWFE - 5,071
2 to 3 years RE=F - 31,270
1,712,754 1,650,416

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from

60 to 90 days.

BTHEERNFHEER/N FE0EWR -
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19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Continved) 19. EWWE S B R EWERE #)

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FRRZREBEHENESNT :
year were as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

1 January 1H1H 407,121 98,424
Written off s (103) -
Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 12,402 319,083
Reversal of impairment losses previously B R EEERD
recognised (59,005) -
De-recognition upon disposal of subsidiaries HE&ERKEB A BELKR HER - (10,386)
Exchange difference R (9,149) -
31 December 12H31H 351,266 407,121
The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are 8 BB 0 RO (B HO B IS 5 3R I R R IR B
past due but not impaired is as follows: BREOTT -
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBETT

Less than 6 months past due wHER 2 7~ A 129,546 39,449
Over 6 months past due wENE A A 33,794 36,239

163,340 75,688
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a BHEYARBENEKE S FNERZ LB IR
number of independent customers that have a good track record FEE MEEEAEEEBITM TG -
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the BENTRS  KAAFEERAERAEEEZAE
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment R EERNE > mME&REIEN S E -
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been WMAE B ERXEEITRERE -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20.A{tZ1E

s BE R EAbRUROR

RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBEFIT
Advance to suppliers [ 1t FE 7 0 5K 203,339 321,232
VAT recoverable 7] 3R [B] 32 {E T 2,267 10,331
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEWE  BERREHEMNED
plant and equipment 15,778 14,535
Deposits paid for finance lease arrangement HEIEMHELRH I N2 ES 3,134 6,775
Refundable deposits AR EES 3,578 10,149
Consideration receivable on disposal of JEW B EWBARNE
subsidiaries - 7,000
Others Hih 12,252 28,155
240,348 398,177
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & : FIEBREE (101,324) (132,374)
Total st 139,024 265,803
Less: Current portion W mENER S (120,112) (244,493)
Non-current portion e ENEL S 18,912 21,310
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20.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20.F{J&E - e R EMEWEIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (%)
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FRAREBRBEFEOESHT :

year were as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T

1 January 1H1H 132,374 105,859
Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 12,385 57,520
Reversal of impairment losses BT R R EEERE

previously recognised (16,909) -
Write-off s (26,526) (819)
De-recognition — disposal of subsidiaries AT — HEM B AR = (30,186)
31 December 12H31H 101,324 132,374
None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets LA EBEWARBE - U EEHEIER BRI
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which TE ) B 745 & 72 T EL 3T BRNE B K050 8% ©

there was no recent history of default.
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21.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 21.FEW {EEALTRIE
PARTIES

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest- U HEEATHFRIEAEKIR 28878
free and repayable on demand. REREE -
The information disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong BIERB QN EHIE3831E(5F622F ) BHREN
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) is as follows: BRI
Maximum
amount Balance at Balance at

outstanding 31 December 31 December

during the 2017 2016
year R2017%F 720164
FRAREE 12H31H 12A31H
EatHE RE 23 EOF=E-23
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥TT ARETT

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (Note i)  #@ERERRIMD AR A A (M 5E) 79,926 79,926 55,120
EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., AR HRRIE AR QA

Ltd. (Note ii) (B &xiD) 132,967 132,967 88,212
Fujian Youtong Industrial Co., Ltd. BERBEEERA R (M)

(Note iii) 733 - 733
Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training B&RERR S RIMTEHIER

School (Note iii) (B =i ) 513 513 267
Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. BENREREHLBR AT

(Note iv) (Pt zEiv) 76 = 76
Fujian Scud Power Technology Co.,  @ERERS NEHLERAF

Ltd. (Note v) (K¥&Ev) 22,713 22,713 409
Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd. @/ FFIEFHR AT (MTv)

(Note v) 10,060 10,060 2,000

246,179 146,817
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21.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 21.fEW EBEALTZE %)
PARTIES (Continued)

Notes: BRE -

() Its directors and shareholders, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo () EEENBRRERASEERDBRIBEELEENE
Quan Zeng, are also the directors and shareholders of the RARZEEFRREK -
Company.

(i) Its director is the son of, Mr. Fang lin, a director and iy EEFAHSAEE(RRAEEMBE)Z
shareholder of the Company. T

(iii) Its director, Mr. Fang Jin, is also a director and shareholder iy EEEFSAENAREARF2EERRK
of the Company. Ro

(iv) Its shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, is also a director and (ivy EfEAFTSLRE ENALARGICES
shareholder of the Company. RMARER o

(v) Its director and major shareholder is the son of, Mr. Fang () EBENFTBEBREREAFSAE(RARGZ
Jin, a director and shareholder of the Company. BERRF)ZF -

22. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 22. EEER

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have RIEBRR AEEEBUTEEER TR

been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees T ERMAMERNTIMELRITEALERZ

for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to R ERENEENEMMER T X RIE

suppliers and landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses AESHAMERREA

payable and pledged for other loans:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment (Note 15)  #1% - /= R84 (KizX15) 121,252 124,536
Bank deposits RITIFR 645,388 552,962
766,640 677,498
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23.

24,

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND THE
DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB") is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Time deposits are made for periods depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the
respective short-term time deposit rates. The directors consider
that the fair values of the short-term deposits are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because of the short
maturity period. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group
does not have any time deposit placed with banks and earn
interest income at the respective time deposit rates.

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

23.RITERRIBERER

RITEHRLBASERAEEFENRE S MRE
HIH A= ASA TG BER1TIF -

ARBTARE DA ERLBEMBES
AT R BISNE E IR ARDI R A IE - EERN
EEEMRTE  AEEAKHRREETIEL
MRS 2 RITHRE -

EHRFER2HR - DRIAEB AR EH
SKMGE - REEBATERFRFEHEDFE - &
FEREANEHEHREFERREHRER - Hit
HAPEAEEEBETESEAER - R2017F
2016512 A31H - REBE W EMARITFRE
fa] & BATF 3K+ W RS B T AT KR = BRI B
WA o

2. BENEZREARENRE

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEF T

Trade payables FENE 508 998,006 1,001,410
Notes payables ENEZE 1,293,814 1,112,960
2,291,820 2,114,370
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24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2. EHESZRERESNEZRE®)

RFEFAE  RREHRENEZKBREN
SERREOTOT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,699,294 1,486,981
61 to 180 days 612180H 512,443 516,518
181 to 365 days 181£E365H 33,608 24,919
1 to 2 years —EMWF 18,445 55,453
2 to 3 years ME=F 15,886 24,706
Over 3 years =FLE 12,144 5,793

2,291,820 2,114,370

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period
taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.

25. OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE
AND ACCRUED CHARGES

FEE S ROAE B DI E BE RISRAA D
RXNBE - R ENEE BTN F308
£90H °

25. A B+ ~ T WRERIE K Bt
gH
2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBT T

Deposits bi7sn 37,030 35,177
Payroll and welfare payables FEAT BN M AE F 22,139 34,955
Accrued expenses FEzHRI 17,026 7,751

Payables for acquisition of property, plant ~ BEEME KR & R EENZE
and equipment 1,129 11,908
Other tax payables Hh fE (TR 124,090 63,437
Withholding tax liability BAHREEE 9,000 9,000
Others EAp 38,937 45,503
249,351 207,731
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26. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 26. EmMRIGEES

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

1 January 1H18 1,943 1,870
Additions N - 348
De-recognition upon disposal of subsidiaries HE&EKEB A BEK FER - (275)
Realisation B35 (1,532) -
At 31 December ®12A31H 411 1,943
The provision for warranty represents management’s best ERREEESEEEEREBTILRLEN
estimate of the Group's liability under a half-year warranty REFHHAE  MAEERENEARBESM
program granted on the own-brand batteries, based on prior FFRIEFE N B BERNRERBT -

experience and industry averages for defective products.

27. BORROWINGS 27. B

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEFTT

Bank loans (Note (a)): RITER (ML)
Secured bank loans BEHEBIRITER 279,340 163,404
Unsecured bank loans EIIRIRITER 131,039 251,690
410,379 415,094
Other loans (Note (b)) HAE R (FI3E(D)) 8,431 7,466
Obligations under finance leases (Note () EdEMEEE (ML) 2,350 7,805
421,160 430,365
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27. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows:

27. B )
BisE -

(a)

RITERERFHMOT :

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARBTT

Current portion: MBI
Within 1 year or on demand —FERRIRENR

410,379 415,094

As at 31 December 2017, bank loans of approximately
RMB279,340,000 (2016: RMB163,404,000) were secured
by the Group’s property, plant and equipment with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB16,460,000 (2016:
RMB19,127,000) (Note 15), land under finance lease with a
carrying amount of RMB71,261,000 (2016: RMB77,089,000)
(Note 15), bank deposits of RMB645,388,000 (2016:
RMB552,962,000) (Note 22) and by personal guarantee
from the Company’s director and controlling shareholder,
Mr. Fang Jin, for certain bank loans of the Group up to an
amount of RMB410,379,000 (2016: RMB242,698,000).

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

R2017F 128318 » Y AREE279,340,000
TT(20164% : AR#163,404,0007T ) EER1T
B ARAZ & B 42 BR H B A K 1516,460,000

TL(2016%F : A R #19,127,0007T ) (Bt &+
15)RME - BERER  EEEARE
71,261,0007C (20164 : A R #77,089,000
L) (WEFS)MRERE T ARK
645,388,0007T (20164 : AR¥552,962,000
o) (MisF22) Wi A AR ES KER
BRASLERAAEERBESEES
E/\Eﬁ%mo,am,oooﬁ(zomi AR #&
f42,698,000ﬁ)ﬁ@ ETFRITEREMBMALE
% °

AEERRTERDFHERFEN XN
HERBLHFEF)MT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARETT

Average effective interest rate on fixed- [& B &2 T ERRFI =
rate borrowings

(b) Other loans:

The Group obtained other loans from two financial
institutions. These other loans are secured by certain plant
and machinery of net carrying amount of RMB31,535,000
(2016: RMB26,057,000) (Note 15) bear fixed interest rate at
4.75% per annum and are repayable in three years.

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
other loans are at 4%.

(b)

3.92% 4.58%
HER
AEBUERESRERESEME
R ZEEMERBETERFES
A R #31,535,00070(2016%F : A R #
26,057 ooo;%)(Wms)E’Jlﬂ%m%%a%%ﬁ
3 BRI 4 75% RN = ENEE o

AEBEMEFNEHERENER(ISE
REDFIE)BAY% -

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARBTT

Current portion: mENE S

Within 1 year or on demand —FERHIRER 3,253 7,466
Non-current portion: ERENE S

After 1 year but within 2 years —FRIERMER 5,178 -
Total #Et 8,431 7,466
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27. BORROWINGS (continued) 27. B &)

Notes: (Continued) MisE - (&)

(c) Obligations under finance leases: (0 REHERE:
The Group leases some of its plant and machineries. Such AEETPHEEETRELEW - AR
assets are generally classified as finance leases as the rental HERBBEE Z (Gt {F BB HIR -
period amounts to the estimated useful economic life of MAEBEBEREEEBERESINER
the assets concerned and often the Group has the right to SHEBEWEEREE  WaZSEERE
purchase the assets outright at the end of the minimum DEAMERE -

lease term by paying a nominal amount.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has obligations under M2017F12831H - NEBEHE BB FER
finance leases repayable as follows: WEHEEAGENT :
2017

Present

Total Interests of  value of the

minimum the minimum minimum

lease lease lease

payments payments payments

BRIEEE BEEE BEHAE

FRE%E FRFIE NREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR¥TR AR¥TT

Current portion: mENE S
Within 1 year or on demand —FERRIRENR 2,378 28 2,350
2016
Present
Total Interests of value of the
minimum the minimum minimum
lease lease lease
payments payments payments
=EHEE ®EHEE =IEHEE
4z REFE NFRE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARBT T
Current portion: mEE Y -
Within 1 year or on demand —FERYIRER 5,707 252 5,455
Non-current portion: JEmEEB D ¢
After 1 year but within 2 years —EERER 2,378 28 2,350
Total 5t 8,085 280 7,805
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are also REEREHEAENTEARNT —RES
secured by the guarantee of a director and substantial REXERER —FKEENTIZHER -

shareholder of the Company and a related company.
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28. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 28. BENESEMIE
The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and BEREEREDAEETE - 28 B ERERE
repayable on demand. & o

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 29.EHFRENELEHBEERERE

RECOGNISED
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RERNEEEMBRARERNIELERIEE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the E/(BE)HBs REBNT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Provision
Impairment for write
lossontrade  Accelerated down to net  Undistributed

and other  accounting  Provision for realisable  profits of
receivables  depreciation  warranty value  subsidiaries Tax loss Others Total
I EEE
REMEY i3 R WAETE WA
FEREEE  ERFE  RBERE  RREERE  AAWEW  REEE it 3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

1 January 2016 201651518 32,083 1 399 69,059 (5,360) - (30 9,152
Creditcharge) to profit or loss REREHA/ (1) 83275 (119) 81 (68,800) - 65,148 (1,147) 38,445
31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 2016128318 R201741 £ 1R 75,558 (117) 186 259 (5,360) 65,148 (137) 134597
Crediticharge) to profit or loss ERERA/ (HR) 4789 17 (383) 1325 - - 1377 1205
31 December 2017 7128318 80,347 - 103 1,584 (5,360) 65,148 - 141,822
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED (Continued)

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

29. RN ELERBEEEREE 2

REIME ETEERBEENBELR
A MBI RS o LATZ%EJEEH%#&%WVE
HEVEER B AR -

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE IR AR AR 2 IBIET
consolidated statement of financial position HEEFE 147,182 141,451
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REFE BIEROR RN TER 2 ELER
consolidated statement of financial position EEEFE (5,360) (6,854)
141,822 134,597

The Group has tax losses carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB23,993,000 (2016: RMB85,057,000) which
relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses and may not
be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. These
subsidiaries have no temporary taxable differences which could
partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there
are no tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, profits would increase by approximately RMB5,998,000
(2016: loss would decrease by RMB19,041,000).

NEE B HEEBIEBELN ARKK23,993,0007T
(20164 : A R #85,057,00007T) © L EEE
W K ER 1S 518 B BT B A B J2 R 04 m] FR LA 88
REBH A 77 B ERTIUA o L EHB A A
WEAISD X ERECHBEENERRY
BFZRE o IEHN - WARRIBAEIK S LUE— PR
HRAERELE -

MAREEREIEAT A R ERNE LR B E EMR
2 BRI 4 A R #5,998,0007C(2016
F e ARE19,041,0000T) °
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29.

214

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (Continued)

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The
standard withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27
of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the
Detailed Implementation Rules of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced
to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administration Region (“HKSAR") for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR Double Taxation Agreement,
Hong Kong tax residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise are entitled to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate
of 5%.

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to
its foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise
Income Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits
generated by a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008
shall be subjected to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with
the relevant articles of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Detailed Implementation Rules as described above. Accordingly,
dividends receivable from certain subsidiaries in respect of profits
earned since 1 January 2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s share of aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB291,214,000
(2016: RMB291,214,000. Deferred tax liabilities have not been all
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the Group’s share of temporary differences attributable to
retained profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

29. ERRNEERBEEEREE 2

RIFPBEDEMEBEEIEREI7E - B
SEHRERERFABRERINEREE DK
B2 BB ANRBEME T ABMEERER
RIBHPEEEMSRERME  BRERNHES
20% ° MARBEHBEREMEBER27HEES
EEMESTEEBEDIFEIG - LilEm BN
RERE10% ° RIBCABME B HITTH R
(IEEFNITHE]D BRYASELEEHMN
M LIEERRANZ ) - NFETRBERE25%%K
N EEENEBRHRER @ AT REEHRES%H
MBS TR

SN AR IR B IED I B R B 48 B P 200842
B2R2AHARGR(EREEMBHETESR
BUR e @A) (BAF{[2008]15%%) » 20084 Z B FM
EMIRECEEKRRERSECFE - £20084
2 BDEGEINEIREER - A RBEEMSE
Tt M2008F 3k 2 & FFE NI E D ER T
FESE - Bk EaiPBEAERSREABIE
Pl R LB iR RIS A R 2 AT A8 - Bt -
A THE AR E2008F1 A1 BFEESHE
) FE U AR B ZB B AR 5 % I TE AR -

2017612 A318  AEEEEEA QG HE
WEATMRBAFNEENEREZES ROARE
291,214,0007T(20164F : AR#E291,214,0007T) °
HRAREE TR EREE  KE - BTN
ERRNT R G T ERE - REBIWEEN
RATFEMEARRBRFEL BT RE
NGB RREHRERIEE E8YE -
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. lx &<

Number of

ordinary shares

of HK$0.10
each Amount

F1R0.10/8 T
EZERRE X
in Thousands RMB’'000
F & AREFT

Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 R2016F1H1H « 2016F &

and 2017 2017912 A31H 1,090,001 107,590
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31. RESERVES 31. &
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBGEERNS B D NRFEI NFERE
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out NHEHENGARRETHEK - AR RFI R
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of FERFERIS SRS B 2 FIEEHI T -

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Share
Share Capital option Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RoEE  EXRE BRERE EiRE  REERA #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETR ARETL ARETR ARETT ARSTR
1 January 2016 201651718 619,288 250,887 14811 (102,384) 40195 822,797
Loss for the year rEEBR - - - - (1,097) (1,097)
Other comprehensive income Hih2EeR - - - 46,078 - 46,078

Total comprehensive income for AEERHNEEE

the year - - - 46,078 (1,097) 44,981
At 31 December 2016 and M2016F12A31H K

1 January 2017 20171818 619,288 250,887 14,811 (56,306) 39,098 867,778
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (1,315) (1,315)
Other comprehensive income HEi2Eka - - - (47,556) - (47,556)

Total comprehensive income for AEERANGEE
the year - - - (47,556) (1,315) (48,871)

At 31 December 2017 ©2017F 124318 619,288 250,887 14,811 (103,862) 37,783 818,907
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 32. FEERER

Summarised financial information in relation to the Group’s REEHAEE AR ES ([ FEEREZR]D 2
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCls"), WEARNEERNYHEMZHBERBERZY
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: mr

2017 2016
Percentage of equity interest held by NCls: FFIZEMR ST hERZ A DL ¢
Shenzhen Hongde and its subsidiary FRIIEE R EHE AR 21% 21%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BIZE2017F12831HLLFE

Shenzhen Hongde
and its subsidiary

FYIRE
REMB AR
RMB’000
AR%T T

Revenue ez 255,293
Loss for the year KREEEE (5,909)
Loss allocated to NCls DB E IR S 2 B 1R (1,244)
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHFBRERE (8,921)
Cash flows from investing activities BRERHMBREME 695
Cash flows from financing activities BETHERERE 7,181
Net cash outflows RemL F58 (1,045)
Current assets mBEE 220,288
Non-current assets EREEE 39,287
Current liabilities mEaE (198,252)
Net assets FEE 61,323
Accumulated NCls BT IEE R = 11,249
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 32. R fER ()
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F12A31HLFE
Shenzhen
Hongde and Shenzhen

its subsidiary Nalon Total

wYIEE
LEKMB AR FYIBARE 5T
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFIT AREFIT AREEFTT
Revenue g 275,098 236,344 511,442
Profit/(loss) for the year AEE R, (FHE) 8,105 (22,229) (14,124)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCls I EIHERRERS 2 EF(BE) 786 (6,668) (5,882)
Cash flows from operating activities K& FBMERETE 9,188 (11,416) (2,228)
Cash flows from investing activities & FEFTSIRERE (8,386) 6,102 (2,284)
Cash flows from financing activities Ft&ZBMERETE 9,071 2,900 11,971
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BERACRE)F58E 9,873 (2,414) 7,459
Current assets MENEE 252,680 - 252,680
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 45,074 - 45,074
Current liabilities nRBEE (230,525) - (230,525)
Net assets FEE 67,229 - 67,229
Accumulated NCls ZEHIEE i 12,493 - 12,493
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
3 December 2006. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to reward eligible participants who have contributed to the
Group and to encourage eligible participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include directors and employees
of the Group and any directors and employees of the Group,
advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of the Company whom the board
of directors of the Group considers to have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
and expired on 2 December 2016 and the Company by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the board of directors of the
Company may at anytime terminate the Share Option Scheme
without prejudice to the options granted during the life of the
Share Option Scheme and which remain unexpired immediately
prior to such termination.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the time of listing,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
total number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in use at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates
representing in aggregate or with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by resolution of
the Company’s shareholders (voting by way of poll).

33. B IR AERT &

RARZBERESTE([ZERETE ) AIRE
2006512 A3H Ml 7 TR FBRERMN - IR
EFE s ENRREHALSEEER A ER
2MELEEEERSNERIEALRE - A
NAIRORERREENEEMS ) - Bk
HENSER2NEREASEESREER
TEBEZERRUAEEEERIBHERE
EEERNAENAEEEEZRES - KAFE
B BBA - DR ABR - HtER - R
A BE EBBHN - AELEFEBBE B
AR L ERY -

ZBRE A BIRMFRARTF - EN20165F12
A2R2)8 - EEBZBRE S FHRMET
BRI S Y R BEAR LB 5 R JE T B i 2 g as
T ARAAHERRAG L2 EBRBEREA
RAEEGAPMEMERREZBREE -

REARDRREAE - RIBZERAEST BT 8
B BRRERT S 2 IR A% - TSR A
NAEEMREBITRG 210% ° REARRQ A
AR SR BE/E - PRl — FF B 48 K AT RE (Al (R fa {E 51
ATHEE 2 ERERT S R 2 BT RS T 81T
BpHBE  TERBBARAREREBITRGOZ
1% c BAERAEREEZRFIBTIFNTES
FAEMBEEF2BMEATRL CERERMS R 2
BEITRETETROEESIMS SRS LB
85,000,000/ 7T - AR R FIRE(AKRRE
FARFA)FBERA
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IAAS

33.

220

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Upon the grant of an option a consideration of HK$1 is payable
and the relevant option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the
exercise period to be determined by the board of directors,
which shall not exceed 10 years. The exercise price of the options
shall be determined by the board of directors of the Company in
its absolute discretion but will in any event not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of an offer of an option by the Company (which
must be a business day); (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the 5 preceding business days of the
day of the offer of an option; or (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share
of the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as
follows:

33. IR ST Bl

ERBERER  ABRARXMABTZRELRA
REFGMETE 217 B R iR % B R
B2 R ITR AR E - BRITRBTEE
BtFE - BREZTEERARRESTS 2R
BISERE - HEEBOEETEER THIFEF
Z&mE ()VARABRNRAARREZRLE
BEER(BEREXR)EMIMELZFH
WEXRMHZBME  (ARFRRNDRELE
HBREEAMAEERAERIMBEL S
R¥RERMAY 2 FHRTE : i) RN BB
ZHEAE °

BOBBERTRHEARNRBEARR — KK
o BEEYEE TRHEABNBREHNER
RELIRRZHER -

REFERARITEZ BIREFIBIT

Number of

shares options

BRERE

Outstanding at 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016

201641 A1H %2016512 A31H ARITE

80,000,000

The fair value of the share options determined on 19 June 2014
(the grant date) using the Black-Scholes pricing model was
HK$0.23376 per share and the total estimated fair value of the
options granted was approximately HK$18,701,000 (equivalent
to RMB14,811,000).

201456 198 (X T HED BRI N = —
R ETEEABEENBEREZ ATE
AER0.233768 L - BERHEREY HEA
FEBFEL218,701,0008 T (HE R AR
14,811,0007T) °
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values
of share options:

19 June 2014

Exercise price HK$0.94
Expected option life 3 years
Expected volatility 55.047%
Annualised dividend yield 1.898%
Risk-free rate 0.442%

The Black-Scholes pricing model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the share options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the Directors’ best estimate. The fair value of share options
carries with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no share-
based payment expenses was recognised in profit or loss in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the weighted average
exercise price is HK$0.94. The remaining contractual live of the
options outstanding as at 31 December 2016 was 0.5 year.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, all the share options
are lapsed.

33. BIRERE (2

S PR A TR T P T3 B ¢

201456 819H
(B 0.9477C
BERETEHI R 34
TE HRR 18 55.047%
FEREE 1.898%
i L P ) = 0.442%

52900 48 90 72 — 47 BB BT SO (AR =L B AR
MATE - ERBRENDTE? RHRER
TYRE R A o BRI T
SE T BERNTREH— AR -

HE20179F K20165F12 8318 I FE - #iE
BEARRNBRHNEREEB CRIEBERTERS
AR BEREZRAX -

HZE2016F12A31BILFE - MEFHITEE
£0.94% 7T - 12016F 128318 » RITHEER
T2 FEA HHIR A0.56 - HZE20179F12A
BNHLEFE - ZEBEREE RN -
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. A&/ B R &
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mzt AR¥ T AREEFTT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEB R BIRE 35 250,901 250,901
Total non-current asset SEMENE EARTE 250,901 250,901
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E O] 679,459 728,956
Bank balances and cash ﬁETTmuﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬁ 1,165 51
Total current assets MENEEBETE 680,624 729,007
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables E{‘MEH*” 3 3
Amount due to a subsidiary AR ENGIE ] 5,025 4,537
Total current liabilities mENEEEE 5,028 4,540
Net current assets REBEETFH 675,596 724,467
Net assets BEE 926,497 975,368
Capital and reserves EXRRREE
Share capital [N 30 107,590 107,590
Reserves i 31 818,907 867,778
Total equity BRER 926,497 975,368
FANG JIN GUO QUAN ZENG
bk PRI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
g g
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35. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the

35. @A F
RIBEHRARBMBRARFHBENOT « FRIES
BHHA - HANROERN A EER

reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-

establishment and

up share/registered

Group's effective

Name of company operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
/BRI Rk BERTRES/
AEER K BRBRA rEEENERES TEEY
2017 2016

Great Speed Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RAEEERAT RERIES 50,000% 7T RERR
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%*  Provision of corporate management

Limited BA 13T services
REREE(EB)ERRA REDAERRY
Keen Power Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
HAEEEERAT] BB 1,000 7T REAEZR
Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. PRC US$127,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-

(Note (i)) HE 127,000,000 ¢ ion battery modules, powerbanks,

RER(BR)EFBRLAMEN)

*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited

# Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings

Limited

motive battery and related
accessories for mobile phones and
digital electrical appliances

SERHEERTENEE BHE
R BNEMRFREREEET
Em 2 ERE

* EBEACERAERAREESAER

o RBBIREEEERER AR EESE R
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. (B AR )
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and up share/registered Group's effective
Name of company operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
/BRI Rk BRETRES/
ARER g BRRE rEEENRRES TEEH
2017 2016
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (Note (ii)) PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-
RERZHLEBRAF(FIE) H 30,000,000% 7T ion battery modules, powerbanks,

power management module,
motive battery, smart wearable
device battery and related
accessories for mobile phones
and digital electrical appliances
HERHESRETENRA B
BF - SREREM BN
B FERETORFER
EEET TEM AR

Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB38,000,000 79%° 79%®  Research and development,
(Note (iii)) HE AR #38,000,0007 manufacturing and sale of
FYTBEE AR A (M) lithium-ion bare battery cells

ERETEOLHME  LERHEE

Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000 79%" 79%"  Research and development,
(Note (iv)) HEl AR #50,000,0007 manufacturing and sale of
REmBEEnER A (M) lithium-ion bare battery cells

ERETBOLHME  LERHEE

Fujian Green Energy Co., Ltd. (Note (v)) PRC RMB5,000,000 N/A 100%"  Deregistered on 14 July 2017

RREBRRBRAR(MEW) i AR #5,000,0007T TEA 201747 R 1485

Scud USA Inc. USA US$320,000 100%® 100%*  Sales of lithium-ion battery modules

REREEBRAA E3e 320,000%T and related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electrical
appliances

HESRTELEAE BYERR
TREFBRETER R

ia

*  Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings o EBHEEEERARAREEREER
Limited

@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., ° FRRERCGER)EFERARMEERAE
Ltd. Ea

* Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery o EBRRYImREENERAREERAE
Co., Ltd. by

5 Interest indirectly held through Scud Battery Co., Ltd. s EBREREMERARMEEREER

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * EREATERRATIMEREER
Limited
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

35. ffEB A T4

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-

establishment and

up share/registered Group's effective

Name of company operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
i/ RIR BRIREH
DAER Rews BRBRA rEBENAEERS TEEK
2017 2016
Patriots Group (China) Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Limited 36 10,0007 HARRER
FEERE(ME)ARAF
Patriots (Hong Kong) Power Sources  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Company Limited BA 10,000%7C HARBEE
BEE(BR)RRERAR
Scud Power System Co., Ltd. (Note (vi)) PRC RMB50,000,000 100%* 100%?%  Not yet commenced business
RERERZRBRA A (FHEV) e ARH50,000,0007C GENGEG
Scud Electronics Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY20,000,000 100%® N/A Research and development and sale
(Note (vii)) =l 20,000,000 T TNEm of lithium-ion battery modules,
REREFBARKR &3 (Vi) powerbanks, chargers and
network terminal products
HETENEE BYER %8
BRAERRERTEREE
Scud Hong Kong Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
REREZEEHERAT BE 10,000/ 7T HRRREE
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * FERRACEARATREEREER
Limited
4 Interest indirectly held through Scud Battery Co., Ltd. b BEBREREMERARMESEER
@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., ° FRRERCGER)ETFERARMEERAE
Ltd. B
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. it A =)

Notes: FfsT -

()  Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years () HNEIEAEMRZE  1997F10A31B BE A
commencing 31 October 1997. Ho+E-

(i) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years (i) YN ENE - 2005F12 6B st A
commencing 6 December 2005. A+ o

(i) Limited liability company for a term of 20 years (i) BRE(TAA - 2005F1A21B A
commencing 21 January 2005. o

(iv)  Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011. (iv) BRERETEAT - 2011FE48 1185

(v) Limited liability company for a term of 20 years (v) BRET2AA2010F10A218#:T4A
commencing 21 October 2010. Hi—+4F o

(vi) Limited liability company for a term of 30 years (i) BREMEQTF  2013F5 A3 A=
commencing 3 May 2013. +4E o

(vii) Limited liability company commencing 15 February 2017. (viiy BREERQT - 2017F2 158 #5t

During the year, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt RAREE  HHEFBAFBITEMESRES -

securities.
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEHE QA
(a) Disposal of Shenzhen Nalon (a) HERIYIBARE
On 9 December 2016, the Group disposed of its entire M20165F12 A9 « AEEHEH R EI
70% interest in Shenzhen Nalon to Guangdong Stiger BlRE 2 2 H70% M ERTEYE = HER
Information Technology Co., Ltd., an independent third MR EERMERDE < RIIAE 2+
party. The principal activity of Shenzhen Nalon was EEBAERTENRAZEERIEE
manufacturing and sales of lithium-ion battery modules, ERTE L FEREE -

research and development, manufacturing and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells.

Consideration received and receivable: B UK FEUARAE - RMB’000
ARET T
Cash B& 15,000

Analysis of assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in which  kEEHENHE QA RTNEE KX

the control was lost: BES RMB’000
AR®T T

Property, plant and equipment VI - BE MR 13,725
Inventories FE 88,291
Trade and notes receivables FEUE 5518 K R R & 36,701
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE © i2e RHE M EWEIE 23,086
Bank balances and cash RITHEER IR 4,795
Current tax payables NERFERTRRIE (4,561)
Trade and notes payables FERTE 558 REN & (133,897)
Other payables, receipt in advance and accrued charges E b FERTFRIE - FEUERTE M EETE (7,672)
Bank loans RITER (19,600)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 868
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Disposal of Shenzhen Nalon (Continued)

36. HEMB A E 4
(a) HERYIBEEE)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HERTB A R : RMB’000
ARBT T
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (868)
Non-controlling interest e A (5,439)
Consideration receivable FEURAE 7,000
Cash consideration received BEWEERE 8,000
Gain on disposal & 8,693
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMBRAREERFHRESRA
Cash consideration received BEWEERE 8,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed of B EHERBATINERE R
ReFEEAB (4,795)
3,205
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal of Scud Shenzhen

On 16 December 2016, the Group disposed of its entire
100% interest in Scud Shenzhen to Lanbo (Guangzhou)
Digital Technology Co., Ltd, an independent third party.
The principal activity of Scud Shenzhen was manufacturing
and sale of lithium-ion battery modules, powerbanks and
related accessories for mobile phones and digital electrical

36. HEMB A E 4
(b) HERYIRER

M2016F 128160 » ANE B HE LR
YIFRERE 2 2 E100% I #E 2= 7"3’74%:
FEMNE R BRI AR AT o RIIFRE
M BZEBAEERBERANTFHER
HIBEEFEMMER FEMEE  BH
BREBERM -

appliances.
Consideration received: BUARE - RMB’000
ARBT T
Cash 2 1,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in which  kEEHENHE QTN EE KX
the control was lost: BEST RMB’000
ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment VI - BE MR 427
Intangible assets mIAE 640
Inventories FE 1,506
Trade receivables JEWE B RIA 1,293
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFRIA ~ Re R E A EWRIE 7,858
Pledged bank deposits DR ITIFR 5,703
Bank balances and cash RITRAMRNIIRE 899
Current tax payables RERFENS I (8,166)
Trade and notes payables FE B 5 50A R FE N & (32,983)
Provision for warranty EmRIEEES (275)
Other payables, receipt in advance and accrued charges Hib e FRTE - BUERTE R FEET & A (31,354)
Net liabilities disposed of HEFaE (54,452)
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal of Scud Shenzhen (Continued)

36. HEMB A E 4
(b) HEFYIRERZ)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HERTB A B ¢ RMB’000

AR®T T

Net liabilities disposed of HEFaE 54,452

Cash consideration received BUYER B RIE 1,000

Gain on disposal ekl e 55,452

Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMBAREENFHRES AL RMB’000

AREFT

Cash consideration received BUHIRSRE 1,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed of B BEHEHBARMNRE X

BReEEIEL (899)

101
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEALRS
(@) The name of and the relationship with related parties are as (a) FIEATEZRWNREAEBENT :
follows:
Name Relationship
£ BE
Fang Jin Director and controlling shareholder of the Company

Pk

Guo Quan Zeng
HRIE

Scud Stock
RERRR D

Scud Technology
REBERHR

Scud Power Technology

REME NEHL

Fujian Youtong
BERE

Fuzhou Shanghe
&M A

EBTEB New Energy
ZERHEER

Scud School
FRERRER

ARBERRIERAIR

Director of the Company

ARRIEZE

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng
being common directors who have shareholding interest in this company as to 67% to
3%, respectively

BERERRMDERAF - AEAERBRIGEAERHAREETNAR  UHRIEEZD
F167 % 523 % A

Fujian Scud Technology Co. Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin having 18% shareholding
interest in this company

BEREBBHERRR]  TEEAZAF18%EE

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co. Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder
holding 67% shareholding interest of the Company is the son of, Mr. Fang Jin, a
director and controlling shareholder of the Company

BERERDIRKERAF - HEAZRA67T%RENEERFERRASTRFEER
ERBRRATEEZF

Fujian Youtong Industrial Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director

BREBEXERADR HEekEREHREENAF

Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder
holding 45% shareholding interest of the company is the son of, Mr. Fang Jin, a
director and controlling shareholder of the Company

BMNEMBEFERAT - HEAZ AR %RENEERFERFEAERAFESRIERRKR
RA&kEZT

EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as Hongde New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.), a company with its director is the son of, Mr. Fang lJin, a
director and controlling shareholder of the Company. During 2016, the Group
disposed of 60% of the entire shareholding interest in EBTEB New Energy

AR AER AR (ABABEFERERERAR]) - HEZRARRIESE LIE
BRI 2EEZF - R2016FAREE L E SAERKHEREAREN60%

Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School, a company with Mr. Fang Jin being
common director

BERERSAETIENER - TEAEAEARBRNHAF]
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37. BEA LR FZ ()
(b) Transactions with related companies during the year (b) WERBEHRREMITDWENF AR E
not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are NEIR BT -
summarised as follows:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBFT
Rental expenses paid to: BRHEEHRS
Scud Stock (Note i) FRERRA (HEE) 16,951 14,452
Scud Technology (Note ii) FE BRI (FI3TI) 5 4,820
Purchases of finished goods from: (Note iii) #%EE&LAK A - (FiT i)
Scud Power Technology RERE) HEHR 676 -
EBTEB New Energy S1AREER 59,506 38,695
Fujian Youtong BERRB - 19,203
Purchases of raw materials from: (Note iii) ~ $EEE R £ : (B2
Scud Power Technology RERE) HEHT 610 -
Fujian Youtong BERRE 876 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment RIREREHEBEEME - BEMEEG
from Scud Power Technology (Note iv) (F¥zEiv) 651 -
Processing fee to Scud Power Technology — [AFRERRE) HRIE XN T & (FMsTv)
(Note v) 3,340 -
Inspection fee to: (Note vi) FRRBIET « (BFEvi)
EBTEB New Energy SIARHEER 251 -
Scud School FREMRER 10,491 -
Sales of finished goods to Scud Power R 7R E BRED 7 ok 45 8 65 A om (P i)
Technology (Note iii) 7,903 -
Sales of work-in-progress Scud Power IR EBRED /7 BHL 855 - Ak i (P i)
Technology (Note iii) 916 -
Sales of raw material to: SHERME
Scud Power Technology (Note iii) TERRED N R (B FEI) 58,274 -
EBTEB New Energy SBREELR 21,577 -
Sales of property, plant and equipment to  ARERF AR HEHENE  BEL
Scud Power Technology (Note iv): &t (B SEIv): 5,605 -
Interest income charged from EBTEB New  [A) 5 {45 57 6 R U EURI] 2 A (Bt s vii)
Energy (Note vii) 712 660
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms
as agreed between the parties in the normal course of
business.

Notes:

(i)  On 1 January 2014, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
entered into a lease agreement (the “Renewal First
Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1
January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016. The
annual rental was RMB8,544,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.

On 30 December 2016, Scud Electronics and Scud
Stock entered into a lease renewal agreement (the
“New First Lease Agreement”) to extend the lease
period of the existing leased premises for the period
commencing from 1 January 2017 and ending on
31 December 2019. The annual rental for the year
ending 31 December 2017 will be approximately
RMB13,245,000, and the annual rental for the two
years ending 31 December 2019 will be approximately
RMB14,325,000.

Under the New First Lease Agreement, it was intended
that Scud Stock would lease a warehouse building
to Scud Electronics starting from 1 July 2017. As
the construction of the warehouse building required
more time than originally anticipated, Scud Stock was
unable to make available the warehouse building for
use by Scud Electronics during the period from 1 July
2017 to 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the relevant
rent of RMB1,080,000 was not required to be paid by
Scud Electronics during the year ended 31 December
2017.

On 1 January 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Stock
entered into a lease agreement (the “Renewal Second
Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1
January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016. The
annual rental was RMB5,908,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.

On 30 December 2016, Scud Battery and Scud Stock
entered into a lease renewal agreement (the “New
Second Lease Agreement”) to extend the lease
period of the existing leased premises for the period
commencing from 1 January 2017 and ending on
31 December 2019. The annual rental for the years
ending 31 December 2019 will be approximately
RMB4,786,000.

The rental payable under the Renewal First Lease
Agreement, the New First Lease Agreement, the
Renewal Second Lease Agreement and the New
Second Lease Agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between Scud Electronics,
Scud Battery and Scud Stock with reference to the
market rental for similar properties nearby in the PRC
and having taken into account availability of similar
premises nearby and the cost of relocation.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cContinued)

234

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

On 19 May 2015, Scud Electronics and Scud
Technology entered into a lease agreement (the “Old
Third Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing
from 1 June 2015 and ending on 31 May 2018. The
annual rental was RMB2,173,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.

On 21 July 2016, Scud Electronics and Scud
Technology agreed to terminate the OId Third
Agreement with effect from 1 August 2016 and
entered into the lease agreement (the “Renewal Third
Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing 1
August 2016 and ending on 31 May 2018. The annual
rental was RMB2,005,000 and payable by cash on a
monthly basis.

On 30 November 2016, Scud Electronics and Scud
Technology agreed to terminate the Renewal Third
Lease Agreement with effect from 1 December 2016.

On 18 February 2016, Scud Electronics and Scud
Technology entered into another lease agreement (the
"Forth Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing
20 February 2016 and ending on 19 February 2017.
The annual rental was RMB37,200 and payable by
cash on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Technology
entered into a lease agreement (the “Fifth Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1
January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016. The
annual rental was RMB2,398,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.

On 30 April 2014, Scud Battery and Scud Technology
entered into a lease agreement (the “Sixth Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1 May
2014 and ending on 31 December 2016. The annual
rental was RMB413,000 and payable by cash on a
monthly basis.

On 28 July 2016, Scud Battery and Scud Technology
entered into a lease agreement (the “Seventh Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 15
August 2016 and ending on 14 August 2019. The
annual rental was RMB510,000 and payable by cash
on a monthly basis.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(0

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)
(vii)

On 15 September 2016, Scud Battery and Scud
Technology agreed to terminate the Seventh Lease
Agreement with effect from 15 September 2016.

The rental payable under the Old Third Lease
Agreement, the Renewal Third Lease Agreement, the
Forth Lease Agreement, the Fifth lease Agreement,
the Sixth Lease Agreement and the Seventh Lease
Agreement were determined after arm’s length
negotiations between Scud Electronics, Scud Battery
and Scud Technology with reference to the market
rental for similar properties nearby in the PRC and
having taken into account availability of similar
premises nearby and the cost of relocation.

The selling prices of finished goods, work-in-progress
and raw materials are determined and agreed by both
parties.

The selling price of property, plant and equipment is
determined and agreed by both parties.

The processing fee is determined by both parties.
The inspection fee is determined by both parties.

The interest rate applied on the loan is determined
and agreed by both parties.

Other transaction with related party:

As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Fang Jin has guaranteed
certain bank facilities made to the subsidiaries of the
Group of up to an amount of RMB410,379,000 (2016:
RMB242,698,000).

37.BEALRF )

(b)
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(ii)

(iii)
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37.AEANERZ (2

(d) Remuneration for key management personnel, including d FEEEBASHNMES(BENMFEI0R
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in WENDSNAATEEMS )T -

Note 10, is as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Salaries, bonus, allowance and other ¥i& - ##4 « 20t R HEMIEF

benefits 3,768 3,493

Retirement benefits scheme RIRRE T B
contributions 44 44
3,812 3,537

38.NOTE SUPPORTING CASH FLOW 38.XIFHE&RERMNK:E

STATEMENT
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BMEEFDELNBEYHEK
Obligation under Amount due  Amount due to
Bank loans Other loans finance lease to a director related parties
TR
RITER EHER HAMERR EREZHE ATHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT NS ARETT ARETT ARETTT
At 1 January 2017 2017461418 415,094 7,466 7,805 5,839 9,653
Changes from cash flow RENELY
Proceeds from new borrowings  REFERZFIEFE 520,248 9,999 - - -
Repayment of borrowings BEEn (518,815) (9,034) (5,455) - -
Repayment of advances EBEBR - - - (228) (3,920)
Interest paid SRFE (18,123) (216) (283) - -
Qther changes: Hpg
Foreign exchange movement NEZE) (6,148) - - - -
Interest expense R 18,123 216 283 - -
As at 31 December 2017 1#2017812A31R 410,379 8,431 2,350 5611 5733
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39. COMMITMENTS 39. F&iE

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments (a) BEFREE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEFT

Contracted but not accounted for, in respect EREEME  HE R

of acquisition of property, plant and BAERTRER A SR

equipment 10,120 9,356
Operating lease commitments (b) TEHEERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REEBRR - AEERERT A HEL 2]
outstanding minimum commitments under non-cancellable E DA B B ER A9 4 3 R AR T ) R AR (R
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall AEPET

due as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT

Within one year —F R 22,312 24,261
In the second and fifth years inclusive MERF(BEMFERIEEAN) 24,388 33,809

46,700 58,070
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group BBEHELOWIABIERARS - AEENE
does not have an option to purchase the leased land and HHEmFTEREERE T MBFHE
buildings at the expiry of the lease periods. B
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

40. RERHE D 2T R
MIEER  SERIMETAMBEEENT :

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables BERRERERR
Trade and notes receivables U E 57 TE & N E g 1,712,754 1,650,416
Financial assets included in prepayments, ETATEM I © RS RE M EYRIERD
deposits and other receivables WGEE 11,429 13,257
Amounts due from related parties R R E A £ F0E 246,179 146,817
Pledged bank deposits BEHEAIRITIFR 645,388 552,962
Bank balances and cash IRITHEER IR ® 146,304 170,305
2,762,054 2,533,757
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.#Z¥ERI& o2& T A

(Continued)
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Financial liabilities =g =K
Trade and notes payables BB SHRERENRE 2,291,820 2,114,370
Financial liabilities included in other T AR A FER FRIE - FBUGRIE R
payables, receipts in advance and accrued — JEETERMIEEE
charges 94,124 100,339
Bank loans SRITER 410,379 415,094
Other loans HiBE» 8,431 7,466
Obligations under finance leases mEMHEARE 2,350 7,805
Amount due to a director BN EEHE 5,611 5,839
Amounts due to related parties FEfTRAEA LB 5,733 9,653
2,818,448 2,660,566
The above financial instruments which are measured at amortised A EA ARG ENMBIA - REGHMN
costs are not measured at fair value due to their short-term BAUNATENE  UEVBTAMNKBER
nature. The carrying values of the above financial instruments HENFEEE -

approximate their fair values.

239



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2017 12431 H 1L F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. B EREERMEIAE A FE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &

(a) BABERER

(a) Financial risk management

240

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, which include market risk (including foreign currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks

are set out below. The directors manage and monitor these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short-
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans
with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

AEEOEHE AT SERGEAR - £5F
SRR (R ENERR - FIRE R E
RER)  EERBREAIERR - B Y
RIEZZ AR OB FERA T -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
decrease/increase and the accumulated losses as
of 31 December 2017 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB4,104,000 (2016: the Group's
loss for the year and the accumulated losses would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB4,151,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure,
to interest rates on its variable rate bank balances,
pledged bank deposits and bank loans.

The Group’s bank balance also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure on the
bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not
changed significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows.
Although the Group has certain bank balances and
bank loans denominated in United States dollars,
Japanese Yen and Hong Kong dollars, the proportion
of these foreign currency balances to the Group's total
assets is insignificant. Furthermore, the Group carries
out majority of its transactions in Chinese Renminbi.
Accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the Group
is not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk.
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IAAS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

242

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iii) Price risk management

(iv)

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have significant exposure to price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at end of the financial year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the risk,
management of the Group closely monitors overdue
debts. The recoverable amount of each individual
debt is reviewed at each of the reporting period and
adequate allowance for doubtful debts has been made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that credit risk associated
with the Group’s trade and notes receivables, and
other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a certain level of concentration of credit
risk as approximately 48.9% (2016: 57.6%) and
approximately 17.7% (2016: 10.0%) of the total trade
and notes receivables, arising from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)
(v) Liquidity risk management

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’'s
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

M BHEEREBERMEIAZAF
Bz

(a) MBRAKRERERZ)
(v) HEMHREEEE

REBASENES  PHEEHE
EREARDUEERNESR  EFF
ERY—ERENRBESRRERE
HE - AERPUERRERAZKKE
- AREEBRFRRNHR - ]
TREMFREERE  RSHEE
BEREEERRSRE - YIRS
BERAENIPARLAEE RS
T o

20174 K2016%F12A31H » K&
E RIS A EREETA AR A

BEEIERAT
2017
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
SR-F AHHR

FHEX  -EEf  BBIF REREME  HEAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Trade and notes payables ERESHARENER 2,291,820 - - 2,291,820 2,291,820

Financial liabilities included in other payables, st AZft/ENZUE « ENFIER
receipts in advance and accrued charges EABRMIEAR 94,124 - - 94,124 94,124
Bank loans RITER 418,434 - - 418,434 410,379
Other loans EER 3,583 5375 - 8,958 8,431
Obligations under finance leases REREEE 2318 - - 2378 2,350
Amount due to a director ERESHE 5,611 - - 5,611 5,611
Amounts due to related parties EREEALIE 5,733 - - 5,733 5,733
2,821,683 5375 - 2,827,058 2,818,448
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

M BEEREERMEIAEZAF
Bz

(a) HBEBREEE)
(v) WmEEEREE(E)

2016
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than  undiscounted carrying
demand 15 years 5 years cash flows amount
S5 REER

FHEX  -ERF BBRF HIREEE  BOAE
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMBOO0  RMB'000
AREFT  AREBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Trade and notes payables ERESTERENER 2,114,370 - - 214370 2114370

Financial liabilities included in other payables, st AZftENFUE « ENFIER
receipts in advance and accrued charges EHBRMIKAR 100,339 - - 100,339 100,339
Bank loans FITER 42,711 - - 422,711 415,09
Other loans HivE3H 7,595 - - 7,595 7,466
Obligations under finance leases HEMRESRE 5,707 2378 - 8,085 7,805
Amount due to a director ERNESHE 5,839 - - 5,839 5,839
Amounts due to related parties EREEALIE 9,653 - - 9,653 9,653
2,666,214 2,378 - 2,668,592 2,660,566

(b) Fair values of financial instruments

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities

with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to

approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been

determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of

these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of

the relationship.
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42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Net debt
includes interest-bearing borrowings. Capital includes equity
attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

42. EXRER

FEENETEEAER B BERREREEFE
REmEEN  BRRRENERLE  UXFE
BEARREGRA@R

AEEERHENERE  WRHLEERENEE
REBEENRRMEEHERREETHE -
B RAREARLEE  AEBE A BRI’
RERE - MREEEIERLBETHR - A&
ERrZEMIINRERNEAETEMRS - BHE
20174 20165 12A31B ILFE » WEH A
1Z - BoRSEFEHEE -

AEBEFEREERBHLERERERN  FAE
BABRERINFAEE ARENBREREE
BELERS0% AT - FREBREMEER -
BARBEARBHEA AR R IEE I
o RIEHR BEABLEMT :

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBEFT

Interest-bearing borrowings LhESREE=N 421,160 430,365
Equity attributable to owners of the RAEIER AEIGER

Company 926,183 898,094

Non-controlling interests FEPERR 11,249 12,493

Total capital wE R 937,432 910,587

Gearing ratio EEAGBLER 44.9% 47 3%
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43. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 43.#t/E4SBE®mE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and AAREEEER2018F8 A3 A L& RIRE T
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company BAR A B mK -
on 3 August 2018.
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MR

RESULTS E 3
The Group KEE
Year ended 31 December
BZENAMNALEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Restated)
(#=5)
Turnover L 5,801,566 6,061,477 4,509,441 3,728,814 2,395,816
Profit/(loss) before BRET1SHLRT
income tax A, (E1R) 20,290 (174,121) 41,536 15,871 (197,179)
Income tax FTiSHE (409) 49,288 (18,000) (22,733) 41,423
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEEHF,/ (E518) 19,881 (124,833) 23,536 (6,862) (155,756)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: T~ 5IJ A+ FEfS
A (EHR):
Owners of the Company AN EIHEB A 21,125 (118,951) 38,168 (1,696) (144,936)
Non-controlling interests IEIE S (1,244) (5,882) (14,632) (5,166) (10,820)
19,881 (124,833) 23,536 (6,862) (155,756)
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SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2017

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
The Group EE
At 31 December
M12A318
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT AREFTT AREFT AREFT
(Restated)
(g=&=5)
Total assets BEE 3,916,878 3,687,342 3,723,315 2,973,929 2,218,652
Total liabilities BAE (2,979,446) (2,776,755) (2,668,702) (1,937,923) (1,230,815)
937,432 910,587 1,054,613 1,036,006 987,837
Attributable to: TH) AL
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE F=DN 926,183 898,094 1,025,750 992,511 939,127
Non-controlling interests SEFERR M 2R 11,249 12,493 28,863 43,495 48,710
937,432 910,587 1,054,613 1,036,006 987,837
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SCUD Industrial Park

Fuzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone
No. 98 Jianbin Avenue East
Mawei District, Fuzhou

Fujian Province, PRC

Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

www.scudgroup.com

SCUD GROUP LIMITED
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: (86) 591-63158388
: (86) 591-87307773

: (852) 28057888
: (852) 28021777
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